BROMLEY CIVIC CENTRE, STOCKWELL CLOSE, BROMLEY BRI 3UH

TELEPHONE: 020 8464 3333 CONTACT: Philippa Gibbs
Philippa.Gibbs@bromley.gov.uk

DIRECT LINE: 020 8461 7638
FAX: 020 8290 0608 DATE: 28 June 2024

THE LONDON BOROUGH
www.bromley.gov.uk

To: Members of the
EXECUTIVE, RESOURCES AND CONTRACTS POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Councillor Simon Fawthrop (Chairman)

Councillor Shaun Slator (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors Jeremy Adams, Mark Brock, David Cartwright QFSM, Kira Gabbert,
Adam Jude Grant, Julie Ireland, Simon Jeal, Ruth McGregor, Alexa Michael,
Tony Owen, Mark Smith, Melanie Stevens and Michael Tickner

A meeting of the Executive, Resources and Contracts Policy Development and
Scrutiny Committee will be held Bromley Civic Centre, Stockwell Close, Bromley,
BR1 3UH on MONDAY 8 JULY 2024 AT 7.00 PM

TASNIM SHAWKAT
Director of Corporate Services & Governance

Copies of the documents referred to below can be obtained from
http://cds.bromley.gov.uk/

PART 1 AGENDA

Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contact details are shown on each
report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.

STANDARD ITEMS

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

3 QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS AND MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ATTENDING THE
MEETING

In accordance with the Council's Constitution, members of the public may submit one
guestion each on matters relating to the work of the Committee. Questions must have been
received in writing 10 working days before the date of the meeting.

Questions seeking clarification of the details of a report on the agenda may be accepted
within two working days of the normal publication date of the agenda — by 5pm on Tuesday

2nd July 2024.



http://cds.bromley.gov.uk/

a QUESTIONS FOR THE CHAIRMAN OF EXECUTIVE,RESOURCES AND
CONTRACTS PDS COMMITTEE

b QUESTIONS FOR THE RESOURCES, COMMISSIONING AND
CONTRACTS MANAGEMENT PORTFOLIO HOLDER

MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE, RESOURCES AND CONTRACTS PDS COMMITTEE
MEETING HELD ON 20 MAY 2024 (EXCLUDING EXEMPT ITEMS) (Pages 5 - 12)

MATTERS OUTSTANDING AND WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 13 - 18)
FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS (Pages 19 - 26)

HOLDING THE RESOURCES, COMMISSIONING AND CONTRACTS PORTFOLIO
HOLDERTO ACCOUNT

SCRUTINY OF THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR RESOURCES, COMMISSIONING AND
CONTRACTS MANAGEMENT

RESOURCES, COMMISSIONING AND CONTRACTS MANAGEMENT PORTFOLIO -
PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY

Portfolio Holder decisions for pre-decision scrutiny.

a TREASURY MANAGEMENT ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT (Pages
27 - 42)

b EXTENSIONS: VARIOUS CLEANING, CARETAKING AND WASHROOM
SERVICES CONTRACTS (Pages 43 - 54)

¢ EXTENSION OF ROYAL MAIL CONTRACT (Pages 55 - 64)

HOLDING THE EXECUTIVE TO ACCOUNT

PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF EXECUTIVE REPORTS

Members of the Committee are requested to bring their copy of the agenda for the Executive

meeting on 10 July 2024.

The Executive, Resources and Contracts PDS Committee will be looking at the following
items on the Executive Agenda:

e Item 5- Capital Programme Outturn

e Iltem 10 - Proceeding to Tender for a Block Purchasing Contract for Children's
Residential (Beds) Placements
(This item will be considered jointly with the Children, Education and Families PDS
Committee who will be invited to the meeting)

e Item 11 - Meeting the Needs of Children In Care: Market Development of Residential



10

11

12

Provision
(This item will be considered jointly with the Children, Education and Families PDS
Committee who will be invited to the meeting)

e ltem 16 - Contract Extension: Mechanical & Electrical Maintenance Contract

POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND OTHER ITEMS

a CUSTOMER SERVICES CONTRACT MONITORING REPORT (Pages 65 -
76)

b EXCHEQUER SERVICE CONTRACT PERFORMANCE REPORT (Pages
77 - 100)

c BENEFITS SERVICE MONITORING REPORT (Pages 101 - 126)
d REVENUES SERVICE MONITORING REPORT (Pages 127 - 150)

e EXPENDITURE ON CONSULTANTS AND CONTRACTORS 2023/24
(Pages 151 - 162)

PART 2 AGENDA

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS AMENDED BY THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT
(ACCESS TO INFORMATION) (VARIATION) ORDER 2006, AND THE FREEDOM OF
INFORMATION ACT 2000

The Chairman to move that the Press and public be excluded during consideration of the
items of business listed below as itis likely in view of the nature of the business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings that if members of the Press and public were
present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information.

ltems of Business Schedule 12A Description

PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF EXEMPT EXECUTIVE REPORTS

The Executive, Resources and Contracts PDS Committee will be looking at the
following Part 2 items on the Executive Agenda:

ltem 23 — Part 2 Contract Extension: Mechanical & Electrical Maintenance Contract



This page is left intentionally blank



Agenda ltem 4

EXECUTIVE,RESOURCES AND CONTRACTS POLICY DEVELOPMENT
AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Minutes of the meeting held at 7.00 pm on 20 May 2024

Present:

Councillor Simon Fawthrop (Chairman)

Councillor Shaun Slator (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors Jeremy Adams, Mark Brock,

David Cartwright QFSM, Kira Gabbert, Adam Jude Grant,
Julie Ireland, Ruth McGregor, Alexa Michael, Tony Owen,
Chris Price, Alison Stammers, Melanie Stevens and
Michael Tickner

Also Present:

Councillor Christopher Marlow, Portfolio Holder for Resources,
Commissioning and Contracts Management

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF
SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Simon Jeal and
Councillor Mark Smith.  Councillor Chris Price and Councillor Alison
Stammers attended as their respective substitutes.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Mark Brock declared that he held shares in a smoking cessation
company. Councillor Brock had been advised that the level of the shares did
not meet the requirements for a disclosable pecuniary interest and as such he
would be taking part in the debate.

Councillor Stammers declared that her son was in the Armed Forces.

Councillor Gabbert declared that she was a patient at the Dysart Surgery.

3 QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS AND MEMBERS OF THE
PUBLIC ATTENDING THE MEETING

No questions were received.

Page 5



Executive, Resources and Contracts Policy Development and Scrutiny
Committee
20 May 2024

4 MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE, RESOURCES AND
CONTRACTS PDS COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 25
MARCH 2024 (EXCLUDING EXEMPT ITEMS)

The minutes of the Executive, Resources and Contracts PDS Committee
meeting held on 25 March 2024 (excluding exempt information), were agreed
and signed as a correct record.

5 MATTERS OUTSTANDING AND WORK PROGRAMME
Report CSD24063

The report dealt with the Committee’s business management including
matters outstanding from previous meetings and the proposed work plan for
the remainder of the year.

The Committee noted that a further update on Biggin Hill Airport would be
received in September 2024 and representatives from Biggin Hill Airport
Limited and Flightpath Watch would be invited to that meeting.

Members requested that an update on the Transformation Programme be
added to the Work Programme for October 2024 when the Chief Executive
was next scheduled to attend a meeting.

In relation to the budget, the Chairman highlighted the need to be focused on
the budget and identifying savings where possible. Issues around temporary
accommodation and housing should be referred to the Renewal, Recreation
and Housing PDS Committee for scrutiny with a detailed update on the
budget position being included in the first quarter budget monitoring report.

RESOLVED: Thatthe report be noted.

6 FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS

The Committee noted the Forward Plan of Key Decisions covering the period
May 2024 to July 2024.

7 PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF EXECUTIVE REPORTS

The Committee considered the following reports on the Part 1 agenda for the
meeting of the Executive on 22 May 2024:

(6) PROVISIONAL FINAL ACCOUNTS 2023/24
Report FSD24036

The report considered the 2023/24 provisional outturn at portfolio level and
Council-wide as well as the potential implications for the Council’s financial
position in 2024/25. The purpose of the report was to give a broad overview of
the financial outturn. Details of the carry forward requests and a summary of

Page 6



Executive, Resources and Contracts Policy Developmentand Scrutiny
Committee
20 May 2024

the Council’s capital programme were considered in the report and more
detailed reports would be submitted to individual PDS Committees.

The 2023/24 provisional outturn enabled the General Fund balance to remain
at £20m, subject to the recommendations in the report being agreed.

The Director of Finance introduced the report highlighting that there were
significant pressures within Housing and Children’s Services but that
mitigations had been put in place to address any overspends in 2024/2025.
Whilst there were some underspends in the contingency there was limited
flexibility. The first budget monitoring report would focus on cost pressures
and there would be a need to review growth pressures. Going forward it
would be important for PDS Committees to thoroughly scrutinise any
proposals for growth, budget monitoring overspends and any mitigation that
could be put in place. In relation to lobbying government, the Director of
Finance highlighted the importance of understanding the impact of any new
burdens and giving due consideration to what services could not be provided
if more government funding was not forthcoming.

In response to a question from the Chairman, the Director of Finance
confirmed that all aspects of income generation would be addressed in the
October report and that any new invest-to-save initiatives would come
through the Transformation Programme.

RESOLVED: Thatthe recommendations in the report be supported.

(7) CRM REPLACEMENT CAPITAL PROJECT - CRM & WEBSITE
REDESIGN CLOSURE REPORT AND WEBSITE PHASE 2
OPTIONS
Report CSD24045

The report provided an update on the CRM replacement capital programme including
a scheme closure report on the completed software implementation and the
completed redesign of the Council’s public facing website.

The report also sought Members’ approval to progress the complementary scheme to
enhance the My Account features of the website including the personalisation and
single sign on initiatives outlined in the report.

The Committee requested that details of the projected number of users be circulated
following the meeting.

In noting that there was no statutory requirement to spend the funds that had been
allocated for the upgrade, a Member questioned whether the proposals in the report
that were designed to improve the customer experience represented a good use of
the underspend. In response to a question from the Chairman, the Assistant Director
for Customer Services confirmed that Option 2A outlined in the report provided the
technology for the single sign on whilst option 2B provided enhanced features. In
discussion, Members indicated that they were yet to be convinced that options 1 and
2 (A&B) outlined in the report would represent value for money and it was suggested

Page 7



Executive, Resources and Contracts Policy Development and Scrutiny
Committee
20 May 2024

that there were other system improvements that may provide better value, such as
the housing bidding system.

Councillor Julie Ireland proposed that the Committee support Option 3 — do nothing
and return the capital receipts - within the report. The motion was seconded by
Councillor Alexa Michael, put to the vote and CARRIED by majority.

RESOLVED: Thatthe Executive be recommended to adopt Option 3 —do
nothing and return the capital receipts - as outlined in the report.

(8) PROCUREMENT OF A SPECIALIST STOP SMOKING SERVICE
Report ACH24-027

The report outlined the proposed procurement for a Specialist Stop Smoking
Service for individuals in Bromley who required support to quit smoking.
Permission was sought to commence the procurement of the Service in
accordance with the arrangements set out in the report to commence the
Service on 15t April 2025. Contracts with a whole life value of £1m and above
require Executive approval prior to proceeding to procurement.

A small pilot project, Smokefree Bromley, was currently being delivered by
Solutions4Health. This contract went live on 1st January and was due to end
31st December 2024 with an available extension period to 31st March 2025.

It was proposed this service would be funded jointly from the substantive
Public Health grant plus the ring-fenced Stop Smoking Grant from the
Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC). The DHSC Stop Smoking
Grant was available annually until March 2029. The ring-fenced Stop Smoking
grant allocation was reassessed annually in accordance with estimated
smoking prevalence rates in the Borough. Therefore, authorisation was
sought to design a service with a degree of flexibility to enable Chief Officer
approval of subsequent variation to the scope and value of the Smoking
Cessation Service contract in line with the requirements of the grant.

In opening the debate, the Chairman expressed concerns around the value
for money arising from the proposals.

In response to a question concerning the age profile of smokers across the
Borough, the Director of Public Health confirmed that there was a lower
prevalence of smoking in young people, but instances of vaping were
increasing. It was highlighted that vaping was effective as a method of
encouraging adults to stop smoking. The service proposed in the report was
for adults only and there was currently no service for individuals who had only
ever vaped.

The Director of Public Health confirmed that the success rate for previous

services had been good — around 40% - but that had been a very different
service to the proposals before the Committee.

Page 8



Executive, Resources and Contracts Policy Developmentand Scrutiny
Committee
20 May 2024

A Member highlighted the need to evaluate the cost of smoking to the social
sector, not just the NHS. It was suggested that one of the most effective
actions that could be taken was to discourage individuals from smoking.
There needed to be a 40% success rate for the service to pay for itself.

In response to a question, the Director of Public Health confirmed that it was
not possible to means test for the service, but the highest risk groups would
be targeted for support.

The Director of Public Health explained that one of the conditions of the grant
was that the Local Authority must “Invest in enhancing local authority
commissioned stop smoking services and support, in addition to and while
maintaining existing spend on these services and support from the public
health grant”. However, the Chairman suggested that there may be other
priorities, for the Local Authority’s Public Health grant, such as vaccination.

The Chairman proposed that the Council proceed with the programme on the
basis of utilising the additional funding from Government and review how
much, if any Bromley Public Health funds, should be spent. The amended
recommendation was seconded by Councillor Tony Owen, put to the vote and
CARRIED.

RESOLVED: That Executive be recommended to agree that the Council
proceed with the programme on the basis of utilising the additional
funding from Government and review how much, if any Bromley Public
Health funds, should be spent.

9 BROMLEY HEALTH & WELLBEING CENTRE, CHURCHILL
COURT - REFURBISHMENT, LEASE & CONTRACT AWARD
Report HPR2024/019

A Report to Executive on 30" November 2022 set out the recommendation to
purchase the freehold of the Direct Line site known as Churchill Court with a
view to moving the Council offices off the Civic Centre site and subsequent
disposal. As part of that report, Members agreed to the provision of a new
Health & Wellbeing Centre for Bromley town centre.

On 17t May 2023 a follow-up report was shared with the Executive which set
out details of the conversion of the 15t Floor offices within Phase Four,
Churchill Court to provide a new NHS Health & Wellbeing Centre (HWBC).
Following that agreement Council officers have been working with colleagues
in the NHS to design the new public facility, obtain planning consent, building
control approval, agree funding and finalising the lease terms. This report,
together with the accompanying Part 2 report, set out the outcomes of that
exercise and sought permission to continue with the next steps.

Page 9



Executive, Resources and Contracts Policy Development and Scrutiny
Committee
20 May 2024

The Part 2 report set out the outcome of the tender process and award of
contract for the construction works. It also detailed the capital project budget
and terms agreed with the NHS Integrated Care Board (ICB) for the share of
capital funding and lease terms. In addition, the report updated Members on
the overall project timetable.

On behalf of the Bromley Town Ward Councillors, Councillor Julie Ireland
thanked the Property Team for the updates and confirmed that the local ward
councillors entirely supported the recommendations.

RESOLVED: Thatthe recommendations in the report be supported.
8 POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND OTHER ITEMS

A ARMED FORCES COVENANT PROGRESS UPDATE
Report HPR2024/017

The report summarised the progress on the work that had taken place to date
under the Armed Forces Covenant since its renewal and the ongoing work
underway to further support Bromley's Armed Forces Community.

The Committee noted that the Council would have to complete the process to
demonstrate that it qualified for the Silver Employer Certificate.

In response to a question, the Head of Culture confirmed that opportunities for
Looked After Children to be involved in the Cadets would form part of the
second priority of the action plan-:strengthening our links with the armed
forces community

RESOLVED: That

1. The progress and work underway to meet the pledges set outin
the renewal of the Armed Forces Covenantwhich was re-
affirmed in June 2023 be noted.

2. The award of the Bronze Employer Certificate in national
recognition of the Council’'s commitment to the Armed Forces
Community be noted.

3. The Portfolio Holder for Resources Commissioning and
Contracts Management be recommended to adopt the refreshed
Action Plan which sets out how the Council will deliver the
Armed Forces Covenantin Bromley and measure progress.

B RISK MANAGEMENT
Report FSD24032

The report provided Members of the Executive, Resources and Contracts
Policy, Development and Scrutiny Committee with the net ‘High’ (Red) risks

Page 10



Executive, Resources and Contracts Policy Developmentand Scrutiny
Committee
20 May 2024

extracted from the Corporate Services, Finance and the Human Resources
and Customer Services Risk Registers.

A Member sought and received confirmation that Fire Risk Assessments and
Fire Strategies were in place across the property portfolio. .

Officers confirmed that the fire strategies across the Council's portfolio were in
the process of being reviewed.

RESOLVED: Thatthe report be noted.

9 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS AMENDED BY THE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION)
(VARIATION) ORDER 2006, AND THE FREEDOM OF
INFORMATION ACT 2000

RESOLVED that the Press and public be excluded during consideration
of the items of business referred to below as it is likely in view of the
nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings
that if members of the Press and public were present there would be
disclosure to them of exempt information.

The following summaries
refer to matters involving exempt information
10 EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 25 MARCH
2024

The Part 2 (exempt) minutes of the meeting held on 25 March 2024 were
agreed, and signed as a correct record.

11 PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF EXEMPT EXECUTIVE
REPORTS

The Committee considered the following reports on the Part 2 agenda for the
meeting of the Executive on 22 May 2024:

(13) PART 2 CRM REPLACEMENT CAPITAL PROJECT - WEBSITE
REDESIGN UPDATE REPORT

The Committee noted the Part 2 information.

Page 11



Executive, Resources and Contracts Policy Development and Scrutiny
Committee

20 May 2024

(14) PART 2 BROMLEY HEALTH & WELLBEING CENTRE,
CHURCHILL COURT - REFURBISHMENT, LEASE &
CONTRACT AWARD

The Committee noted the report and supported the recommendations.

12 PART 2 POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND OTHER ITEMS

A PART 2 CONTRACTS REGISTER AND CONTRACTS
DATABASE

The report presented May 2024’s Corporate Contracts Register for
consideration.

Detailed scrutiny of individual contracts was the responsibility of the six PDS
Committees but ER&C PDS took an overview of the Council’s larger value
(E200k+) contracts to ensure that commissioning and procurement activity
was progressed in a consistent manner. This report provided both the
Council-wide £200k+ register together with the £50k+ register specific to the
ER&C Portfolio.

A full report was provided twice a year (May and November) including a
detailed Part 2 report which included a Procurement RAG Rating and
commentary on each relevant contract to inform Members of any issues or
developments. Otherwise, a Part 1 Register only would be provided as a For
Information item with an accompanying Part 2 report only for any contracts
RAG rated Red by the Corporate Procurement Team.

The Contracts Register full report presented in ‘Part 2’ of this agenda included
a commentary on each contract to inform Members of any issues or
developments.

In response to a question concerning the impact of inflation on energy
services, the Assistant Director of Governance and Contracts confirmed that
the Energy Commissioning Strategy had been agreed around three years
previously and enabled the Council to select services from a framework in
order to achieve the most competitive price. It was noted that a longer-term
commissioning strategy would be presented to Members in due course.

RESOLVED: Thatthe report be noted.

The Meeting ended at 8.58 pm

Chairman

Page 12



Agenda Iltem 5

Report No. London Borough of Bromley
CSD24075

PART ONE - PUBLIC

Decision Maker: EXECUTIVE,RESOURCES AND CONTRACTS POLICY
DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date: Monday 8t July 2024

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key
Title: MATTERS OUTSTANDING AND WORK PROGRAMME
Contact Officer: Philippa Gibbs, Democratic Services Officer

Tel: 020 8461 7638 E-mail: Philippa.Gibbs@bromley.gov.uk
Chief Officer: Director of Corporate Services and Governance

Ward: All Wards

1. Reason for decision/report and options

This report deals with the Committee’s business management including:

e Monitoring progress against actions arising from previous meetings; and

o Developing the 2023/24 Forward Work Programme.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

That PDS Committee reviews and comments on:
1. Progress on matters arising from previous meetings; and

2. The 2024/25 work programme, indicating any changes or particular issues that it wishes to
scrutinise for the year ahead.

1 Page 13



Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children

1. Summary of Impact: None

Transformation Policy

1. Policy Status: Not Applicable:
2. Making Bromley Even Better Priority (delete as appropriate): Not Applicable:

Financial

1. Costof proposal: Not Applicable:

2. Ongoing costs: Not Applicable:

3. Budget head/performance centre: Democratic Services
4.  Total current budget for this head: £402k

5. Source of funding: Revenue Budget

Personnel

1. Number of staff (current and additional): 6
2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:

Legal

1. Legal Requirement: None:
2. Call-in: Not Applicable: Non-Executive reports are not subject to call-in

Procurement

1. Summary of Procurement Implications: Not Applicable

Property
1. Summary of Property Implications: Not Applicable

Carbon Reduction and Social Value

1. Summary of Carbon Reduction/Sustainability Implications: Not Applicable

Customer Impact

1. Estimated number of users or customers (current and projected): This report is intended
primarily for the benefit of Committee Members.

Ward Councillor Views

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Not Applicable
2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments: Not Applicable

2 Page 14



3.1.

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

COMMENTARY

Matters Outstanding from Previous Meetings

There are no matters outstanding from previous meetings.
Work Programme

Each PDS Committee determines its own work programme, balancing the roles of (i) pre-
decision scrutiny and holding the Executive to account, (ii) policy development and review and
(iii) external scrutiny. ERC PDS Committee has the additional role of providing a lead on
scrutiny issues and co-ordinating PDS work.

PDS Committees need to prioritise their key issues. The work programme also needs to allow
room for items that arise through the year, including Member requests, call-ins and referrals
from other Committees. Committees need to ensure that their workloads are realistic and
balanced, allowing sufficient time for important issues to be properly scrutinised. Members also
need to consider the most appropriate means to pursue each issue —the current overview and
scrutiny arrangements offer a variety of approaches, whether through a report to a meeting, a
time-limited working group review, a presentation, a select committee style meeting focused on
a single key issue, or another method.

Appendix 1 sets out the ERC PDS Committee Work Programme for 2024/25, including: the
provisional report title (or activity); the lead division; and Committee’s role. Committee is invited
to comment on the proposed schedule and suggest any changes it considers appropriate. Other
reports will be added to the 2024/25 Work Programme as items arise. In addition, there may
also be references from other committees, the Resources, Contracts and Commissioning
Portfolio Holder, or the Executive.

Sub-Committees and Working Groups

The Policy Development and Scrutiny Toolkit suggests that each Committee should aim to carry
out no more than two or three full scale reviews each year, and it offers guidance and
techniques for prioritising reviews. At a time of pressure on Member and officer resources it is
important that any additional work is carefully targeted at priority issues where improvements
can be achieved.

Non-Applicable Headings: | Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children,
Transformation/Policy Implications, Financial Implications,
Personnel Implications, Legal Implications, Procurement
Implications, Property Implications, Carbon
Reduction/Social Value Implications, Customer Impact,
Ward Councillor Views

Background Documents: Minutes of previous meetings
(Access via Contact Officer)

3 Page 15



APPENDIX 1

EXECUTIVE,RESOURCES & CONTRACTS PDS COMMITTEE
WORK PROGRAMME 2024/25

Meeting Date: 16 September

2024

Division

Committee Role

Matters Arising/Work Democratic Standard ltems
Programme/Forward Plan Services

Executive Agenda Various Pre-decision scrutiny
Capital Programme Monitoring - Finance Pre-decision scrutiny (PH)
1st Quarter 2024/25

Treasury Management Q1 Finance Pre-decision scrutiny (PH)

Scrutiny of the Leader - PDS Committee

Contract Register and Contracts Governance and PDS Committee

Database Contracts

Contracts Management Governance and PDS Committee
Contracts

Update on Free Speech Legal PDS Committee

Meeting Date: 10 October 2024

Division

Committee Role

Matters Arising/Work Democratic Standard ltems

Programme/Forward Plan Services

Executive Agenda Various Pre-decision scrutiny

Post-Completion Review of Oracle | Finance PDS Committee

Fusion Implementation

Section 106 Agreements: Update* | Planning and PDS Committee
Regeneration

Risk Register (Red Risks) Audit PDS Committee

Scrutiny of the Chief Executive Chief Execs PDS Committee

(including short written summary to
include an update on the
Transformation Programme)

Meeting Date: 25 November 2024

Division

Committee Role

Matters Arising/Work Democratic Standard ltems
Programme/Forward Plan Services
4

Page 16



Executive Agenda Various

Pre-decision scrutiny

Treasury Management — Quarter 2 | Finance
Performance 2024/25 & Mid-Year

Pre-decision scrutiny (PH)

Meeting Date: 20 January 2025 Division

Review

Insurance Fund — Annual Report Finance Pre-decision scrutiny (PH)

2023/24

Capital Programme Monitoring Q2. | Finance Pre-decision scrutiny (PH)

BT/ICT Contract Monitoring Report | IT PDS Committee —
Monitoring Report

Risk Register Audit PDS Committee

Committee Role

Commissioning & Contract
Management Portfolio Holder
Including Short Written Summa

Meeting Date: 10 February 2025 Division

Matters Arising/Work Democratic Standard ltems
Programme/Forward Plan Services
Executive Agenda Various Pre-decision scrutiny
Benefits Service Monitoring Report | Revenues & PDS Committee —
Benefits Monitoring Report
Revenues Service Monitoring Revenues & PDS Committee —
Report Benefits Monitoring Report
Exchequer Service - Contract Finance PDS Committee —
Performance Report Monitoring Report
Customer Services - Contract Customer Services | PDS Committee —
Performance Report Monitoring Report
Scrutiny of the Resources, N/A PDS Committee

Committee Role

Matters Arising/Work Democratic Standard ltems
Programme/Forward Plan Services
Executive Agenda Various Pre-decision scrutiny

Capital Programme Monitoring Q.3 | Finance

PH Pre-Decision Scrutiny

Annual Investment Strategy Finance
2023/24 and Quarter 3 Treasury
Management Performance

PH Decision/Council

Contracts Register and Contracts Governance and PDS Committee
Database Update Contracts

Scrutlny_ of The Leader (including N/A PDS Committee
short written summary)

Property Investment Update Property PDS Committee

Page 17



Risk Register (Red Risks)

Meeting Date: 24 March 2025

Audit

Division

PDS Committee

Committee Role

Matters Arising/Work Democratic
. Standard ltems

Programme/Forward Plan Services
Executive Agenda Various Pre-decision scrutiny
Scrutiny of the Chief Executive N/A PDS Committee
(including short written summary)
Annual PDS Report 2024/25 Dem_ocratlc PDS Committee

Services

*Part 2 (Exempt) Report
6

Page 18




6T abed

LONDON BOROUGHOF BROMLEY

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY AND PRIVATE EXECUTIVE DECISIONS PUBLISHED ON: 24 MAY 2024

PERIOD COVERED: May 2024 - August 2024
DATE FOR PUBLISHING NEXT FORWARD PLAN OF KEY AND PRIVATE EXECUTIVE DECISIONS: 20 AUGUST 2024

WHAT IS BEING WHO IS THE WHEN WILL HOW WILL THE HOW CAN YOU WILL THIS ITEM BE WHAT SUPPORT
DECIDED? DECISION THE CONSULTATION MAKE COMMENTS CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC | DOCUMENTS AND
MAKER? DECISION BE TAKE PLACE? ON THE DECISION OR IN PRIVATE? OTHER
MADE AND BEFORE IT IS INFORMATION
WHO WILL BE MADE? WILL BE
CONSULTED AVAILABLE?
BEFORE THE
DECISION IS
MADE?
COUNCIL
WEST WICKHAM Executive 15 July 2024 Meetings Contact Officer: Meeting in public Report and relevant
AFFORDABLE background
HOUSING SCHEME Council Renewal Alicia Egan documents
Recreation and Tel: 020 8313 4559
Housing PDS Alicia.Egan@bromley.
Committee and gov.uk
Executive
COUNCIL TAX LEVEL | Council 24 February Meetings Contact Officer: Meeting in public Report and relevant
2025/26 2025 background
Peter Turner documents
Executive, Tel: 020 8313 4668
PDS peter.turner@bromley.
Committees, gov.uk
business
community &
local residents
REVENUE BUDGET Council 24 February Meetings Contact Officer: Meeting in public Report and relevant
2025/26 2025 background
Peter Turner documents
Executive, Tel: 020 8313 4668
PDS peter.turner@bromley.
Committees, gov.uk
business

community and
local residents

9 Wa)| epuaby



0z abed

WHAT IS BEING WHO IS THE WHEN WILL HOW WILL THE HOW CAN YOU WILL THIS ITEM BE WHAT SUPPORT
DECIDED? DECISION THE CONSULTATION MAKE COMMENTS CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC DOCUMENTS AND
MAKER? DECISION BE TAKE PLACE? ON THE DECISION OR IN PRIVATE? OTHER
MADE AND BEFORE IT IS INFORMATION
WHO WILL BE MADE? WILL BE
CONSULTED AVAILABLE?
BEFORE THE
DECISION IS
MADE?
CAPITAL STRATEGY Council 24 February Meetings Contact Officer: Meetings in public Reports and
2025 TO 2029 2025 relevant
Peter Turner background
Executive, Tel: 020 8313 4668 documents.
PDS peter.turner@bromley.
Committees gov.uk
and key
stakeholders
TREASURY Council 24 February Meetings Contact Officer: Meeting in public Reports and
MANAGEMENT 2025 relevant
STRATEGY 2025/26 Peter Turner background
Executive, Tel: 020 8313 4668 documents
Resources and peter.turner@bromley.
Contracts PDS gov.uk
Committee
EXECUTIVE
ADULT SOCIAL CARE | Executive 10 July 2024 Meetings Contact Officer: Meeting in public Report and relevant
TRANSFORMATION - background
DIGITAL STRATEGY Adult Care and Heather Sinclair- documents
2024-34 Health PDS Constance
Committee

heather.sinclair-
constance@bromley.qg

ov.uk



mailto:peter.turner@bromley.gov.uk
mailto:peter.turner@bromley.gov.uk

TZ 9bed

WHAT IS BEING WHO IS THE WHEN WILL HOW WILL THE HOW CAN YOU WILL THIS ITEM BE WHAT SUPPORT
DECIDED? DECISION THE CONSULTATION MAKE COMMENTS CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC | DOCUMENTS AND
MAKER? DECISION BE TAKE PLACE? ON THE DECISION OR IN PRIVATE? OTHER
MADE AND BEFORE IT IS INFORMATION
WHO WILL BE MADE? WILL BE
CONSULTED AVAILABLE?
BEFORE THE
DECISION IS
MADE?
PERMISSION TO Executive 10 July 2024 Meetings Contact Officer: Meeting in Public Report and relevant
COMMENCE WITH background
THE PROCUREMENT Adult Care and Kelly Sylvester, documents
OF A DOMICILIARY Health PDS Channelle-Ghania Ali
CARE FRAMEWORK Committee and Tel: 020 8461 7653,
Executive kelly.sylvester@bromle
y.gov.uk, Channelle-
Ghania.Ali@bromley.qg
ov.uk
PROCEEDING TO Executive 10 July 2024 Meetings Contact Officer: Meeting in public Report and relevant
TENDER FOR A background
BLOCK PURCHASING Children, Aneesa Kaprie documents
CONTRACT FOR Education &
CHILDREN'S Families PDS Aneesa.kaprie@broml
RESIDENTIAL (BEDS) Committee ey.gov.uk
PLACEMENTS
MEETING THE NEEDS | Executive 10 July 2024 Meetings Contact Officer: Meeting in public Report and relevant
OF CHILDREN IN background
CARE: MARKET Children, Aneesa Kaprie documents
DEVELOPMENT OF Education &
RESIDENTIAL Families PDS Aneesa.kaprie@broml
PROVISION Committee ey.gov.uk
CHURCHILL COURT - [ Executive 10 July 2024 Meetings Contact Officer: Report is expected to be Report and relevant
LETTING STRATEGY considered in the public part background
Executive Darren Essex of the meetings with exempt documents

Resources and
Contracts PDS
Committee

darren.essex@bromley

material considered during
confidential proceedings.

.gov.uk




2z abed

WHAT IS BEING WHO IS THE WHEN WILL HOW WILL THE HOW CAN YOU WILL THIS ITEM BE WHAT SUPPORT
DECIDED? DECISION THE CONSULTATION MAKE COMMENTS CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC | DOCUMENTS AND
MAKER? DECISION BE TAKE PLACE? ON THE DECISION OR IN PRIVATE? OTHER
MADE AND BEFORE IT IS INFORMATION
WHO WILL BE MADE? WILL BE
CONSULTED AVAILABLE?
BEFORE THE
DECISION IS
MADE?
PROPERTY Executive 10 July 2024 Meetings Contact Officer: Report is expected to be Report and relevant
INVESTMENT considered in the public part background
REPORT Executive John Kulasek of the meetings with exempt documents
Resources and material considered during
Contracts PDS John.Kulasek@bromle | confidential proceedings.
Committee y.gov.uk
PROVISION OF Executive 10 July 2024 Meetings Contact Officer: Meeting in public Report and relevant
LIBRARY SERVICE - background
CONTRACT Renewal, Paula Young documents
PERFORMANCE Recreation and Tel: 020 8461 7281
Housing PDS Paula.Young@bromley
Committee .gov.uk
CONTRACT Executive 10 July 2024 Meetings Contact Officer: Meeting in Public Report and relevant
EXTENSION background
MECHANICAL & Executive and Graham Soars documents
ELECTRICAL Resources
REACTIVE REPAIRS PDS Graham.Soars @broml
AND MAINTENANCE Committee ey.gov.uk
ARBORICULTURAL Executive 10 July 2024 Meetings Contact Officer: Report is expected to be Report and relevant
SERVICES considered in the public part background
Environment Hugh Chapman of the meetings with exempt documents
and material considered during
Community Hugh.Chapman@brom | confidential proceedings.
Senices PDS ley.gov.uk
Committee




¢z abed

WHAT IS BEING WHO IS THE WHEN WILL HOW WILL THE HOW CAN YOU WILL THIS ITEM BE WHAT SUPPORT
DECIDED? DECISION THE CONSULTATION MAKE COMMENTS CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC | DOCUMENTS AND
MAKER? DECISION BE TAKE PLACE? ON THE DECISION OR IN PRIVATE? OTHER
MADE AND BEFORE IT IS INFORMATION
WHO WILL BE MADE? WILL BE
CONSULTED AVAILABLE?
BEFORE THE
DECISION IS
MADE?
OPTIONS FOR Executive 10 July 2024 Meetings Contact Officer: Meeting in public Report and relevant
FUTURE HIGHWAY background
MAINTENANCE Environment Garry Warner documents
CONTRACTS and Tel: 020 8313 4929
Community garry.warner@bromley
Senices PDS .gov.uk
Committee
DEPOT Executive 10 July 2024 Meetings Contact Officer: Report is expected to be Report and relevant
IMPROVEMENT considered in the public part background
WORKS UPDATE Environment Peter McCready of the meetings with exempt documents
and Tel: 020 8313 4942 material considered during
Community peter.mccready@brom | confidential proceedings.
Senices PDS ley.gov.uk
Committee
GATEWAY REPORT Executive 10 July 2024 Meetings Contact Officer: Meeting in public Report and relevant
FOR PROCUREMENT background
OF CONTRACTOR Renewal, Alicia Egan documents
FOR WORKS AT Recreation and Tel: 020 8313 4559
MANORFIELDS Housing PDS Alicia.Egan@bromley.
Committee gov.uk
EMPTY HOMES Executive 18 September | Meetings Contact Officer: Meeting in public Report and relevant

2024

Renewal
Recreation and
Housing PDS
Committee

Alicia Egan
Tel: 020 8313 4559
Alicia.Egan@bromley.

gov.uk

background
documents




vz abed

WHAT IS BEING WHO IS THE WHEN WILL HOW WILL THE HOW CAN YOU WILL THIS ITEM BE WHAT SUPPORT
DECIDED? DECISION THE CONSULTATION MAKE COMMENTS CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC | DOCUMENTS AND
MAKER? DECISION BE TAKE PLACE? ON THE DECISION OR IN PRIVATE? OTHER
MADE AND BEFORE IT IS INFORMATION
WHO WILL BE MADE? WILL BE
CONSULTED AVAILABLE?
BEFORE THE
DECISION IS
MADE?
GATEWAY 0 - Executive 18 September | Meetings Contact Officer: Report is expected to be Report and relevant
COMMISSIONING 2024 considered in the public part background
STRATEGY FOR Maya Vadgama of the meetings with exempt documents
TRANSPORT Adult Care and Tel: 0208 313 4740 material considered during
SERVICES PRIOR TO Health PDS Maya.Vadgama@brom | confidential proceedings.
PROCEEDING TO Committee and ley.gov.uk
PROCUREMENT Children,
Education and
Families PDS
Committee
OPTIONS FOR THE Executive 27 November Meetings Contact Officer: Report is expected to be Report and relevant
FUTURE DELIVERY 2024 considered in the public part background
OF PARKS Hannah Jackson of the meetings with exempt documents
MANAGEMENT AND Environment Tel: 0208 461 7690 material considered during
GROUNDS and Hannah.Jackson@bro confidential proceedings.
MAINTENANCE Community mley.gov.uk
SERVICES. Senices PDS
Committee
ADULT CARE & HEALTH PORTFOLIO
CONTRACT Director of Adult July 2024 Email Contact Officer: N/A Gateway Officer
EXTENSION - Social Care Report

DEMENTIA POST
DIAGNOSIS SUPPORT
SERVICES (DEMENTIA
HUB).

Bola Bakare

Tel: 0208461 7614
bola.bakare@bromley.
gov.uk

CHILDREN, EDUCATION & FAMILIES PORTFOLIO

ENVIRONMENT




Gz abed

WHAT IS BEING
DECIDED?

WHO IS THE
DECISION
MAKER?

WHEN WILL
THE
DECISION BE
MADE AND
WHO WILL BE
CONSULTED
BEFORE THE
DECISION IS
MADE?

HOW WILL THE
CONSULTATION
TAKE PLACE?

HOW CAN YOU
MAKE COMMENTS
ON THE DECISION

BEFORE IT IS

MADE?

WILL THIS ITEM BE

CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC

OR IN PRIVATE?

WHAT SUPPORT
DOCUMENTS AND
OTHER
INFORMATION
WILL BE
AVAILABLE?

PUBLIC PROTECTION & ENFORCEMENT PORTFOLIO

RENEWAL, RECREATION & HOUSING PORTFOLIO

LIBRARY
OPERATIONAL
PROPERTY REVIEW

Portfolio Holder for
Renewal,
Recreation and
Housing

Not before 19
June 2024

Renewal
Recreation and
Housing PDS
Committee

Meetings

Contact Officer:

Alicia Egan

Tel: 020 8313 4559
Alicia.Egan@bromley.
gov.uk

Meeting in public

Report and relevant
background
documents

RESOURCES, COMMISSIONING & CONTRAC

T MANAGEMENT PORTFOLIO

CLEANING, Portfolio Holder for | Not before 24 Meetings Contact Officer: Meeting in public Report and relevant
CARETAKING AND Resources, June 2024 background
WASHROOM Commissioning and Peggy Umezuruike documents
SERVICES Contracts Executive,
CONTRACTS Management Resources and pegay.umezuruike@br

Contracts PDS omley.gov.uk

Committee
EXTENSION OF Portfolio Holder for | Not before 24 Meetings Contact Officer:

ROYAL MAIL
CONTRACT

Resources,
Commissioning and
Contracts
Management

June 2024

Executive,
Resources and
Contracts PDS
Committee

Peggy Umezuruike

pegqgy.umezuruike@br
omley.gov.uk




WHAT IS BEING
DECIDED?

WHO IS THE
DECISION
MAKER?

WHEN WILL
THE
DECISION BE
MADE AND
WHO WILL BE
CONSULTED
BEFORE THE
DECISION IS
MADE?

HOW WILL THE
CONSULTATION
TAKE PLACE?

HOW CAN YOU
MAKE COMMENTS
ON THE DECISION

BEFORE IT IS

MADE?

WILL THIS ITEM BE

CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC

OR IN PRIVATE?

WHAT SUPPORT
DOCUMENTS AND
OTHER
INFORMATION
WILL BE
AVAILABLE?

PROCUREMENT OF
VARIOUS CLEANING
SERVICES IN
CHILDREN AND
FAMILY CENTRES

Portfolio Holder for
Resources,
Commissioning and
Contracts
Management

Not before 24
June 2024

Contact Officer:
Peggy Umezuruike

pegqay.umezuruike@br
omley.gov.uk

TRANSPORT, HIGHWAYS AND OPEN SPACES

oz abed

London Borough of Bromley: 020 8464 3333 www.bromley.gov.uk

Contact Officer: Philippa Gibbs, Chief Executive’s Department: 020 8461 7638, philippa.gibbs@bromley.gov.uk



http://www.bromley.gov.uk/

Agenda Iltem 8a

Report No. London Borough of Bromley
FSD24049

PART 1-PUBLIC

Decision Maker: Resources, Commissioning and Contracts Management
Portfolio Holder
Council
For pre-decision scrutiny by Executive, Resources and Contracts PDS
Date: Committee on 8t July 2024
Council on 15t July 2024
Decision Type: Non-Urgent Executive Non-Key
Title: TREASURY MANAGEMENT — ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24
Contact Officer: Abdul Munim, Principal Accountant

Tel: 02083134334 E-mail: Abdul.Munim@bromley.gov.uk

Chief Officer: Peter Turner, Director of Finance
Tel: 02083134668 E-mail: Peter.Turner@bromley.gov.uk

Ward: All

1. Reason for report

1.1. This report summarises treasury management activity during the fourth quarter of 2023/24 and
includes the Treasury Management Annual Report for 2023/24, which is required to be reported
to full Council. The report ensures that the Council is implementing best practice in accordance
with the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management.

1.2. Investments as at 315'March 2024 totalled £326.9m and there was no outstanding external
borrowing. For information and comparison, the balance of investments stood at £370.1m as at
31st December 2023 and £344.0m as at 315t March 2023.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1. The Resources, Commissioning and Contracts Management Portfolio Holder is
requested to:

(@) note the Treasury Management Annual Report for 2023/24; and
(b) approve the actual prudential indicators within the report.

2.2. Council is requested to:

(@) note the Treasury Management Annual Report for 2023/24; and

(b) approve the actual prudential indicators within the report.

1 Page 27


mailto:Abdul.Munim@bromley.gov.uk
mailto:Peter.Turner@bromley.gov.uk

Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children

1. Summary of Impact: None

Corporate Policy

1. Policy Status: Existing policy. To maintain appropriate levels of risk, particularly security and
liquidity, whilst seeking to achieve the highest rate of return on investments.

2. Making Bromley Even Better Priority: To manage our resources well, providing value for money,
and efficient and effective services for Bromley's residents.

Financial
1. Costof proposal: N/A
Ongoing costs: N/A

Budget head/performance centre: Interest on balances

> w N

Total current budget for this head: Net interest earnings of £14.7m achieved against a budget of
£9.8m for 2023/24 (a surplus of £4.9m.) The budget for 2024/25 is £12.0m.

5.  Source of funding: Net investment income

Personnel
1. Number of staff (current and additional): 0.25 fte

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: 9 hours per week

Legal

1. Legal Requirement: Non-statutory - Government guidance.

2. Callin: Call-inis applicable

Procurement

1. Summary of Procurement Implications: N/A

Customer Impact

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): N/A

Ward Councillor Views

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? N/A

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments: N/A

2 Page 28



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

COMMENTARY

Under the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management, the Council
is required, as a minimum, to approve an annual treasury strategy in advance of the year, a mid-
year review report and an annual report following the year comparing actual activity to the
strategy. In practice, the Director of Finance has reported quarterly on treasury management
activity for many years, as well as reporting the annual strategy before the year and the annual
report after the year-end.

This report includes details of investment performance in the final quarter of 2023/24 and the
annual report for the whole of the 2023/24 financial year.

The 2023/24 Annual Treasury Strategy, including the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy
statement and prudential indicators, was originally approved by Council in February 2023.

Changes in the regulatory environment have placed a much greater onus on Members to
undertake the review and scrutiny of treasury management policy and activities. This report is
important in that respect as it provides details of the actual position for treasury activities and
highlights compliance with the Council’s policies previously approved by Members.

The Council has monies available for treasury management investment as a result of the
following:

) Positive cash flow;
. Receipts (mainly from Government) received in advance of payments being made;
. Capital receipts not yet utilised to fund capital expenditure;

. Provisions made in the accounts for liabilities e.g. provision for outstanding legal cases
which have not yet materialised;

. General and earmarked reserves retained by the Council.

Some of the monies identified above are short term and investment of these needs to be highly
‘liquid’, particularly if it relates to a positive cash flow position which can change in the future.
Future monies available for treasury management investment will depend on the budget position
of the Council and whether the Council needs to substantially run down capital receipts and
reserves. Against a backdrop of unprecedented cuts in Government funding which will require
the Council to make revenue savings to balance the budget in future years, there is a likelihood
that such actions may be required in the medium term, which will reduce the monies available
for investment.

The Council has also identified an alternative investment strategy relating to property
investment. To date, this has resulted in actual and planned acquisitions which generated a
cumulative total of £31.8m between 2016/17 and 2021/22, £4.5m in 22/23 and £6.4m in 2023/24.
This is based on a longer-term investment timeframe of at least 3 to 5 years and ensures that
the monies available can attract higher yields over the longer term.

A combination of lower risk investment relating to treasury management and a separate
investment strategy in the form of property acquisitions (generating higher yields and risks)
provides a balanced investment strategy. Any future investment decisions will also need to
consider the high likelihood that interest rates will decrease. The available resources for the
medium term, given the ongoing reductions in Government funding, will need to be regularly
reviewed.

3 Page 29



3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

Treasury performance in the quarter ended 315t March 2024

Borrowing: The Council’s healthy cashflow position continues and, other than some short-term
borrowing at the end of 2015/16, no borrowing has been required for a number of years.
However, it is highly likely that borrowing will be required for any further capital expenditure not
funded by capital receipts or grants unless the financial position of the Council significantly
improves in the medium and longer term. This also recognises the limited ability of the Council
to increase its reserves compared with previous years. In the context of high interest rates, the
timing of any such borrowing will be crucial.

Investments: the following table sets out details of investment activity during the fourth quarter
and the full financial year:

Qtr ended 31/03/24 2023/24 full year
Deposits Ave Rate Deposits Ave Rate
£m % £m %
Balance of "core" investments b/f 220.00 5.76 230.00 2.97
New investments made in period 25.00 5.64 230.00 5.82
Investments redeemed in period -50.00 5.16 -265.00 3.29
"Core" investments at end of period 195.00 5.90 195.00 5.90
Money Market Funds 18.80 5.26 18.80 5.00
CCLA Property Fund* 40.00 2.44 40.00 1.10
Multi-Asset Income Funds* 40.00 6.44 40.00 4.22
Schroders Diversified Growth Fund 20.00 11.67 20.00 8.33
Project Beckenham Loan 3.08 6.00 3.08 6.00
Sovereign Bonds 10.00 6.61 10.00 6.61
"Alternative" investments at end of period 131.88 5.85 131.88 3.52
Total Investments at end of Period 326.88 5.88 326.88 4.94

* The rates show nin here are the total return (ie. the dividend income plus the change in capital value). A more detailed breakdow n of
the rates for these investments is shown in the relevant paragraphs

Details of the outstanding investments at 315t March 2024 are shown in maturity date order in
Appendix 2 and by individual counterparty in Appendix 3. The return on the new “core”
investments placed during the fourth quarter of 2023/24 was 5.90% (5.76% during the third
quarter).

Reports to previous meetings have highlighted the fact that options with regards to the
reinvestment of maturing deposits have become limited in recent years following bank credit
rating downgrades. Changes to lending limits and eligibility criteria, as well as the introduction
of pooled funds and housing associations have alleviated this to some extent. Following the
succession of increases in the Bank of England base rate to the current rate of 5.25%,
counterparty rates were generally in excess of 6% for a one-year deposit during the first half of
2023/24. However, interest rates are expected to start reducing during 2024/25, so one-year
rates are around 5% at the time of writing this report.

The chart in Appendix 1 shows total investments at quarter-end dates back to 15t April 2004 and
shows how available funds had increased steadily over the years, peaking in December 2021
and have since started reducing.

4 Page 30



3.14

3.15

3.18

3.19

3.20

3.21

3.22

Interest rate forecast (provided by Link Group)

The current Bank of England base rate is 5.25%, following an increase at the September 2023
meeting of the Monetary Policy Committee. The market believes rates will remain at this rate
until mid Q2 before decreasing to 4.75%. Link has stated that they expect MPC will keep Bank
Rate at 5.25% until the second half of 2024, to combat on-going inflationary and wage pressures,
even if they have dampened somewhat of late. They do not think that the MPC will increase
Bank Rates above 5.25%.

Link Group Interest Rate View 25.03.24

Mar-24 Jun-24 Sep-24 Dec-24 Mar-26 Jun-25 Sep-25 Dec-25 Mar-26 Jun-26 Sep-26 Dec-26 Mar-27

BANK RATE 5.25 5.25 4.75 4.25 3.75 3.25 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
3 month ave earnings 5.30 5.30 4.80 4.30 3.80 3.30 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
6 month ave earnings 5.20 5.10 4.60 4.10 3.70 330 310 310 3.10 3.10 3.10 3.10 310

12 month ave eamings 5.00 4.90 4.40 3.90 3.60 3.20 3.10 .10 3.10 3.10 .10 3.20 3.20

Syr PWLB 4.50 4.40 4.30 4.20 4.10 4.00 3.80 .70 3.60 3.60 3.50 3.50 3.50

10 yr PWLB 470 450 4.40 4.30 4.20 410  4.00 3.90 3.80 3.70 3.70 3.70 .70

25 yr PWLB 5.20 5.10 4.90 4.80 4.60 4.40 4.30 4.20 4.20 4.10 4.10 4.10 4.10

50 yr PWLB 500 490 4.70 4.60 4.40 420 410 4.00  4.00 3.90 3.90 3.90 3.90

The following table, also provided by Link, is included here for context and shows the scope
and timing of the changes in forecast.

Bank Rate
25.03.24

Mar-24  Jun-24 Mar-25

Sep-24  Dec-24 Jun-26  Sep-26 Dec-26  Mar-27
325 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00

Change 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Money Market Funds

The Council currently has five AAA rated Money Market Fund accounts, with Federated Prime
Rate, Aberdeen Standard (formerly known as Ignis), Insight, Fidelity and Legal & General, all of
which have a maximum investment limit of £15m. The LGIM, Aberdeen Standard and Federated
Funds currently offer the best rate at around 5.3%.

The total balance held in Money Market Funds has varied during the year to date moving from
£0m as at 315t March 2023 to £36.1m as at 30" September 2023, £37.0m as at 315tDecember
2023 and down to £18.8m as at 315t March 2024. The Money Market Funds usually offer the
lowest interest of all eligible investment vehicles with the exception of the Government Debt
Management Account Deposit Facility. However, they are the most liquid, with funds able to be
redeemed up until midday for same-day settlement.

Daily balances in the Money Market Funds vary considerably and balances tend to be managed
higher during February and March to provide a cashflow buffer when the Council’'s income from
Council Tax and Business Rates is significantly lower than the rest of the year. Occasionally,
these balances are inflated to ensure that the Council has sufficient liquidity to cover any ‘non-
standard’ expenditure such as significant capital expenditure.

Housing Associations
Deposits have previously been made with Housing Associations where they had attracted
favourable rates. However at the time of drafting this report, the Council holds no investments

in Housing Associations as the rates offered have been less competitive than other fixed term
deposit opportunities.

Loan to Project Beckenham

On 26™ June 2017, Council approved the inclusion in the strategy of a secured loan to Project
Beckenham, relating to the provision of temporary accommodation for the homeless, that had

5 Page 31



3.23

3.24

3.25

3.26

3.27

previously been agreed to be advanced from the Investment Fund. A loan of £2.3m was made
in June 2017, at a rate of 6% (increasing to 7.5% if the loan to value ratio exceeds a specified
value). £1.0m of this loan was re-paid during 2019/20, leaving a balance of £1.3m as at the end
of March 2020. Advances totalling £2.45m were made in 2020/21 and 2021/22 leaving a balance
of £3.75m. A further five loan advances totalling £1.2m were made in 2022/23 and repayments
of £960k were received in November and December leaving the balance as at 315t March 2023
at £4.0m. In May, September and November 2023, repayments totaling £0.91m were made,
leaving the balance as at 315tMarch 2024 at £3.08m.

Sovereign bonds

During November 2021, it was agreed that the Council’s treasury management strategy be
amended to allow investment in sterling-denominated sovereign bonds, subject to a maximum
of duration of 3 years and an exposure limit of £25m. On 30" November 2021, an investment of
£10m was made for two years at a rate of 1.84% and a further investment of £10m was invested
on 15t August 2023 for two years at a rate of 6.61%.

Pooled investment schemes

In September 2013, the Portfolio Holder and, subsequently, Council approved the inclusion of
collective (pooled) investment schemes as eligible investment wvehicles in the Council's
Investment Strategy with an overall limit of £25m and a maximum duration of 5 years. The limit
was subsequently increased to £40m by Council in October 2015, £80m in June 2017 and
£100m in December 2017. Such investments would require the approval of the Director of
Finance in consultation with the Resources Portfolio Holder.

Until March 2018, accounting rules required that the change in capital value of these investments
be held in the Available for Sale Financial Assets Reserve, and only recognised in revenue on
the sale of the investment. In year projections for interest on balances therefore only reflected
the dividends from these investments.

However, from 2018/19 onwards, local authorities have been required to account for financial
instruments in accordance with IFRS9. One of the results of this is that changes in the capital
value of pooled fund investments are recognised in revenue in-year. Subsequently, MHCLG
issued regulations providing a statutory override to reverse the impact of IFRS9 on the Council’s
General Fund, which came into force in December 2018 and would apply until 315t March 2023,
after which it was intended for movements in value to be recognised in year. Following
consultation, DLUHC announced in January that the override would be extended for a further 2
years to 315tMarch 2025, after which the standard will be applied fully.

Due to the regulations being time limited and the potentially volatile nature of these investments,
interest/dividend earnings above a determined threshold have been set aside in an earmarked
Income Equalisation reserve. This will protect the Council against unexpected variations in the
capital value of these investments and any timing issues arising from the expiry of the statutory
override. Details are shown in the following table:

FY Threshold Bal bfwd Set aside Bal cfwd

% £'000 £'000 £'000
2017/18 2.5 0 1,085 1,085
2018/19 2.5 1,085 1,509 2,594
2019/20 2.5 2,594 1,196 3,790
2020/21 2.0 3,790 1,520 5,310
2021/22 2.0 5,310 1,676 6,986
2022/23 2.0 6,986 2,044 9,030

6 Page 32



3.28

3.29

3.30

2023/24 2.0 9,030 4,211 13,241

CCLA Property Fund

Following consultation between the Director of Finance and the Resources Portfolio Holder, an
account was opened in January 2014 with the CCLA Local Authorities’ Property Fund and an
initial depositof £5m was made, followed by further deposits of £5m in July 2014, £5m in March
2015, £10m in October 2015, £5m in October 2016 and £10m in October 2017. The investment
in the CCLA Fund is viewed as a medium to long-term investment and dividends are paid
guarterly. A breakdown of dividends earned and capital growth is provided in the table below.

Annualised netreturn Dividend Capital Total Return
% gain/(loss) % | %

01/02/14- 31/03/14 4.29 -29.64 -25.35
01/04/14 - 31/03/15 5.03 3.44 8.47
01/04/15 - 31/03/16 5.02 1.63 6.65
01/04/16 - 31/03/17 4.55 -2.50 2.05
01/04/17 - 31/03/18 4.58 2.41 6.99
01/04/18 - 31/03/19 4.46 1.57 6.03
01/04/19 - 31/03/20 4.45 -3.68 0.77
01/04/20 - 31/03/21 4.30 -0.71 3.60
01/04/21 - 31/03/22 3.82 17.29 21.12
01/04/22 - 31/03/23 4.19 -19.09 -14.90
01/04/23 - 31/03/24 4.86 -3.76 1.10
Cumulative return 4.45 -0.85 3.59

The annualised fund return for the year to 315t March 2024 was capital decline of -3.76% and
dividends paid of 4.86%, resulting in a total return of 1.10%. Since inception, dividends paid
have averaged 4.45% per annum and the capital value has decreased by -0.85% per annum
resulting in a net annual return of 3.59%.

Multi-Asset Income Fund

Following approval by Council in June 2017, the limit for pooled investment schemes was
increased to £80m and an investment of £30m was made on 12" July 2017 in the Fidelity Multi-
Asset Income Fund, following the agreement of the Resources, Commissioning and Contracts
Management Portfolio Holder. A subsequent investment of £10m was made on 30" December
2019.

Annualised net return Dividend Capital Total Return
% Gain/(Loss) %
%
12/07/17 - 31/03/18 4.24 -6.02 -1.78
01/04/18 - 31/03/19 4.26 1.38 5.64
01/04/19 - 31/03/20 4.37 -11.81 -7.44
01/04/20 - 31/03/21 4.38 9.52 13.9
01/04/21 - 31/03/22 4.16 -4.98 -0.82
01/04/22 - 31/03/23 4.17 -12.08 -7.92

7 Page 33



3.31

3.32

3.33

3.34

3.35

01/04/23 - 31/03/24 4.88 -0.66 4.22
Cumulative Return 4.36 -3.32 1.04

The annualised fund return for the year to 315t March 2024 was a capital decline of -0.66% and
dividends paid of 4.88%, resulting in a total return of 4.22%. Since inception, dividends paid
have averaged 4.36% per annum and the capital value has declined by -3.32% per annum
resulting in a net annual return of 1.04%.

Global Diversified Income Fund

During 2020/21 a new investment was made in the Global Diversified Income Fund managed
by Schroders. The aim of this fund is to provide long-term capital growth and income of 3-5%
per annum. An initial investment of £10m was made in March 2021, followed by a further £10m
in April 2021. A breakdown of dividends earned and capital growth is provided in the table.

Annualised net return | Dividend Capital gain/(loss) | Total Return
% % %
01/03/21 - 31/03/21 245 2.43 4.88
01/04/21 - 31/03/22 2.96 -3.15 -0.19
01/04/22 - 31/03/23 3.50 -8.38 -4.88
01/04/23 - 31/03/24 4.04 4.29 8.33
Cumulative return 3.49 -2.34 1.15

The annualised fund return for the year to 315t March 2024 was a capital increase of 4.29% and
dividends paid of 4.04%, resulting in a total return of 8.33%. Since inception, dividends paid
have averaged 3.49% per annum and the capital value has declined by -2.34% per annum
resulting in a net annual return of 1.15%.

Property acquisition scheme (Meadowship Homes)

As agreed by the Executive in 2021, the Council has entered into a joint venture with Orchard &
Shipman (since acquired by Pinnacle) for a property acquisition scheme. This involved the
formation of an LLP between the Council and Orchard & Shipman. As part of this scheme, the
Council will make a £20m loan (in tranches) for 50 years. Annual repayments will start from year
3 of 1.6% (E320k) per annum and increasing annually by CPI (collared at 0-4%). As the Effective
Interest Rate on the loan is dependent on CPI, itis possible that this will be lower than the rate
the Council might achieve through treasury management investments, so there may be a net
loss of interest income. Phase 2 of the scheme was approved in July 2022, involving a further
loan of £15m on similar repayment terms to the initial scheme. The loans themselves are not
counted as treasury management in accordance with the Capital Financing Regulations.

Actual prudential indicators for 2023/24

The old capital control system was replaced in April 2004 by a prudential system based largely
on self-regulation by local authorities themselves. At the heart of the system is The Prudential
Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities, developed by CIPFA. The Code requires the
Council to set a number of prudential indicators designed to monitor and control capital
expenditure, financing and borrowing. The indicators for 2023/24 were approved by the
Executive and the Council in February 2023. Appendix 4 sets out the actual performance in
2023/24 against those indicators.

Economic background during 2023/24 (provided by Link Asset Services)
8 Page 34



3.36

3.37

3.38

3.39

5.1

Further information on the economic background is included as Appendix 5.

Revised Treasury Management and Prudential Codes

During December 2021 CIPFA published arevised Prudential Code (Prudential Code for Capital
Finance in Local Authorities) and Treasury Management Code (Treasury Management in the
Public Services Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes). The requirements of the
revised Codes, to the extent to which they apply to the Council, have been incorporated into the
Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy as approved by
Council in February 2023.

Regulatory framework, risk and performance

The Council’s treasury management activities are regulated by a variety of professional codes,
statutes and guidance:

e The Local Government Act 2003 (‘the Act’) which provides the powers to borrow and invest
as well as providing controls and limits on this activity

e The Act permits the Secretary of State to set limits either on the Council or nationally on all
local authorities restricting the amount of borrowing that may be undertaken (although no
restrictions have been made to date)

e Statutory Instrument (SI) 3146 2003, as amended, develops the controls and powers within
the Act

e The Sl requires the Council to undertake any borrowing activity with regard to the CIPFA
Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities

e The Sl also requires the Council to operate the overall treasury function with regard to the
CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the Public Services

e Under the Act, DLUHC has issued Investment Guidance to structure and regulate the
Council's investment activities

e Under section 238(2) of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007,
the Secretary of State has taken powers to issue guidance on accounting practices.
Guidance on Minimum Revenue Provision was issued under this section on 8" November
2007.

The Council has complied with all of the above relevant statutory and regulatory requirements,
which limit the levels of risk associated with its treasury management activities. In particular, its
adoption and implementation of both the Prudential Code and the Code of Practice for Treasury
Management means that its capital expenditure is prudent, affordable and sustainable and its
treasury practices demonstrate a low-risk approach.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

In line with government guidance, the Council’s policy is to seek to achieve the highest rate of
return on investments whilst maintaining appropriate levels of risk, particularly security and

liquidity.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that cash raised

during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of the treasury management operation is to
ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with cash being available when it is needed.

9 Page 35



5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

6.2

Surplus monies are invested in low-risk counterparties or instruments commensurate with the
Council's low risk appetite, providing adequate liquidity initially before considering investment
return.

The provisional outturn for net interest on investments in 2023/24 was £14.7m compared to the
budget of £9.8m, due to the continued high Bank of England base rate and high level of balances
available for investment resulting in higher level of interest earned on the fixed deposits, money
market funds and pooled funds.

The budget for 2023/24 has been set at £12.03m. This reflects an expected reduction in
balances available for investment as a result of the utilisation of capital receipts and
grants/contributions as well as earmarked revenue reserves. The Bank of England base rate is
currently at 5.25% and it is expected to decrease in 2024/25 which will in turn reduce
counterparty rates. There is some uncertainty as to how much the rates will reduce meaning we
cannot be fully certain on the amount of investment return that will be achieved on the entire
portfolio.

The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the Council’s
capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the Council. Although
the Council does not currently borrow to finance its general fund capital spending plans, officers
still plan and forecast the longer-term cash flow position in order to ensure that the Council can
meet its capital spending obligations and that it maintains balances (working capital) at a prudent
and sustainable level.

The Council’'s Treasury Management Strategy and day-to-day operations of the treasury
function are informed by our professional adviser, Link Group. It advises the Council on
counterparties, investment and borrowing options, and risk management.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Under Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Section 151 Officer has statutory
duties in relation to the financial administration and stewardship of the authority, including
securing effective arrangements for treasury management.

This report fulfils the requirements of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy’s
Treasury Management and Prudential Codes of Practice and Statutory Guidance on Local
Government Investments.

Non-applicable sections: | Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children, Personnel, Legal
and Procurement Implications

Background documents: | CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2021

(access via Contact CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local
Officer) Authorities 2021

DLUHC Guidance on Investments
External advice from Link Group

10 Page 36



APPENDIX 1

TOTALINVESTMENT PORTOFOLIO

500.0

450.0

400.0

350.0

300.0

w3y

250.0

200.0

150.0

100.0

ve-JeN

€C-IeN

cC-JeN

T¢-J1eN

0c-1eN

6T-1eIN

8T-1eN

LT-1BN

9T-IeIN

ST-JeN

v1-1eN

€T-1eN

ZT-JeN

TT1-41eN

0T-JeN

60-1eN

80-1eIN

LO-1eN

90-1eN

SO-JeN

v0-1eIN

50.0
0.0

Page 37

APPENDIX 2



3¢ abed

INVESTMENTS HELD AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

APPENDIX 2

Fitch Moodys S&P Fitch Moodys S&P

Maturity  Rate of Long | Short | Long | Short | Long | Short | Long | Short | Long |Short| Long Short

Counterparty Start Date Date Interest  Amount Term | Term | Term | Term | Term | Term | Term | Term | Term |Term| Term | Term
% £m
FIXED DEPOSITS
Ratings at time of Investment Ratings as at March 2024
CLOSE BROTHERS 20/04/2023 19/04/2024 5.00000  10.0 A F2 Aa3 P-1
GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL BANKS 21/04/2023 19/04/2024 4.93000  10.0 A+ F1 Al P-1 A+ Al A+ F1 Al P-1 A+ A-1
NATIONAL BANK OF KUWAIT (INTERNATIONAL) - LONDON 24/05/2023 22/05/2024  5.31000 5.0 A+ F1 A Al A+ F1 A A-1
NATIONAL BANK OF KUWAIT (INTERNATIONAL) - LONDON 14/07/2023 12/07/2024  6.65000  10.0 A+ F1 A Al A+ F1 A A-1
NATIONAL WESTMINSTER BANK 19/07/2023 18/07/2024  6.19000 10.0 A+ F1 Al P-1 A+ A-1 A+ F1 Al P-1 A+ A-1
LANDESBANK HESSEN-THUERINGEN GIROZENTRALE (HELABA 21/07/2023 19/07/2024 6.20000  15.0 A+ F1+ Aa3 P-1 A+ F1+ Aa2  P-1
AL RAYAN BANK 26/07/2023 24/07/2024  6.05000 10.0 Al P-1 Al P-1
FIRST ABU DHABI BANK PJSC 27/07/2023 26/07/2024 6.28000  15.0 AA- F1+ Aa3 P-1 AA- A-1+ AA- F1+ Aa3  P-1 AA- A-1+
QATAR NATIONAL BANK SAQ 28/07/2023 26/07/2024  6.37000 5.0 A F1 Aa3 P-1 A+ A-1 A F1 Aa3 P-1 A+ A-1
PRINCIPALITY BUILDING SOCIETY- CARDIFF 28/07/2023 26/07/2024 5.95000  10.0 BBB+ F2 Baal P-2 BBB+ F2 Baal P-2
EAST HERTFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 02/02/2024 02/08/2024  5.70000 5.0 N/A N/A
CLOSE BROTHERS 16/08/2023 15/08/2024  6.20000  10.0 A F2 Aa3 P-1
NATIONAL WESTMINSTER BANK 24/08/2023 22/08/2024  6.07000 10.0 A+ F1 Al P-1 A+ A-1 A+ F1 Al P-1 A+ A-1
SANTANDER 24/08/2023 27/08/2024 6.10000  10.0 A+ F1 Al P-1 A Al A+ F1 Al P-1 A A-1
EAST HERTFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 29/02/2024 30/08/2024  5.70000 5.0 N/A N/A
CAMBRIDGESHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 04/12/2023 04/09/2024 5.65000  10.0 N/A N/A
CLOSE BROTHERS 27/10/2023 25/10/2024  5.75000  10.0 A- F2 Aa3 P-1
AL RAYAN BANK 30/10/2023 30/10/2024 5.90000  10.0 Al P-1 Al P-1
QATAR NATIONAL BANK SAQ 01/12/2023 29/11/2024 5.90000  10.0 A F1 Aa3 P-1 A+ Al A F1 Aa3  P-1 A+ A1
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 13/02/2024 11/02/2025 5.50000  10.0 N/A N/A
DOVER DISTRICT COUNCIL 19/02/2024 19/02/2025 5.80000 5.0 N/A N/A
*Close Brothers ratings have been downgraded as at February 2024 and therefore removed from Link
Group credit rating list.

TOTAL FIXED INVESTMENTS 195.0
OTHER FUNDS
FIDELITY MONEY MARKET FUND 0.0
ABERDEEN -STANDARD LIFE (IGNIS) LIQUIDITY FUND 0.0
INSIGHT STERLING LIQUIDITY FUND 0.0
LGIM STERLING LIQUIDITY FUND 13.8
FEDERATED (Hermes) STERLING LIQUIDITY FUND 5.0
CCLA LOCAL AUTHORITY PROPERTY FUND 30/01/2014 40.0
SCHRODERS 12/07/2017 20.0
FIDELITY MULTI-ASSET INCOME FUND 01/03/2021 40.0
SPRING CAPITAL LOAN 09/06/2017 31
SOVEREIGN BONDS 01/08/2023 01/08/2025 6.61000  10.0
TOTAL INVESTMENTS 326.9




INVESTMENTS HELD AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

UK BANKS

NATWEST BANK PLC
NATWEST BANK PLC

SANTANDER PLC UK

CLOSE BROTHERS LTD

CLOSE BROTHERS LTD

CLOSE BROTHERS LTD

GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL BANK

AL RAYAN BANK PLC - LONDON
AL RAYAN BANK PLC - LONDON

NATIONAL BANK OF KUWAIT (INTERNATIONAL) - LONDON
NATIONAL BANK OF KUWAIT (INTERNATIONAL) - LONDON

UK BUILDING SOCIETIES
PRINCIPALITY BUILDING SOCIETY

OVERSEAS BANKS
QATAR NATIONAL BANK
QATAR NATIONAL BANK

FIRST ABU DHABI

LANDESBANK HESSEN-THUERINGEN GIROZENTRALE (HELABA)

LOCAL AUTHORITIES
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

CAMBRIDESHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

EAST HERTFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
EAST HERTFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

DOVER DISTRICT COUNCIL

OTHER INVESTMENTS

LGIM STERLING LIQUIDITY FUND

FEDERATED (PRIME RATE) STERLING LIQUIDITY FUND
CCLA LOCAL AUTHORITY PROPERTY FUND

FIDELITY - MULTI ASSET INCOME FUND

SCHRODERS

SPRING CAPITAL LOAN

SOVEREIGN BONDS

TOTAL INVESTMENTS

Start Date
19/07/2023
24/08/2023
24/08/2023
20/04/2023
16/08/2023
27/10/2023

21/04/2023

26/07/2023
30/10/2023

24/05/2023

14/07/2023

28/07/2023

28/07/2023

01/12/2023

21/07/2023

21/07/2023

13/02/2024

04/12/2023

02/02/2024
29/02/2024

19/02/2024

30/01/2014
12/07/2017
01/03/2021
09/06/2017

01/08/2023

Maturity Date
18/07/2024
22/08/2024
27/08/2024
19/04/2024
15/08/2024
25/10/2024

19/04/2024

24/07/2024
30/10/2024

22/05/2024
12/07/2024
26/07/2024
26/07/2024
29/11/2024
19/07/2024

19/07/2024

11/02/2025
04/09/2024

02/08/2024
30/08/2024

19/02/2025

01/08/2025

Rate of
Interest
%

6.19000

6.07000

6.10000

5.00000

6.20000

5.75000

4.93000

6.05000
5.90000

5.31000

6.65000

5.95000

6.37000

5.90000

6.20000

6.20000

5.50000

5.65000

5.70000
5.70000

5.80000

6.00000

6.61000

Amount Total
£m £m
10
10 20
10 10
10
10
10 30
10 10
10
10 20
5
10 15
10 10
5
10 15
15 15
15 15
10 10
10 10
5
5 10
5 5
13.8 13.8
5.0 5.0
40 40
40 40
20 20
3.1 3.1
10 10
326.9 326.9

Page 39

Limit
£m

80

20

30

20

20

20

10

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15
15

APPENDIX 3

Remaining
£m

60

10

10

10

1.2
10.0



APPENDIX 4

Prudential and treasury indicators 2023/24

Prudential and Treasury Indicators are relevant for the purposes of setting an integrated treasury
management strategy and require the approval of the Council. The table below shows the actual
performance in relation to the indicators in 2023/24 and compares the outturn in 2023/24 with the
original estimates approved in February 2023. Further details on capital expenditure outturn will be
reported to the Executive in July 2024.

The Council is also required to indicate if it has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury
Management. The Code (published in 2009 and updated in 2011, 2017 and then again in 2021) was

adopted by full Council on 15 February 2010.

Prudential indicators 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2023/24
Actual | Estimate | Actual
Total capital expenditure £21.0m| £59.8m £50.2m
Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Net borrowing requirement (for Bromley, net investments)
Brought forward as at 1 April £346.7m | £358.8m | £314.1m
Carried forward as at 31 March £314.1m | £353.9m | £297.9m
In-year borrowing requirement (for Bromley, movement | - £32.6m | -£49m| -£16.2m
in netinvestments)
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) as at 31 March £29.9m | £27.8m £29.0m
£ p £ p £ p
Incremental impact of capital investment decisions -
increase in council tax (Band D) per annum ) ) )
Treasury management indicators 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2023/24
Actual | Estimate | Actual
Authorised limit for external debt
Borrowing £30.0m £30.0m £30.0m
Other long-term liabilities £30.0m £30.0m £30.0m
Total £60.0m £60.0m £60.0m
Operational boundary for external debt
Borrowing £10.0m £10.0m £10.0m
Other long-term liabilities £30.0m £30.0m £30.0m
Total £40.0m £40.0m £40.0m
Actual external debt £29.9m £27.8m £29.0m
Upper limit for fixed rate interest exposure 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Upper limit for variable rate interest exposure 20.0% 20.0% 20.0%
Upper limit for total principal sums invested for more than £170.0m| £170.0m| £170.0m
364 days beyond year-end dates
APPENDIX 5

Economic commentary and interest rates (provided by Link Asset Services)

Page 40




UK Economy

Against a backdrop of stubborn inflationary pressures, the Russian invasion of Ukraine, and war in the
Middle East, UK interest rates have continued to be volatile right across the curve, from Bank Rate
through to 50-year gilt yields, for all of 2023/24.

Markets have sought an end to central banks’ on-going phase of keeping restrictive monetary policy in
place on at least one occasion during 2023/24 but to date only the Swiss National Bank has cut rates
and that was at the end of March 2024.

UK, EZ and US 10-year yields have all stayed stubbornly high throughout 2023/24. The table below
provides a snapshot of the conundrum facing central banks: inflation is easing, albeit gradually, but
labour markets remain very tight by historical comparisons, making it an issue of fine judgment as to
when rates can be cut.

UK Eurozone us
Bank Rate 5.25% 4% 5.25%-5.5%
GDP -0.3%q/q Q4 (- +0.0%0q/q Q4 2.0% Q1 Annualised
0.2%y/y) (0.1%y/y)
Inflation 3.4%y/y (Feb) 2.4%y/y (Mar) 3.2%y/y (Feb)
Unemployment Rate 3.9% (Jan) 6.4% (Feb) 3.9% (Feb)

The Bank of England sprung no surprises in their March meeting, leaving interest rates at 5.25% for
the fifth time in a row and, despite no MPC members no longer voting to raise interest rates, it retained
its relatively hawkish guidance. The Bank’s communications suggest the MPC is gaining confidence
that inflation will fall sustainably back to the 2.0% target. However, although the MPC noted that “the
restrictive stance of monetary policy is weighing on activity in the real economy, is leading to a looser
labour market and is bearing down on inflationary pressures”, conversely it noted that key indicators of
inflation persistence remain elevated and policy will be “restrictive for sufficiently long” and “restrictive
for an extended period”.

Of course, the UK economy has started to perform a little better in Q1 2024 but is still recovering from
a shallow recession through the second half of 2023. Indeed, Q4 2023 saw negative GDP growth of -
0.3% while y/y growth was also negative at -0.2%.

But it was a strange recession. Unemployment is currently sub 4%, against a backdrop of still over
900k of job vacancies, and annual wage inflation is running at above 5%. With gas and electricity price
caps falling in April 2024, the CPI measure of inflation - which peaked at 11.1% in October 2022 —is
now due to slide below the 2% target rate in Apriland to remain below that Bank of England benchmark
for the next couple of years, according to Capital Economics. The Bank of England still needs some
convincing on that score, but upcoming inflation and employment releases will settle that argument
shortly. It is noted that core CPlwas still a heady 4.5% in February and, ideally, needs to fall further.

Shoppers largely shrugged off the unusually wet weather in February, whilst rising real household
incomes should support retail activity throughout 2024. Furthermore, the impact of higher interest rates
on household interest payments is getting close to its peak, even though fixed rate mortgage rates on
new loans have shifted up a little since falling close to 4.5% in early 2024.

From a fiscal perspective, the further cuts to national insurance tax (from April) announced inthe March
Budget will boost real household disposable income by 0.5 - 1.0%. After real household disposable
income rose by 1.9% in 2023, Capital Economics forecast it will rise by 1.7% in 2024 and by 2.4% in
2025. These rises in real household disposable income, combined with the earlier fading of the drag
from previous rises in interest rates, means GDP growth of 0.5% is envisaged in 2024 and 1.5% in

Page 41



2025. The Bank of England is less optimistic than that, seeing growth struggling to get near 1% over
the next two to three years.

As for equity markets, the FTSE 100 has risen to nearly 8,000 and is now only 1% below the all-time
high it reached in February 2023. The modest rise in UK equities in February was driven by strong
performances in the cyclical industrials and consumer discretionary sectors, whilst communications
and basic materials have fared poorly.

Despite its performance, the FTSE 100 is still lagging behind the S&P 500, which has been at an all-
time high for several weeks.

USA Economy.

Despite the markets willing the FOMC to cut rates as soon as June 2024, the continued resilience of
the economy, married to sticky inflation, is providing a significant headwind to a change in monetary
policy. Markets currently anticipate three rate cuts this calendar year, but two or less would not be out
of the question. Currently, policy remains flexible but primarily data driven.

In addition, the Fed will want to shrink its swollen $16 trillion balance sheet at some point. Just because
the $ is the world’s foremost reserve currency (China owns over $1 trillion) does not mean the US can
continually run a budget deficit. The mix of stubborn inflation and significant treasury issuance is
keeping treasury yields high. The 10 year stands at 4.4%.

As for inflation, itis currently a little above 3%. The market is not expecting a recession, but whether
rates staying high for longer is conducive to a soft landing for the economy is uncertain, hence why the
consensus is for rate cuts this year and into 2025...but how many and when?

EZ Economy.

Although the Euro-zone inflation rate has fallen to 2.4%, the ECB will still be mindful that it has further
work to do to dampen inflation expectations. However, with growth steadfastly in the slow lane (GDP
flatlined in 2023), a June rate cut from the current 4% looks probable.

Page 42



Report No.
HPR 2024/027

Agenda Item 8b

London Borough of Bromley

PART ONE - PUBLIC

Decision Maker:

Date: 7th July 2024

Decision Type:
Title:

Contact Officer:

Chief Officer:

Ward:

PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR RESOURCES, COMMISSIONING &
CONTRACT MANAGEMENT

Non-Urgent

Non Executive

Key

EXTENSIONS: VARIOUS CLEANING, CARETAKING AND WASHROOM
SERVICES CONTRACTS

Peggy Umezuruike, Head of Facilities Management (interim)
Tel: 0208 461 7002 E-mail: peggy.umezuruike @bromley.gov.uk

Sara Bowrey, Director of Housing, Planning, Property and Regeneration

All

1. REASON FOR REPORT

1.1  The Council holds various services cleaning, caretaking, and washroom services contracts
that service both the existing Civic Centre and various satellite sites (detailed in Appendix 1).

1.2 These contracts and their exiii dates are as follows:

Children & Families
Cleaning Chequers Centres 30/09/2024
Cleaning Lodestar The Griffins Centre 30/09/2024
Caretaking Lodestar The Griffins Centre 30/09/2024

Adult Education centres 31/08/2024
Caretaking Lodestar (Kentwood and Poverest)
Washroom Adult Education centres 31/08/2024
services Citron (Kentwood and Poverest)

Adult Education centres 31/08/2024
Hand dryers PHS (Kentwood and Poverest)

Bromley Civic Centre &
Cleaning City Cleaning Walnuts 30/09/2024
Washroom Bromley Civic Centre &
services Rentokil/Initial Walnuts 30/09/2024

Gatew ay Report Member Decision

October 2023

Page 43



1.3

1.4

15

1.6

This report is seeking authorisation to extend beyond term the above-named contracts, to
allow for these contracts to align with Churchill Court facility services contract end date of 31st
July 2025. This will allow ample preparation time for the contract re-procurement following the
agreement of an overall procurement commissioning strategy for service delivery.

The existing Civic Centre contracts (which also cover one satellite site — 8 Masons Hill) are
due to end on 30" September 2024 and have available extension options. The ongoing need
for these contracts beyond September 2024 is uncertain, as this is subject to the broader
Facilities Management Commissioning Strategy, Accommodation Strategy, the move to
Churchill Court and disposal of the existing Civic Centre. This report proposes to apply flexible
extensions to manage this.

The various contracts for satellite sites are typically low value with the exception of the
cleaning contract for the Children & Family Centres. All contracts were aligned with end dates
in August and September 2024, with no further extension options, with a view to procuring all
satellite facilities requirements as a single contract. The Commissioning Strategy for Facilities
Management and a report to Members will follow in due course.

This report proposes extending the various satellite facilities contracts beyond term to align
with the Churchill Court facility services contract and the agreement of an overarching
Facilities Management Commissioning Strategy for facilities services.

2.1

2.2

RECOMMENDATION(S)

The Executive, Resources and Contract Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee is asked
to note and comment on the report.

The Portfolio Holder for Resources, Commissioning and Contract Management is
recommended to:

i) Approve extension beyond term for all other satellite site contracts as detailed in
Appendix 1 to 318t July 2025 at an estimated overall value for the extension period of
£102,154.64 to allow the commissioning strategy for facilities services to be agreed and
for the services to be tendered as either a separate satellite services contract or as part
of an overall contract for all facilities requirements.

i) Approve the formal one year extension options, should they be required, for both the
Civic Centre Cleaning Services contract (City Cleaning and Support Services Ltd) and
the Civic Centre Washroom Services contract (Rentokil) for the period from 1st October
2024 to 30th September 2025 at an estimated annual value of £308,990.16 and
£6,000.00 respectively for the extension period, noting that a flexible extension
arrangement (monthly rolling basis) will be sought to allow for termination of the
contracts in part or in full when the need for the requirement reduces or ceases;

Gatew ay Report Member Decision 2
October 2023

Page 44



Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children

1. Summary of Impact: N/A

Transformation Policy

1. Policy Status: Existing Policy

2. Making Bromley Even Better Priority
(5) To manage our resources well, providing value for money, and efficient and effective
services for Bromley's residents.

Financial

1 Cost of proposal: Estimated Cost £417,140.80

2. Budget head/performance centre: Various services across the council
4. Total current budget for this head: £417k

5.  Source of funding: General Fund Budget 2024/25

Personnel

1. Number of staff (current and additional): N/A
2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: N/A

Legal

1. Legal Requirement: Statutory Requirement
2. Call-in: Applicable

Procurement

1. Summary of Procurement Implications:

Property
1. Summary of Property Implications: N/A

Carbon Reduction and Social Value

1. Summary of Carbon Reduction/Sustainability Implications:

Impact on the Local Economy

1. Summary of Local Economy Implications: N/A

Impact on Health and Wellbeing

1. Summary of Health and Well Being Implications: N/A

Gatew ay Report Member Decision 3
October 2023

Page 45



Customer Impact

1. Estimated number of users or customers (current and projected): N/A

Ward Councillor Views

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Not Applicable
2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:

Gatew ay Report Member Decision 4
October 2023

Page 46



3.

3.1

3.2

3.3

COMMENTARY

This report seeks to extend the various cleaning, caretaking and washroom service contracts in
Children and Family Centres (CFC), Bromley Adult Education Centres (BAEC), Griffins Centre

beyond term to make it co-terminus with the contract expiration of current Churchill Court Civic
Centre contract on 315t July 2025.

The various cleaning, caretaking, and washroom service contracts that are currently delivered in
the Children and Families Centres (CFC) and Bromley Adult Education Centres (BAEC) are
managed by the department’s service management.

A decision was recently made by the Council to transfer these services into the Corporate
Facilities Management portfolio to allow CFC and BAEC site Department management focus on
the delivery of their core service.

3.4 The Children & Family Centres (CFC) are based in six separate sites. In addition, there are two
Council nurseries and two Family contact centres. The locations are as follows:

e BigginHill CFC

e Blenheim CFC

e Burnt Ash CFC

e Castlecombe CFC

e Cotmandene CFC

e Community Vision CFC

e Community Vision Nursery

e Orpington Family Contact Centre

e Royston Family Contact Centre

3.5 The Bromley Adult Education Centre (BAEC) operates from two centres, Kentwood Centre,

Penge and Poverest Centre, Orpington.

3.6 The Griffin Centre is a stand-alone site.

3.7 Please see below the total contract cost and extension costs for the services:

Chequers Cleaning Children & Families Centres 464,634.00 83,394.00

Lodestar Cleaning The Griffins Centre 34,111.00 5605.00

Lodestar Caretaking The Griffins Centre 54,249.00 7614.00

Lodestar Caretaking Adult Education centres (Kentwood and Poverest) 15,658.00 2906.00

Citron Washroom services |Adult Education centres (Kentwood and Poverest) 1,149.28 1149.28

PHS Hand dryers Adult Education centres (Kentwood and Poverest) 1,482.36 1482.36

City Cleaning |Cleaning Bromley Civic Centre & Walnuts 684,770.00 308,990.16

Rentokil/lnitial [ Washroom services |Bromley Civic Centre & Walnuts 25,000.00 6000.00
1,281,053.64 417,140.80

3.8 The existing contractors providing services to the CFC, BAEC and Griffins Centre have

consistently performed to a good standard throughout the period of the current contract and
have met all requirements of the specification to date.

In Stockwell Civic Centre, the cleaning contractor continue to deliver improved cleaning
standards and provide reactive cleaning service timely.

Gatew ay Report Member Decision 5
October 2023

Page 47



3.9 The provision of providing emergency call out services is a niche market, and itis an essential
requirement of this contract to ensure continuity of delivery in the adult education service.

3.10 This report seeks an extension for the cleaning and washroom services in Stockwell Civic
Centre on a monthly rolling basis and monthly value of £25,832.51 for the cleaning service and
£500 monthly cost for washroom service to allow flexibility when moving from the Civic Centre
to Churchill Court

3.11 The proposed extension would allow synchronisation with the Council’s proposed
Commissioning Strategy to allow this contract and other similar contracts within the Children,
Education and Families department which are managed by the Facilities Management to be
combined as appropriate to deliver best value..

Summary of Business Case

3.12 The proposal is to extend the various existing cleaning, caretaking, and washroom services
contract with for an additional period of up to 12 months.

3.13 This extension will allow sufficient time for the procurement, through a compliant procurement
process.

3.14 Approve the formal one-year extension option, should they be required, for Civic Centre
Cleaning Services and the Civic Centre Washroom Services contract, noting that a flexible
extension arrangement will be sought to allow for termination of the contracts in part or in full
when the need for the requirement reduces or ceases.

Service Profile / Data Analysis / Specification

3.15 The specification and works undertaken for the various sites is currently based on individual site
requirements (input specification). However, in line with the cleaning industry best practice,
these specifications will be reviewed to deliver an output-based specification which will focus on
an agreed cleaning standard for all sites.

3.16 Options Appraisal

Option 1:
Do Nothing
This option is not recommended as it would lead to cessation of necessary service,
which would impact service users adversely.

Option 2:
The requirement to extend existing Civic Centre contracts to their full available term.
It is not recommended as this requirement is expected to cease immediately following
the Council’'s move to Churchill Court.
Tender for the existing Civic Centre — this is not recommended as the requirement is for
a short period.

Option 3:
Satellite Sites - tender for all services now as a single contract.

This is not recommended pending the proposed Facilities Management Commissioning
Strategy as tendering for a short-term contract is not attractive to market and will incur
additional procurement costs.

Gatew ay Report Member Decision 6
October 2023

Page 48



Option 4:
Tender for all contracts individually

This is not recommended as it creates duplication of procurement and contract
management for similar requirements with additional cost, and the same commissioning
requirements as above (option 3) apply.

Option 5:
Extend the existing Civic Centre on a rolling basis.

Extend beyond term to allow time to agree the Proposed Facilities Management
Commissioning Strategy.

Preferred Option
Option 5

It is recommended to extend beyond term the various cleaning, relief caretaking and
washroom services contracts to allow time to agree the Facilities Management Commissioning
Strategy, a report will be prepared for Members to consider in autumn 2024.

It is also recommended to extend the extended Civic Centre contracts on a monthly rolling
basis until the Council’s relocation to Churchill Court is completed.

4 PROCUREMENT AND PROJECT TIMESCALES AND GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS

4.1 Estimated Value of Proposed Action: The details of the various extensions and extensions
beyond term are set out in Appendix 1. The overall value of the proposed extension beyond
term is £417,140.80

4.2  Other Associated Costs: N/A

4.3 Proposed Contract Period: The details of the various extension and extensions beyond term
are set out in Appendix 1.
The various satellite site contracts will be extended from their current end date up to 315t July
2025.
The Civic Centre Cleaning and Washroom services will be extended from 1 October 2024 up
to 30 September 2025, with a monthly rolling extension agreed with the provider to allow for
early termination.

4.4  Procurement Strategy:
The report seeks an extension beyond term to allow for a robust, compliant procurement
process to take place.

5. MARKET CONSIDERATIONS / IMPACT ON LOCAL ECONOMY

5.1 Cleaning services of this type have a wide range of local and national spread. Suitable market
intelligence will take place.

6. SOCIAL VALUE, CARBON REDUCTION AND LOCAL / NATIONAL PRIORITIES

Gatew ay Report Member Decision 7

October 2023

Page 49



6.1 N/A

7. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

7.1 The Corporate FM team will continue to consult with all primary stakeholders through regular
monthly meetings and these stakeholders will likely participate in wider procurement model.

8. IMPACT ASSESSMENTS (INCLUDING VULNERABLE ADULTS AND CHILDREN) AND
CUSTOMER IMPACT

9. TRANSFORMATION/POLICY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 NA

10. IT AND GDPR CONSIDERATIONS

10.1 N/A

11. STRATEGIC PROPERTY CONSIDERATIONS
All similar contracts will be subject to the commissioning strategy for the new Civic Centre
(Churchill Court)

12. PROCUREMENT CONSIDERATIONS
The relevant stakeholders will be consulted inthe procurement process of the services and
appropriate procurement procedure will be adhered to.

13. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

13.1 This report is seeking approval for the extension beyond term for all other satellite site
contracts to 31st July 2025 at an estimated overall value for the extension period of
£102,150.64.

13.2 Approve the formal one year extension options, should they be required, for both the Civic
Centre Cleaning Services contract (City Cleaning and Support Services Ltd) and the Civic
Centre Washroom Services contract (Rentokil) for the period from 1st October 2024 to 30th
September 2025 at an estimated annual value of £308,990.16 and £6,000.00 respectively for
the extension period.

13.3 The Civic Centre Washroom and Cleaning Services contract will be extended on a monthly
rolling basis to allow for early termination for once the site is vacated and sold, this should
mean that the actual cost for these two contracts will be significantly lower than the annual
extension value stated.

13.4 The total estimated cost of the proposal is £417,140.80, based on a full year extension.

13.5 The costs will be split between the following Portfolios with amounts indicated below:-
Children, Education and Families £102,150.64
Resources, Commissioning and Contracts Management £308,990.16
All of which have sufficient budget to cover these costs, either directly or within the overall
budget allocation, however as stated in 13.3 above, the Resources cost maybe significantly
lower depending on when the rolling contract is ended.

Gatew ay Report Member Decision 8

October 2023

Page 50



14. PERSONNEL CONSIDERATIONS

141 N/A

15. LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS

16. IMPACT ON HEALTH AND WELLBING

16.1 N/A

17. WARD COUNCILLOR VIEWS

17.1 N/A

Non-Applicable Headings: | 6, 8, 9, 10, 14,16, 17

Background Documents:
(Access via Contact Officer)

Gatew ay Report Member Decision 9
October 2023

Page 51



This page is left intentionally blank



€G abed

A B C D E F H
1
2
3
4 4905|Chequers Cleaning Children & Families Centres 464,634.00 83,394.00 30/09/24 31/07/25
5 4861 |Lodestar Cleaning The Griffins Centre 34,111.00 5605.00 30/09/24 31/07/25
6 1535(Lodestar Caretaking The Griffins Centre 54,249.00 7614.00 30/09/24 31/07/25
7 4863 |Lodestar Caretaking Adult Education centres (Kentwood and Poveres| 15,658.00 2906.00 31/08/24 31/07/25
BAEC Contract (Bromley Adult 31/08/24
8 |Education Contract) Citron Washroom services|Adult Education centres (Kentwood and Poverest 1,149.28 1149.28 31/07/25
BAEC Contract (Bromley Adult 31/08/24
9 |Education Contract) PHS Hand dryers Adult Education centres (Kentwood and Poverest 1,482.36 1482.36 31/07/25
10 5088 |City Cleaning|Cleaning Bromley Civic Centre & Walnuts 684,770.00 308,990.16 30/09/24 | Monthly extension
11 5129|Rentokil/Initia| Washroom services|Bromley Civic Centre & Walnuts 25,000.00 6000.00 30/09/24 |Monthly extension
12 |Total 1,281,053.64 417,140.80
13




This page is left intentionally blank



Agenda Item 8c

Report No: London Borough of Bromley
HPR 2024/028

Decision Maker: PORTFOLIO HOLDERFOR RESOURCES, COMMISSIONING &

CONTRACT MANAGEMENT
Date: 7th July 2024
Decision Type: Non-Urgent Non -Executive Key
Title: EXTENSION: MAIL SERVICES
Contact Officer: Peggy Umezuruike, Head of FM (Interim)

020 83134394 E-mail: peqggy.umezuruike@bromley.gov.uk

Chief Officer: Sara Bowrey

Director, Housing Planning and Regeneration

Ward: N/A

11

1.2

Reason for report

This report seeks approval to extend the existing Mail Services with Royal Mail for a two year
period using the formal extension option available within the contract. This contract was initially
awarded via the London Postal Board consortium, a partnership of 22 local authorities, for the
delivery of inbound and outbound mail services utilising the Crown Commercial Services (CCS)
Framework SPS2164. Procuring through the consortium reduces procurement costs and
obtains beneficial rates.

The current contract commenced on 16 September 2021 for a three year contract with the
option to extend for up to two years. The initial term will end 15" September 2024. The contract
has an estimated annual value of £90k (whole life value of £450k inclusive of extension option).
The value of the proposed extension is £180k and will extend the contract to 15 September
2026.

2.1

RECOMMENDATION(S)

The Portfolio Holder for Resources, Commissioning & Contract Management is recommended

to approve the two year extension of the Mail Service contract with Royal Mail, the value of the
extension being an estimated £180k at £90,000 per annum, to run from 16" September 2024 —
15 September 2026.

Gatew ay Report Member Decision
Template last review date: October 2019

Page 55


mailto:peggy.umezuruike@bromley.gov.uk

Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children

1. Summary of Impact: To ensure that procurement of continued and guaranteed delivery of mail to
critical service users inc. next day deliveries is adequately provisioned.

Corporate Policy

1. Policy Status: Existing Policy
2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council:

Financial

1. Costof proposal: 90k per annum; £180K for the two years extension and £450k over the full five
year period:

Ongoing costs: recurring costs of £90k per annum
Budget head/performance centre: various budgets across all Departments

Total current budget for this head: £90k

o b w0 DN

Source of funding: Existing Revenue budget for 2024/25

Personnel
1. Number of staff (current and additional): N/A.

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: N/A.

Legal
1. Legal Requirement:Statutory Requirement:

2. Call-in: Applicable:

Procurement

1. Summary of Procurement Implications: The contract has a formal two year extesnsion which
can be applied in compliance with Public Contracts Regulations 2015.

Customer Impact

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): All staff inc. Officers, Members
and Public

Ward Councillor Views

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Not Applicable

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments: N/A

Gatew ay Report Member Decision
Template last review date: October 2019

Page 56



3.

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

4.1

41.1

4.1.2

4.2

COMMENTARY

In July 2021 the Council entered into its third CCS framework agreement for the delivery of
inbound and outbound mail services and under the current arrangement it has delivered savings
against standard mail pricings of £25,000.

The Council continues to enter directly into CCS Framework Agreements as they are not
accessible through application by commercial entities as contracted by the Council.

As a Member of the London Postal Board the Council has aligned itself with the participating
membership of circa. Twenty two London Authorities to seek agreement to extend the Mail
Services from the expiry of the contract term.

The Council’s inclusion within this extension affords it the benefit of being able to secure
advantageous mail service pricing(s) owing to the combined volumes of the participating
Council’s, that are presented for considered pricing.

In order that the London Postal Board can continue to seek the most cost effective Incoming
and Outgoing Mail services it sought the agreement of all members to support and enter into the
new CCS Framework by the obtaining of their own internal authorisations.

As members of this consortium, the Council is sighted on the significant savings that several
London Boroughs have made collectively over the initial contract term of the Contract, which the
Council intends to be a part of and by going ahead with the extension, this will also gives the
Council time and flexibility toconsider its future options for the postal service following the move
to Churchill Court. The Council’s continued presence in the wider London Borough group is key
to retaining buying power as the Council head into the next procurement process.

SUMMARY OF THE BUSINESS CASE

The current agreement with Royal Mail, that supports all of the Council's incoming and
outgoing mail services reaches the end date of its agreed contract term on 15 September
2024.

The request to extend the current contract using the available contract extension option to
continue the delivery of Incoming and Outgoing Mail Services is being made in order that the
Council can continue to secure the best pricing arrangement for continuation of Mail Services
from September 2024 through to September 2026.

Agreement to the continued inclusion of the Council within the London Postal Board
consortium will realise best value outcome on service and costs through CCS Framework.

Exending the current contract for the two year period at an estimated cost of £180k, will ensure
continuity of delivery through the London Postal Board consortium.

SERVICE PROFILE/DATA ANALYSIS

The Council's continued and primary usage is predominately for 15t and 2" class outgoing mail
with associated daily incoming delivery service.

The Council's will also need to ensure retained access to signed for outgoing mail items.

OPTIONS APPRAISAL

Gatew ay Report Member Decision
Template last review date: October 2019

Page 57



4.2.1 Option 1:

4.2.2

4.2.3

Do Nothing

This option is not recommended as it would lead to cessation of necessary service,
which would impact service users adversely, result in loss of revenue and reputational
loss for the Council.

Option 2:
Retender the Service.

This is not recommended as it would incur significant additional procurement costs and
the timetable to carry out a comprehensive tender process and appoint a contractor by
September 2024 would put continuity of service provision at severe risk.

Option 3:

Extend current contract utilising available contract extension provision.

42.1

4.2.2.

4.2.3

424

4.2.5

4.2.6

4.2.7

The Council carries significantly large amount of Special Deliveries for the the provision of its
services which are primarily provided by Royal Mail at discounted rate (please see: Appendix 1-
Royal Mail Prices for London Boroughs). No other company provides this service.

Alternative service providers including UK Mail and WHISTL (formerly known as TNT), no longer
provide the * final mile’ service, i.e from sorting office to recipient address on same day and they
presently utilise the service of Royal Mail for this end action.

For regular mail distribution, most other mail service suppliers use the Royal Mail distribution
network for the reasons set out in 4.2.1 above. Accordingly the use of alternative mail service
suppliers will not provide value for money as (by engaging with Royal Mail directly) they will
charge a mark up of up to 15% on top of the cost of the Royal Mail charges.

Continued integration with the London Borough's Postal Board consortium will ensure that the
Council will continue to have access to and the advantage of beneficial price setting as
calculated against the total volumes that will be presented by all of the participating London
Authorities (See Appendix 1: Royal Mail Prices for London Boroughs).

Access to procure mail services through the CCS RM6017 portal affords the Council with the
option to maintain current incoming and outgoing mail provisions but it will also enable the
Council to independently scope options on future service provision through hybrid and/or
Mailmark, which will be reviewed in line with the Faciilities Management Commisioning
Strategy, Civic Centre Accommodation Strategy and service options in respect of the Council
Transformation Agenda.

Utilising the two year extension contract provision would guarantee uninterupted continuous
service and guaranteed cost until that date. Potential disruption to service due to issues with
onboarding and poor service mobilisation is mitigated.

Due to the number of London Boroughs (as set out below) participating as part of a
consortium, the Council benefits a discounted rate, which would be unavailable to the Council
if the Council tendered the service independently.

Gatew ay Report Member Decision
Template last review date: October 2019

Page 58



Bromley Newham Ealing Croydon Enfield Sutton
Wandsworth Westminster Greenwich Merton Richmond Southwark
Hackney Kensington & | Harrow Barnet Kingston Hounslow
Chelsea
Islington Tower Camden Brent
Hillingdon Hamlets

4.2.8 The Council will continue to manage the contract locally by holding regular service review
meetings with the Royal Mail Account Manager to ensure agreed SLA, KPIs (set out below)
and associated deliverables continue to be met.

Service Level Performance Criterion (PER

BOROUGH) per incident

Overall Borough SLA/KPI Status

Key Indicator

Service Level
Performance

Measure

Critical
Threshold

Borough

Service LevelService Credit for each

Service Period (one
month)

Timely biling of Contracting Body - Invoices
should be submitted within the agreed invoicing
schedule (monthly/w eekly), be per account within
each local authority, display a valid Purchase
Order and consist of accurate charges for the
biling period. For service credits to apply the
Borough must supply the relevant Purchase Order,
per account.

Timelines

No more than 4

failures in a rolling |16 failures in any rolling 6

0.5% Service Credit
gained for each
instance beyond the
specified Service Level

Friday 08:00— 18:00. This KPI and corresponding
service credits are not applied in the event of al
critical incident or service failure beyond our
control.

times

6 months months Performance Measure. [Yes
IAccess to the Dedicated Contracting Body
support: Service request logs should be placed o . .
with the helpdesk by email or telephone. geﬁn/; d Ser\f/(ljcre Cégg;:
- . | 0
Telephone support will be provided Monday Availability at least 98% at all 90% percentage under thel

specified Service Level
Performance Measure

Yes

Complaints  Handling: Acknow ledgement of
helpdesk complaint within 24 hours of receipt,
update w ithin 48 hours and every 48 hours until
resolution. For service credits to apply the
complaint must be notified to Royal Mail helpdesk|

ia telephone or e-mail with Complaint in the)
subject heading if via e-mail.

Availability
/Timelines

No more than 1
failure in a rolling 6
months

4 failures in any rolling 6
months

0.5% Service Credit
gained for each
instance beyond the|
specified Service Level
Performance Measure.

Y es

IAccurate and timely management information to|

each Borough issued by 7" w orking day of the|
following month. Eg. January management
information to be issued by the 7th w orking day in
February. For the service credit to apply Royal
Mail must have access to the Boroughs accounts
lvia our systems and our profile must not altered by

Accuracy
/Timelines

No more than 1
failure in a rolling 6
months

4 failures in any rolling 6
months

0.5% Service Credit
gained for each
instance beyond the|
specified Service Level
Performance Measure.

the Borough. Y es
No more than 1
Quarterly accurate and timely management failure in
information including KPVSLASs Accuracy/ arolling (2 failures in any rolling 12| No service credits
covering all members using the Timelines 12 months payable
contract. months
period
Y es

Gatew ay Report Member Decision
Template last review date: October 2019

Page 59




Premium Mail must reach the recipient by the

follow ing day e.g. Letter senton a

Monday (w orking day) arrives on the . . .

door m)ellt(of the agddrggsee onthe ier\{llcg_? 93% at all times 90% No service cret:jl s

Tuesday (nextday). N.B. Quality of vailability payable

Service is only monitored on a national

basis

N/A

Standard Mail must reach the recipient no later

than the 3rd w orking day e.g. Letter

senton a Monday (w orking day) arrives|Services ) No service credits

on the door mat of the addresseeon  |Availability 98% at all times 90% payable

the Thursday. N.B. Quality of Service is

only monitored on a national basis

N/A

Collection of postfromeach site within 120 . .

minutes of the agreed time on each day 2% Serwcea%rgddli or

subject to major incidents beyond our galch

control and road traffic accidents. For ;

service credits to apply failures must be Timelines |Atleast 98% at all 90% Eﬁaceerr:haege

notified to Royal Mail helpdesk via times specified

telephone or e-mail w ith Urgent Sgrvice Level

Collection Failure in the subject Perf

heading w ithin 30 minutes of scheduled Meragmznce

collection time. Yes

43 PREFERRED OPTION
Option 3

Extend current contract utilising available contract extension provision.

4.3.11t is recommended to utilise the two year formal extension option available through the existing
contract, and in alignment with the London Postal Board consortium. Access to this framework
agreement CCS RM6017 portal has afforded the Council not only the option to maintain current
incoming and outgoing mail provisions but it will also enable the Council to independently scope
options on future service provision through hybrid and/or Mailmark, which will be reviewed in
line with the Facilities Management Commisioning Strategy, Civic Centre Accommodation
Strategy and service options in respect of the Council's Transformation Agenda.

44  MARKET CONSIDERATIONS

4.4.1 Access to the CCS Framework RM6017 will present the opportunity for an appraisal of

suppliers presenting service delivery and cost as applied to a consolidated volume of mail
items.

4.4.2 Should the Council enter the market as a single entity, its ability to negotiate a low cost option
will be impacted upon by its relatively lower generated mail volumes of circa. 350,000 items
when compared to the London Postal Board generated rates and would incur additional
procurement COStS .

5. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

5.1 Stakeholders are satisfied with the existing postal service and regular service user
engagement meetings are held to discuss service delivery issues.

6. PROCUREMENT AND GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS

Gatew ay Report Member Decision
Template last review date: October 2019

Page 60



6.1 Estimated Contract Value — £450k whole life value (E90k per annum). The value of the
prosposed two year extension is £180k.

6.2 Other Associated Costs —£0

6.3 Contract Period — The two year extension option will commence from 16™ September 2024 to
15™ September 2026.

Activity Date
Draft Report to Procurement, Legal & 16" May
Finance
Draft Report to Senior Leadership Team 23'd May
Final Gateway Report 281 May
Final report submission 4™ June
Final Report for Key Officer decision 241 June
Implementation Date 16" September

7. SUSTAINABILITY AND IMPACT ASSESSMENTS

7.1 The London Postal Board aligns its tender with emphasis on sustainability benefits including
fleet environment strategy, optimisation of transport networks, driver behaviours and
introduction of hybrid/electric vehicles.

8. POLICY CONSIDERATIONS

8.1 The CCS framework portal will assistthe Authority and its partners in securing services that
will result in savings as applied against general rate card costs.

9. IT AND GDPR CONSIDERATIONS
91 N/A
10. PROCUREMENT CONSIDERATIONS

10.1 The report seeks a two year extension to the contract with Royal Mail, utilising the formal
extension options built into the contract, the value of the proposed extension being £180k.

10.2 The Council’s requirements for authorising an extension are covered in CPR 23.6 and 13.1.
For an extension of this value, the Approval of the Portfolio Holder following Agreement by the
Chief Officer, the Assistant Director Governance & Contracts, the Director of Corporate
Services and the Director of Finance must be obtained. In accordance with CPR 2.1.2,
Officers must take all necessary professional advice.

10.3 Following Approval, the extension must be applied via a suitable Change Control Notice, or
similar, as specified in the contract.

10.4 The actions identified in this report are provided for within the Council’'s Contract Procedure
Rules, and the proposed actions can be completed in compliance with their content.

Gatew ay Report Member Decision
Template last review date: October 2019

Page 61



11.

111

11.2

12.

12.1

13.

13.1

13.2

13.3

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

Members asked to agree extension to existing Royal Mail contract for a further 2yrs at a cost
of £90k per annum, bringing the whole life value of the contract to £450k.

This will be funded from existing revenue budget and will not create an additional pressure for
the Council.

PERSONNEL CONSIDERATIONS

Not Applicable

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS

This report seeks approval to extend the existing Mail Services with Royal Mail via the Crown
Commercial Services (CCS) Framework SPS2164 for two years until 15th September 2026 at
an estimated cost of £180k.

The Council has both an implied and a specific power under section 111 of the Local
Government Act 1972 to do anything (whether or not involving the expenditure, borrowing or
lending of money or the acquisition or disposal of any property or rights) which is calculated to
facilitate, or is conducive or incidental to, the discharge of any of their functions.

This is a services contract, and the value of this procurement falls above the thresholds set out
in Part 2 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (the PCR) so is subject to the
Regulations. The extension can be completed in compliance with Regulation 72 of the PCR.

13.4 The Council’s requirements for authorising an extension are covered in CPR 23.6 and 13.1. For

14.

an extension of this value, the Approval of the Portfolio Holder following Agreement by the Chief
Officer, the Assistant Director Governance & Contracts, the Director of Corporate Services and
the Director of Finance must be obtained.

Appendices
Appendix 1 — Royal Mail Prices for London Boroughs 2024.

Non-Applicable Sections: | Ward Councillor Views

Background Documents: PROVISION OF MAIL SERVICES VIA CROWN
(Access via Contact COMMERCIAL SERVICES FRAMEWORK RM6017.
Officer) 1ST APRIL 2020

Appendix 1: Royal Mail Prices for London Boroughs 2024

Gatew ay Report Member Decision
Template last review date: October 2019

Page 62



Royal Mail Prices for London Boroughs

Letter Format
Machine Weight
Product Class Format Readability Sortation OBA Code |Up To
Business Mail |1st Letter MailMark Unsorted EBR 100g
Business Mail |1st Letter None Unsorted UNA 100g
Business Mail |1st Letter Advanced Unsorted UNI 100g
Business Mail [2nd Letter MailMark Unsorted EBS 100g
Business Mail |2nd Letter None Unsorted UNB 100g
Business Mail [2nd Letter Advanced Unsorted UNJ 100g
Large Letter Format
Business Mail |1st Large Letter MailMark Unsorted EBR 100g
Business Mail |1st Large Letter None Unsorted UNA 100g
Business Mail |1st Large Letter Advanced Unsorted UNI 100g
Business Mail |2nd Large Letter MailMark Unsorted EBS 100g
Business Mail |2nd Large Letter None Unsorted UNB 100g
Business Mail |2nd Large Letter Advanced Unsorted UNJ 100g

Notes

Standard product terms and conditions apply, including minimum volume requirements and any
Business collections are free if you apply for the service and spend more than £16,500 per year per
Please note that Parcels Prices for RM24 and RM48 are available only for postings made with
postage labels bearing a machine-readable 2D barcode which complies with Royal Mail

Prices are exclusive of any relevant taxes

Prices are subject to contract and to any Regulatory or Competition Law requirements over the
Prices are subject to change when the relevant rate card service price changes. Your prices will

A wide range of other products and services, are available at Royal Mail ratecard prices including a
number of the products above at additional weight bands

https://www.royalmail.com/sites/royalmail.com/files/2019-11/marketreach-business-mail-price-gui

Page 63


https://www.royalmail.com/sites/royalmail.com/files/2019-11/marketreach-business-mail-price-guide-jan2020-eng-web-221119.pdf

Effective

July 2024 Rate Card | % Rate card increase [July 2024 Price | Discount
£0.934 17.48% £0.751 19.57%
£1.220 19.61% £1.033 15.33%
£0.980 17.73% £0.858 12.45%
£0.589 15.08% £0.536 9.02%
£0.750 15.38% £0.662 11.71%
£0.609 13.77% £0.594 2.31%
£1.740 19.18% £1.059 39.14%
£1.740 19.18% £1.512 13.12%
£1.740 19.18% £1.332 23.44%
£1.210 10.00% £0.739 38.95%
£1.210 10.00% £0.894 26.09%
£1.210 10.00% £0.816 32.60%

de-jan2020-eng-web-221119.pdf

Page 64



Agenda Item 10a

Report No. London Borough of Bromley

CSD24067
PART ONE - PUBLIC

Decision Maker: EXECUTIVE,RESOURCES AND CONTRACTS POLICY DEVELOPMENT
AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date: Monday 08 July 2024

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key
Title: CUSTOMER SERVICES CONTRACT MONITORING REPORT
Contact Officer: Duncan Bridgewater, Assistant Director - Customer Services

Tel: 0208 461 7676 E-mail: Duncan.Bridgewater@bromley.gov.uk
Chief Officer: Director of Human Resources and Customer Services and Public Affairs

Ward: (Al Wards);

1. Reason for decision/report and options

This report provides information on the performance of the Customer Service Contract provided
by Liberata for the period 1st December 2023 to 31st March 2024.

A letter from Bola Odunsi Regional Director (London & The Southeast) for Liberata, provides his
update on each individual element and is attached at Appendix 1.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

The Committee is requested to note and comment on the information contained within the report
and the letter provided by Liberata detailed in Appendix 1.

1 Page 65



Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children

1. Summary of Impact: An Equality Impact Assessment indicates that ongoing support for
vulnerable adults and children will be provided by Customer Services by phone and face to face
for those unable to access digital services. Forthose unable to visit or phone us, the service
supports the enhancement of self-service options.

Transformation Policy
1. Policy Status: Existing Policy
2. Making Bromley Even Better Priority:

(5) To manage our resources well, providing value for money, and efficient and effective
services for Bromley's residents.

Financial

Cost of proposal: Not Applicable

Ongoing costs: Not Applicable

Budget head/performance centre: Customer Service Centre
Total current budget for this head: £1.06m

Source of funding: General Fund Revenue Budget 2023-24

arwnPE

Personnel
1. Number of staff (current and additional): 1
2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: N/A

Legal
1. Legal Requirement: Non-Statutory - Government Guidance

2.  Call-in: Not Applicable

Procurement
1. Summary of Procurement Implications: Procurement comments are included in Section 9 of this
report.

Property

1. Summary of Property Implications: None

Carbon Reduction and Social Value
1. Summary of Carbon Reduction/Sustainability Implications: The contractor’s initiatives are
detailed in section 11 of this report.

Impact on the Local Economy
1. Summary of Local Economy Implications: Reception service is a town centre location therefore
supports the local economy.

2 Page 66



Impact on Health and Wellbeing

1.

Summary of Health and Wellbeing Implications: Reception service supports promotion of Health
& Wellbeing initiatives by printed publicity and electronic display boards.

Customer Impact

1.

Estimated number of users or customers (current and projected): 2,000 visitors, 300,000 phone
calls, 20,000 e-mails and 8 million web visits annually

Ward Councillor Views

1.
2.

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? No
Summary of Ward Councillors comments: N/A

COMMENTARY

The Customer Services contract covers four key areas: Corporate Contact Centre, Reception
Services, Web Team (Bromley Knowledge) and Blue Badge/Freedom Pass processing. The
Corporate Contact Centre deals with telephone enquiries regarding Environmental Services,
Electoral, Registrars, Parking, Blue Badges, Disabled Freedom Passes as well as the
Switchboard.

The contractor deals with face to face enquiries from main reception, for most areas of the
Council with the exception of Registrars and Children Services, who manage their own
reception points. North Block reception deals with Housing and Leaving Care Team customers.
Liberata are responsible for managing the reception in North Block. Customers are seen by
appointment only with exception for emergencies and those that are vulnerable where individual
service procedures are in place.

The Web Team (Bromley Knowledge) maintain the corporate website (www.bromley.gov.uk) in
terms of its technical functionality, performance and accuracy of the content as provided by
service experts. Administration of Blue Badge and Discretionary Disabled Freedom Passes
applications and renewals is also carried out within the contract.

Overall the contractor has performed well throughout this monitoring period, with some
occurrences of under-performance outlined inthe report. Volumes of calls fluctuated as a result
of the normal seasonal changes. Since the pandemic began there has been a consistent
demand in customer contact via the website as customers were asked to use online services
instead of traditional contact channels. Many web transactional services remain high over the
reporting period with overall traffic to the website remaining increased compared to pre-covid
volumes. Contractor performance is reviewed at monthly meetings.

Call Monitoring is completed every month. The contractor provides a sample of call recordings
and feedback is given to the contractor at monthly review meetings. Spot checking is also done
on a random sample of Blue Badge applications and Bromley Knowledge job requests to
ensure they are completed within their key performance indicators.

Reception is an appointment only service, except for emergencies and vulnerable customers.
Demand has been stable over the reporting period.

3 Page 67


http://www.bromley.gov.uk/

3.7 The top Key Performance Indicators for this contract are listed in the table below; they measure
the headline activities within the contract in order that our customers get a quick response and
access to our services efficiently and effectively.

Measure Definition Target
Call Number of calls answered by the agents within 50% calls
1 Management the specified timescales compared to total answered
number of calls received within 1 minute
Daily service
level does not
> Call Number of days that the service dropped below drop below
Management 40% 40% of call
answered
within 1 minute
Emai Number of emails responded to within 5 working 100%
mail .
3 Management days_ compared to total number of emails resp_on_ded to
g
received within 5
working days
80% of

Number of customers entering the reception

Face to Face o . . customers
areas must be seen within 5 minutes of their I
4 Management . seen within 5
arrival compared to total number of customers,

remainder within 15 minutes minutes of
arrival
- : . 50% calls
0
5 Switchboard % of calls bailed to operator or requesting answered

Management | operator within 1 minute

% of randomly selected customers, across
different channels are either satisfied or very 90%
satisfied

6 Customer
Satisfaction

3.8 Customer Services — Contact Centre: This area performed well in terms of the monthly
service level agreement. The monthly service level target answering 50% of calls within 60
seconds was met for all 4 of the months in the reporting period and the minimum daily service
level never fell below 40%.

Remain Position In Queue (RPIQ) software was introduced across the Corporate telephony
lines after success with Revenue and Benefits. RPIQ gives the customer the option when it is
busy to be called back rather than waiting on the phone. Since going live in February when it's
been busy enough to be activated and the customer has decided to take it up, it has saved in
total 6.5 hours of their time rather than waiting on the phone.

The contractor has developed a process where when a customer interacts with our contact
centre over the telephone, they can be sent a Short Message Service (SMS) text to the
customer’s mobile phone if they optin. This will then provide them a link to a short Survey to
complete on their experience with the call advisor. Once tested and agreed, this is planned to
be deployed from August 2024.

4 Page 68



Contact Centre

Target — 50% within 60 secs Dec23 | Jan 24 | Feb 24 | Mar 24
Answered 5905 | 8,622 7,279 7,028
% of calls ans. in 60 secs 71.02% | 62.49% | 69.46% | 81.62%
Average wait time (mins:secs) 01:03 | 01:24 01:08 00:41
Number of day’s service fell

below 40%. 0 0 0 0

VoiceBot software is now managing some basic customer enquiries and providing

signposting information. The VoiceBotlearns from how customers ask questions in new and
different ways for information or a service and can then be aware in the future if asked again.
When the VoiceBotdoesn’t understand and is not able to help, these calls are reviewed by the

contractor to look for possible improvements. Many enquiries due to the subject and

complexity are still handled by an advisor. A summary is in the table below of calls handled by

the VoiceBot.

Calls offered to the VoiceBot(Dec 23 — Mar 24) 21,973
Number of calls completed by VoiceBot i.e. not touched voice

channel 2,886
Percentage of calls completed by VoiceBot i.e. not touched

voice channel 13.13%

3.9 Switchboard: Performance was within service level. The majority of calls received through the
switchboard are handled via automated technology and the table below shows the volumes

requiring manual transfer.

Switchboard

Target — 50% within 60 secs Dec 23 Jan 24 Feb 24 Mar 24
Answered 3,126 4,455 3,970 4,935
% of calls ans. in 60 secs 94% 91% 85% 90%
Average wait time (min:secs) 00:12 00:17 00:30 00:21

3.10 Reception: Reception is an appointment only service. Emergencies and vulnerable customers

are seen without an appointment.

Main Reception Dec 23 Jan 24 Feb 24 Mar 24
Number of customers seen 51 189 183 216

80% within 5 minutes 100% 100% 100% 100%
100% within 15 minutes 100% 100% 100% 100%

Page 69




The table below outlines the number of customers who were assisted by reception staff and
directed to self-serve by digital channels for January through March 2024.

Service No. of Customers
Benefits 279
Blue Badges 62
Business Rates 6
Concessionary Travel 15
Council Tax 293
Education 35
Electoral Services 13
Green Spaces 2
Housing a7
Parking 21
Planning / Building Control 12
Public Protection 18
Registrars 40
Street Services 3
Waste Services 19
Grand Total 865

The contractor is also responsible for managing the reception in North Block, where Housing
and the Leaving Care Team hold appointments.

) Dec Jan Feb Mar
North Block Reception 23 24 ) o4
Number of customers seen 159 212 177 179

3.11 E-mail: E-mail handling targets were met for the reporting period.

Emails

Target — 80% within 1 day and 100% Dec 23 Jan 24 Feb 24 Mar 24
within 5 days

Number of emails received 1,816 2,581 2,350 4,166
% emails processed within 1 day 95% 99% 100% 99%
% emails processed within 5 days 100% 100% 100% 100%

3.12 Out of Hours Emergency Call Centre: Performance was within service level for 3 of 4 of the

reporting months. December was just under due to an increased volume of calls in a short period

for services required due to Storm Gerrit.

Out of Hours (Appello)
Target — 80% within 30 Dec 23 | Jan 24 | Feb 24 | Mar 24
secs
Answered 1,440 | 2225 | 1543 | 1,987
% of calls ans. in 30 secs | 79.29% | 80.33% | 84.41% | 80.95%
Average wait time 01:12 | 01:18 | 00:55 | 01:08
(mins:secs)

6

Page 70




3.13

3.14

The below table shows the breakdown of services that customers contact the Out of Hours
phone line for during the reporting period.

Contact Type Total
Social Services 39.7%
Staff 16.2%
Noise 14.4%
Homelessness 13.9%
General Council 5.5%
Street Services 4.0%
Environmental 4.0%
Other 1.3%
Parking 0.7%
Parks Patrol 0.2%
Education 0.1%

Web — Bromley Knowledge: The web team achieved 100% against all targets for updating
web content as requested by services during this reporting period. The web team continue to
run a rolling programme of content refresh and will engage services when their pages are due
for review. The website was assessed against the plain English campaign standards, and has
achieved the internet crystal mark accreditation. This allows the Plain English approval logo to
be displayed on the site. The contractor is developing a Web Bot with a proof-of-concept Bot
available for testing planned for October 2024.

Dec Jan Feb Mar
23 24 24 24

125 109 108 140

Web site — Target 100%

Volume of job requests

Critical updates within 1
working hour

Urgent updates within 1 100% | 100% | 100% | 100%
working day

Important updates within 2
working days

Regular updates within 5
working days

100% | 100% | 100% | 100%

100% | 100% | 100% | 100%

100% | 100% | 100% | 100%

Blue Badge and Discretionary Freedom Pass: This area underperformed for both Blue
Badges and Freedom Passes not achieving service level for 3 and all 4 months respectively.
As previously reported, additional temporary resource was deployed to address under-
performance. It was anticipated that this would assist in bringing both the Blue Badge and
Freedom Pass services back into compliance, but since the last reporting period there has
been a further increase in incoming volumes in both areas. Blue Badge applications have
increased by 17.5% since the end of November and remain at these new levels into the new
year, whilst Freedom Pass applications more than doubled in volume from November 2023,
largely due to a peak in renewal applications, but even now weekly volumes are still 33%
higher than the previous reporting period.

7 Page 71



3.15

A volume variation has recently been agreed with the contractor in respect of ongoing
increased applications and renewals inthis area. This is based on a pro-rata charge increase,
based on overall percentage increases, and will be reviewed at the start of each financial year.
Response to this will be reported in more detail in the next report. The increased volumes,
coupled with the conversion to a new Liberata document management system are currently
making it extremely challenging to meet the contractual targets. Proposed process
improvements are planned, and the volume variation outlined above should allow the
contractor to meet expectations.

The Council aims to process applications within 6-8 weeks of receipt of all requested
information. The KPI and contractor performance is measured against the time taken for the
activities required of the contractor. Time taken for any face to face assessments or further
information requirements are not included in this calculation.

Blue Badges — target Dec Jan Feb Mar
80% within 4 weeks 23 24 24 24

Volume 337 600 599 612
5 —

V(;JegLoScessed within 4 8206 29% 20% | 79%
Freedom Pass — Target Dec Jan Feb Mar
100% within 4 weeks 23 24 24 24

Volume 269 325 264 301
5 —

VC)egLoscessed within 4 889% 95% 83% | 91%

MyBromley Account: The table below outlines the volume usage for the services currently
available to registered users, and volume of customers registering in this monitoring period.
MyBromley Account continues to grow and as of the end of March 2024 the number of
registrations had risen t0139,556.

MyBromley Registrations

Dec 23

Jan 24

Feb 24

Mar 24

Volume

924

1,362

1,161

2,076

Cumulative Volume

135,045

136,386

137,524

139,556

3.16

Customer Satisfaction: The number of customers surveyed, and responses are outlined

below, satisfaction is above target for this service. To increase survey response, the contractor
is looking at options to utilise the VoiceBottechnology outlined in 3.8.

Customer Satisfaction

Target — 90% Customer Dec 23 | Jan24 | Feb 24 | Mar 24
Satisfaction

Number of surveys sent 8,686 | 11,511 | 9,945 | 12,339
Number of responses 34 31 45 65
% Customer Satisfaction 95.00% | 94.00% | 98.00% | 97.00%

3.17 Compliments and Complaints: During this period, 6 customers made contact to thank the

staff and the compliments were associated to the service by the Contact Centre team, and

8 Page 72



reception staff. The contractor also received 4 complaints for this period that were upheld.
These were mostly associated to call handling issues where residents were unhappy with
the service provided by the Contact Centre team.

Dec Jan Feb Mar
23 24 24 24

Complaints 1 0 0 3

Compliments 5 1 0 0

Compliments & Complaints

IMPACT ON VULNERABLE ADULTS AND CHILDREN

An Equality Impact Assessment indicates that ongoing support for vulnerable adults and
children will be provided by Customer Service by phone and face to face for those unable to
access digital services. Forthose unable to visit or phone us, the service supports the
enhancement of self-service options.

TRANSFORMATION/POLICY IMPLICATIONS

None

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1 There are no direct financial implications resulting from this report, this report provides
information on the performance of the Customer Services Contract and requests members to
take note of the key KPls.

6.2 For information the Customer Services Contact Centre Liberata budget for 2023-24 stands
at £1.06m with actual spend as at March 2024 of £1.06m.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS
None
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

8.1 This Committee is requested to note and comment on the information contained within this
report as to the performance of the Customer Service Contract provided by Liberata for the
period 1st December 2023 to 31st March 2024 and also the letter provided by Liberata detailed
in Appendix 1 as attached.

8.2 The Council's Constitution, at Part 4 — Rules of Procedure, provides the terms of reference
for the Executive, Resources and Contracts Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee as it
relates to the Executive and the Resources, Commissioning and Contract Management
Portfolio. Under these terms of reference, the services provided by Liberata fall within the remit
of this portfolio.

8.3 Contract Procedure Rule 23.2 provides that for all Contracts with a value higher than
£500,000, or which are High Risk, an annual report must be submitted to the Portfolio Holder,
the responsible Officers having submitted for consideration a formal Gateway Review, covering,
as appropriate, the matters identified in the Council's standard Gateway Review, Template for
consideration as part of Contract Monitoring/Management requirements.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS

9 Page 73



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

9.1 In line with 23.2 of the Council's Contract Procedure Rules, an annual report must be
submitted to the Portfolio Holder for all contracts with a value higher than £500k.

9.2 This report primarily concerns the performance of the Customer Service Contract provided
by Liberata. Any procurement arising will be subject to the Council's Contract Procedure Rules
and Public Contracts Regulations 2015.

9.3 The Corporate Procurement Team will be consulted on the specifics of any procurement
arising.

PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS
None

CARBON REDUCTION/SOCIAL VALUE IMPLICATIONS

Liberata exclusively uses Ark data centres which are committed to the European Green Deal,
achieving the ambitious greenhouse gas reductions of the climate law, and leveraging
technology and digitalisation to achieve the goal of making Europe climate neutral by 2050. For
the last 7 years, all Ark facilities have been powered by 100% renewable energy. To improve
sustainability further Ark has developed innovative direct air evaporative cooling capability that
dramatically lowers energy consumption and cost, capable of providing compressor free cooling
for 100% of every year. The My Bromley account software supports subscribers to e-billing,
reducing paper production and postal service reliance. Officers continue to work with Liberata
on projects to increase back-office automation and further reduce paper volumes.

Liberata also supports staff to volunteer for local organisations, such as Age Concern
befriending scheme.

IMPACT ON THE LOCAL ECONOMY
Reception service is a town centre location therefore supports the local economy.
IMPACT ON HEALTH AND WELLBEING

Reception service supports promotion of Health & Wellbeing initiatives by printed publicity and
electronic display boards.

CUSTOMER IMPACT

Customers Services potentially impacts all residents and visitors in the borough.
WARD COUNCILLOR VIEWS

None

Non-Applicable Headings: | 5, 7, 10, 15

Background Documents: Appendix 1 — Letter from Liberata (Corporate Customer
(Access via Contact Officer) | Services - 7 May 2024)

10 Page 74



5 ThinkCO 2" Floor Fron
L' be thQ ServiceTech 60 Chfiﬁﬂig
EC2V 6AX

Duncan Bridgewater

Assistant Director — Customer Services

Chief Executive’s Department,

Human Resources, Customer Services & Public Affairs
London Borough of Bromley

Civic Centre

Stockwell Close

Bromley

BR1 3UH

Date: 07" May 2024
Dear Duncan,
As we approach the June Executive & Resources PDS meeting where we consider and review the
performance of Corporate Customer Services, we take this opportunity to write to you with
Liberata’s assessment of the performance of this critical high-profile service that we provide to
London Borough of Bromley (LBB) and its citizens.
During this reporting period, the team went live with the remaining VoiceBots for the Corporate
Services. This has proved to be successful in managing customer enquiries and providing
signposting information. We will continue to fine tune the VoiceBots by adding phrases and
answers, the VoiceBots will continue to self-learn during customers conversations.

This summary covers performance for the 15t December 2023 — 315t March 2024.

Customer Services Performance

The Corporate Contact Centre delivered an average service level of calls being answered within
60 seconds of 71.15% against a target of 50% for this reporting period. There were 0 days when
the service level dipped below 40%.

Calls answered volume was 28,834 for this reporting period which was a slight reduction in
comparison to the same period in 2022/23 which was 30,979.

During this period, the average service level for the switchboard was 90.00% against the target of
50% answered within 60 seconds. Calls answered volume was 16,486 for the reporting period
which was an increase in comparison to the same 4-month period in 2022/23 of 19,652 calls.

Service for the out of hours has remained consistent for this reporting period with the exception of
December 2023, this was due to a number of storm events impacting the out of hours contact
centre as well as the cold weather at the beginning of December.

The Customer Services front facing team continued to operate an appointment only service, but
vulnerable customers who presented without an appointment were seen. During this reporting
period, the team saw 1,366 customers which is a slight increase in footfall in comparison to 1,232
for the same period in 2022/23.

Liberata is a trading name of Liberata UK Limited
(Registered in England and Wales - No 1238274)
Registered Office: 2nd Floor Front, 60 Cheapside, London, EC2V 6AX
Liberata UK Limited is a subsidiary of Outsourcing UK Limited (Registered in England and Wales — No 10280945)

Registered Office: Floor 9, Peninsular House, 30-36 Monument Street, London, EC3R 8LJ

Page 75



i Think OO " Floor Fron
Liberata stiiccrecn e

EC2V 6AX

Website Performance

The performance of the website continues to remain strong and the team have managed to achieve
100% for all 4 of their main KPI's. These include:

»  Critical updates completed within 1 hour (100%)

+ Urgent updates completed within 1 working day (100%)

* Important updates completed within 2 working days (100%)
* Regular updates completed within 5 working days (100%)

Over the last reporting period the Bromley Knowledge team have continued to deliver an exemplar
service on behalf of the London Borough of Bromley. The team have been continuing to work on
reviewing the number of PDF documents on the website and working with the relevant service
areas to convert PDFs to web content and develop online forms where possible. The team made
significant progress on reducing the number of PDF documents and, to date, have removed 236
PDFs from the website.

MyBromley Account Developments

MyBromley Account registrations as at the end of March 2024 were 139,556. The number of new
registrations during this period equated to 5,523 from December 2023 to March 2024.

Performance

Liberata remains firmly committed to delivering an outstanding service to the London Borough of
Bromley and its citizens. We have increased our engagement in the various forums to ensure that
the Council remains at the forefront of Digital engagement amongst its peers.

Yours sincerely,

A

Bola Odunsi
Regional Director (London & The South East)

Liberata is a trading name of Liberata UK Limited
(Registered in England and Wales - No 1238274)
Registered Office: 2nd Floor Front, 60 Cheapside, London, EC2V 6AX
Liberata UK Limited is a subsidiary of Outsourcing UK Limited (Registered in England and Wales — No 10280945)

Registered Office: Floor 9, Peninsular House, 30-36 Monument Street, London, EC3R 8LJ

Page 76



Report No.
FSD24044

Agenda Item 10b

London Borough of Bromley

PART ONE - PUBLIC

Decision Maker:

Date:

Decision Type:

Title:

Contact Officer:

Chief Officer:

Ward:

EXECUTIVE,RESOURCES AND CONTRACTS POLICY
DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Monday 8 July 2024

Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key

EXCHEQUERSERVICE CONTRACT PERFORMANCE REPORT

Claudine Douglas-Brown, Assistant Director: Exchequer Services
Tel: 020 8461 7479 E-mail: Claudine.Douglas-Brown@bromley.gov.uk

Director of Finance

(Al Wards);

1. Reason for decision/report and options

1.1 This report provides information regarding Liberata’s performance in the provision of Exchequer
Services for the period 15t April 2023 to 315tMarch 2024.

1.2 A letter from Bola Odunsi, Liberata’s Regional Contract Director, provides an update on each
individual service and is attached at Appendix 1 with statistical data relating to the services
shown in subsequent appendices.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

The Committee is requested to note the information contained within the report on
Liberata’s performance and the action taken to address any performance issues.

1 Page 77



Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children
1. Summary of Impact: None

Transformation Policy
1. Policy Status: Existing Policy
2. Making Bromley Even Better Priority (delete as appropriate):

(5) To manage our resources well, providing value for money, and efficient and effective
services for Bromley’s residents.

Financial

1. Costof proposal: Not Applicable

2. Ongoing costs: Not Applicable

3. Budget head/performance centre: Exchequer Service — Payment, Income and Charging
4. Total current budget for this head: £2.24m

5. Source of funding: General Fund Revenue Budget

Personnel
1. Number of staff (current and additional): 5fte plus Liberata staff
2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: Not Applicable

Legal
1. Legal Requirement: Statutory Requirement: Further Details

Public Health (Control of Disease) Act 1984

Late Payment of Commercial Debts (interest) Act 1998
The County Court Act 1984

The Civil Procedure Rules

Environmental Protection Act 1990

Housing Act 2004

The Care Act 2014

The Public Contracts regulations 2015

2. Call-in: Not Applicable

Procurement
1. Summary of Procurement Implications: None

Property
1. Summary of Property Implications: None

Carbon Reduction and Social Value

2 Page 78



1. Summary of Carbon Reduction/Sustainability Implications: None

Impact on the Local Economy
1. Summary of Local Economy Implications: None

Impact on Health and Wellbeing
1. Summary of Health and Wellbeing Implications: None

Customer Impact
1. Estimated number of users or customers (current and projected): 40,000

Ward Councillor Views
1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Not Applicable
2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments: None

3 Page 79



3. COMMENTARY

3.1 This report provides information regarding the performance of the Exchequer Services provided
by Liberata for the period 15t April 2023 to 315t March 2024.

3.2 The Exchequer Client Unit monitor the contractor's compliance against the contract to ensure
that services are provided to the required standard, meeting the agreed targets and
performance standards. Where there are areas of concern or underperformance, the Assistant
Director, Exchequer Services will agree an action plan with Liberata to address these issues.
The team also ensures the services comply with current legislation, financial regulations,
contractual obligations and audit requirements.

3.3 To maintain the drive for improved service performance, monthly service review meetings are
held with operational and senior Liberata management. To further illustrate the commitment to
the continuous improvement agenda the Contract Director and Finance Service Delivery
Director meets with Bromley regularly to deal with escalated issues, review policies and develop
new ideas.

3.4  The Exchequer Services covered in this report are: -
» Sundry Debtors, Mortgages and Corporate Debt
* Accounts Payable
* Financial Assessment and Charging
» Appointee and Deputyship

3.5 Sundry Debtors, Mortgages & Corporate Debt

3.5.1 The Sundry Debts performance is measured on the amounts recovered at the end of each
reporting period. At the 315t March 2024 there were 5,236 invoices outstanding totalling
£19.52m, an increase of £1.62m when compared to 315t March 2023. Of the total amount,
£5.46m (27.98%) had been outstanding for 30 days or less.

3.5.2 The increase of £1.62m was due to the rise in disputed debts referred to at paragraphs 3.5.8
and 3.5.14.

3.5.3 As at 31st March 2024, the amount recovered in respect of invoices raised between 15t April
2023 and 315t March 2024 was £35.8m or 85.22% against the target of 92%.

3.5.4 The table below lists the debts where Liberata were unable to pursue recovery action. These
adversely affect in-year collection.

Table 1

Description No. of Invoices | Value of Invoices
Community Infrastructure Level (CIL) invoices due

after the 1st April 2024 9 £358,596.00
Disputed and Escalated debts 303 £2,420,336.24
Debts placed on hold by LBB Departments 21 £123,009.86
Debts with LBB Legal Team 13 £15,981.12
Debts secured by Charging Order 2 £254,402.77
Debts referred for Write Off 49 £86,356.53
Total 397 £3,258,682.52

3.5.5 Table 2 shows the in-year collection rate however to reflect Liberata’s recovery performance it
has been adjusted to take account of those debts where Liberata could not pursue payment.
This gives a revised collection rate of 92.38% at 315t March 2024.

4 Page 80



Table 2

As at As at As at As at
31/03/21 | 31/03/22 | 31/03/23 | 31/03/24
Unadjusted Collection Rate 71.49% 80.68% 81.40% 85.22%
Adjusted Collection Rate 93.12% 97.55% 93.28% 92.38%

3.5.6 Appendix 2 shows the comparison between the levels of outstanding debt for each month from
April to March for the years 2021/22 through to 2023/24.

3.5.7 Appendix 3 shows the comparison between the numbers of invoices outstanding each month

from April to March for the years 2021/22 through to 2023/24

3.5.8 This graph shows an increase in the total number of invoices outstanding at the end of each
month. Residential care invoices are often disputed and remain unpaid until issues are resolved
which can take some time if the matter is complex or a final Ombudsman decision is required

before the debt can be pursued.

Aged Debt

3.5.9 The out-of-year collection rate across all financial years was 99.1% with £10.3m collected up to
the end of March 2024. The factors which continue to affect out-of-year collection are shown
below. Once this has been adjusted to take account of these debts the collection rate was

99.58%.

Table 3
Description Value of Invoices
Disputed and Escalated debts £3,464,088.68
Debts referred for Write Off & awaiting cancellation £1,632,172.25
Debts placed on hold by LBB Departments £131,140.24
Debts with LBB's Legal Team £63,753.22
Debts relating to Insolvency £1,163,895.01
Debts secured by Charging Order £514,252.23
Total £6,969,301.63

3.5.10 Of the £1.16m relating to insolvency, £1.1m is in respect of corporate rents owed by one
organisation that went into liquidation in 2022. To date we have received dividends totalling
£530k and we are expecting to receive a final dividend in 2024.

3.5.11 Table 4 shows the movement in the out-of-year debt for the year 15t April 2023 to 315t March
2024 along with the overall percentage reduction.

5 Page 81



Table 4

Reduction since

Fin Year 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-24 31/03/23
£,000 £,000 %
Pre 2018 1,525 1,294 15%
2018/19 390 338 13%
2019/20 569 503 12%
2020/21 1,789 1,421 21%
2021/22 2,048 1,569 23%
2022/23 11,502 2477 78%
Total 17,823 7,602 57%

3.5.12 Appendix 4 shows the overall recovery position of debts in each financial year up to 31stMarch
2024.

3.5.13 The debts in dispute or on hold where Liberata require instructions from LBB, remain high at
£3.8m however disputed invoices over one year old have reduced by 50%.

3.5.14 In 2023/24 the value of invoices disputed was significantly higher than in previous years which
was mainly due to the number of invoices for residential care charges that were disputed.

3.5.15 Liberata continue to work with LBB officers to resolve queries and disputes as quickly as
possible so that recovery action can continue. Cases are escalated by Liberata to the
Exchequer Client Unit who liaise with senior LBB officers regarding pursuing the debt or writing
it off if it is uncollectable.

Utilities
3.5.16 Appendix 5 shows a summary of Utility debts as at 315t March 2024.

3.5.17 The total debt outstanding for Utilities as at 31t March 2024 was £260k which is 7% higher
than the previous financial year however the amount of debt over 30 days old has reduced by
11% and the value of invoices in dispute has reduced by 44%. Liberata continue to liaise with
the service department regarding all disputed sums.

Income

3.5.18 The Income Team raised 13,288 sundry invoices (excluding the Trade Refuse service) with a
value of £55.82m from 15t April 2023 to 315tMarch 2024. This represents an increase of 5% in
the number of invoices raised in comparison to 2022/23.

3.5.19 During the same period, 1,186 invoices relating to all financial years with a total value of
£8.2m were subsequently cancelled. This includes invoices for charges raised in advance
where the service was subsequently cancelled.

3.5.20 This is a much higher number and value compared to previous years, caused by several
property sales during 2023/24 resulting in part cancellations of rent and a large number of
credits for deceased cases and backdated assessments for residential care charges.
Combined, these accounted for 69% of the cancellations.

3.5.21 Appendix 6 shows the value of invoices raised month by month for the period from 15t April
2023 to 31stMarch 2024 compared to the same periods in the previous two financial years.

6 Page 82



3.5.22 Appendix 7 shows the number of invoices raised month by month for the period from 15t April
2023 to 31stMarch 2024 compared to the same periods in the previous two financial years.

3.5.23 The significant increase in the volume of invoices raised that can be seen in some months is
mainly due to residential care invoices. However, the volume has started to decrease as the
providers have started to collect the care charges.

Trade Waste

3.5.24 The outstanding debt for Trade Waste was £149k as at 315t March 2024. Table 5 provides an
analysis of the debt and compares it to the position as at 315t March 2023. This shows that the
debt has reduced by over £28k compared to the previous year.

Table 5
- As at 31st March | As at 31st March )
Age Analysis of Trade Balance 2023 2024 Variance
£ £ £ %

Under 30 days old 9,013 996 -8,017
Invoices 31-365 days old 61,947 37,108 -24,839
Invoices over 1 year old 107,005 111,278 4,273

Total 177,965 149,383 -28,582 -18.04%
Recovery Status of Trade Balance
Payment arrangements/Direct Debits 2,113 8,292 6,180
Invoices in dispute 35,047 19,281 -15,766
Awaiting cancellation 2,309 1,880 -429
Awaiting write off 22,894 29,528 6,634
Active Recovery 115,602 90,402 -25,200

Total 177,965 149,383 -28,583 -18.04%

Nightly Paid Accommodation Charges

3.5.25 The outstanding debt for Nightly Paid Accommodation charges as at 31St March 2024 was
£8.94m. Table 6 gives a breakdown of the outstanding debt as at 315t March 2024 which shows
an overall increase of £300k or 3.48% compared to 2023.

3.5.26 However, the total rent charge for the year has increased by over £1m (5.56%) since 2022/23.
This is linked to the increase in the number of Current Tenants placed in Nightly Paid
Accommodation (see Table 7 below).

3.5.27 When tenants are initially placed, they are encouraged to apply for Housing Benefit and where
assistance to complete forms is required Liberata refer them to the Support & Resettlement
Team in Housing.

3.5.28 All correspondence issued to tenants highlights the importance of applying for Housing Benefit
and claims are monitored to ensure that where there are any suspended claims these are
followed up and discussed with the tenants.

3.5.29 It should be noted however that there are more people in temporary accommodation whose
income is above the income thresholds for receiving Housing Benefit, also the feedback from
recovery officers who liaise with tenants indicates that cost-of-living issues is cited as the reason

for non-payment.

7 Page 83



3.5.30 Issuing statements on a 4-weekly basis continues to form part of the process for current tenants
and tenants are also signposted for debt advice and financial help.

3.5.31 Tenants often had larger debts at the start of the eviction process due to recovery action being
prevented during the pandemic. This led to an increase in the debt level for former tenants
requiring tracing and/or further recovery action.

3.5.32 Where Liberata can agree payment arrangements for former tenants they are frequently for very
small instalments over long periods of time thereby affecting collection rates. Tenants often have
issues with affordability and do not possess the assets needed for successful enforcement of
legal action. Where payment arrangements are offered, itis preferable to acceptlow repayments
rather than submitting the debt for write off.

3.5.33 A workshop was held in June 2024 with Liberata, the Exchequer Client Unit and the Housing
Department which identified a number of areas for further review and action to improve
communication between the teams, improve the tenant support at the sign up stage to take into
account that tenants are being placed out of borough, and reduce the length of the eviction
process where appropriate.

Table 6
As at 31 March As at 31 March Variance
2023 2024 %
Charges raised for current year and arrears
brought forward for previous years £18,129,101 £19,136,401| 5.56%
Payments received from debtors -£1,580,218 -£1,492,246| -5.57%
Housing Benefit awards -£7,824,704 -£8,518,641| 8.87%
Sub total £8,724,180 £9,125,514| 4.60%
Less Grants provided for Rough Sleepers £0 -£102,044
Less combined total debts written on/off -£81,590 -£80,421| -1.43%
Total £8,642,589 £8,943,049| 3.48%
Table 7
Tenant Numbers Variance
Month/Year | Currents | Formers Total %
Mar-20 714 1,872 2,586 -
Mar-21 899 2,249 3,148 21.73%
Mar-22 1,115 2,757 3,872 23.00%
Mar-23 1,035 2,835 3,870 -0.05%
Mar-24 1,356 3,130 4,486 15.92%

3.6  Accounts Payable

8 Page 84



3.6.1 Under the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 the Council is required to publish prompt payment
data showing the percentage of undisputed invoices paid within 30 days.

3.6.2 A performance summary covering the period from 1st April 2023 to 315t March 2024 is shown
below. This shows that the percentage of undisputed invoices paid within 30 days was 97%,
against a target of 99%. The percentage of invoices paid within 20 days was 96%.

3.6.3 Although the performance was below the target, there has been an improvement of 3% when
compared with the previous year's performance of 94%. Liberata and the Exchequer Unit
continue to liaise with service departments to reduce the delays with the receipting of goods and
services which impact the timely payment of invoices. The performance for April and May have

been 98%.
Table 8
Invoices | Invoices Invoices | Invoices
. o, o o,
Target: 99% Over 30 |Under 30 Ll - Over 20 | Under 20 LEEL &

Manuals

592 19,574 | 20,166 97% 699 19,467 20,166 97%
I-Proc

602 13,178 | 13,780 96% 1,055 12,725 13,780 72%
Social Care

32 9,339 9,371 100% 56 9,315 9,371 99%
Total 1226 42,091 43,317 97% 1,810 41,507 43,317 96%

3.6.4 Table 9 below shows the percentage split in the method of payments to suppliers. The
percentage of suppliers paid by BACS from 15t April 2023 to 315tMarch 2024 was 99%. This is
an increase in BACS payments of 1% compared to the previous year.

3.6.5 The number of payments made by cheque continues to reduce year on year and officers will
continue to work with Liberata to reduce this further.

Table 9

9 Page 85



2022/23 2023/24
BACS Cheques BACS Cheques

No. % No. % No. % No. %
April 2,418 97% 71 3% 3,500 98% 58 2%
May 3,404 99% 33 1% 4,181 99% 34 1%
June 3,456 99% 48 1% 3,745 98% 65 2%
July 3,508 98% 70 2% 3,369 99% 44 1%
Aug 3,821 98% 73 2% 4,101 99% 56 1%
Sept 3,293 98% 77 2% 3,459 99% 24 1%
Oct 3,420 98% 77 2% 3,866 99% 45 1%
Nov 4,442 99% 61 1% 4,439 99% 56 1%
Dec 3,276 99% 26 1% 3,176 99% 21 1%
Jan 3,992 98% 76 2% 4,353 99% 55 1%
Feb 3,488 98% 60 2% 4,298 99% 28 1%
Mar 4,582 99% 59 1% 3,983 99% 30 1%
43,100 98% 731 2%| 46,470 99% 516 1%

3.7 Financial Assessment and Charging

3.7.1 The Key Performance Indicator figures for the team covering the period from 1st April 2023 to

3.7.2

3.7.3

3.7.4

3.7.5

31st March 2024 are shown in table 10 below.

Table 10
. Actual Actual Actual Actual
Indicator Target | 505021 | 2021/22 | 2022123 | 2023124
Complete Financial
Assessments within 10 100% 89% 97% 92% 100%
working days
Produce the charging file in
line with the timetable 100% 100% 100% N/A N/A

Performance remained stable by using the automated Workflow Manager on the Anite
Document Management Systems (DMS) which was changed to Northgate Document
Management System (NDMS) in February 2024. The team adapted well to this change and
continued to meet the target month on month.

Liberata continue to quality check staff outputs to ensure service standards are met. Procedures
are updated regularly and briefing notes issued as and when required. Using experience from
other Councils has assisted with working practices to improve performance.

There is ongoing work to explore the use of ContrOCC functionality to automate processes and
reduce human error. Liberata are also continuing to work closely with LBB to ensure that we are
well placed to resume the work required for the Social Care Reforms should they proceed in the
future.

Customers continue to use the online facility to complete a financial assessment form, upload
evidence and contact the team. The online channel is promoted on all correspondence to

10 Page 86



3.8

3.8.1

3.8.2

3.8.3

3.84

customers and their representatives. For the financial year April 23 to March 24, 51% of
customers completed the online financial assessment form.

Appointee and Deputyship

The Key Performance Indicator figures for the team, covering the year to 315t March 2024, are
shown in table 11 below which shows the service is consistently performing well. This
performance has also been maintained at 100% for both indicators as at 30" April 2024.

The migration to the new Caspar Cloud system In January 2023 offered improved functionality
and once it had bedded in Liberata implemented the automation of the bank reconciliations
successfully in July 2023. This streamlined the bank reconciliation process significantly.

The system provider, Trojan released a recent enhancement to Caspar Cloud which allows the
DWP benefit rates to be updated annually for multiple clients. This was implemented by Liberata
at the end of April 2024 which significantly reduced the amount of time it took to manually
complete this task.

The system supports the new Deputyship process and legal Court of Protection forms which
collectively aid the Appointee & Deputyship team in working effectively.

Table 11

Indicator

Target

Actual
2020/21

Actual
2021/22

Actual
2022/23

Actual
2023/24

Referral of applications to the Panel
within 14 working days

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Raise inwices within 2 months of
the anniversary of the court order

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

3.9

391

3.9.2

3.9.3

User/Stakeholder Satisfaction

Complaints are used as a tool for improvement, with individual errors seen as an opportunity
to put things right not just for the individual complainant but for the wider community.

The table below shows the number of complaints received since April 2020 split between
justified and unjustified. For the range of services being provided the number of complaints
remains relatively low, however there was an increase following the transition to the new Care
Management system.

Liberata have worked closely with Council colleagues to resolve the system issues and as a

result the number of complaints have fallen however there is ongoing work to improve the
customer experience.

Table 12

2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023/24 |

11 Page 87



4.

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

5.1

Sundry Debtors/Income

Justified 6 7 19 4
Unjustified 2 3 9 12
Total 8 10 28 16
Accounts Payable &

Charging

Justified - - 14 4
Unjustified - - 3 4
Total - - 17 8
Financial Assessment

Justified 7 13 22 22
Unjustified 6 12 22 12
Total 13 25 44 34
Appointee & Deputyship

Justified - - - -
Unjustified - - - -
Total - - - -

IMPACT ON VULNERABLE ADULTS AND CHILDREN

The Single Financial Assessment Unit are required to carry out timely and accurate
financial assessments so that the adults receiving social care and support are informed as
early as possible how much they are required to pay towards their care. When there are
delays in completing financial assessments or providing information this can cause
distress or anxiety for clients and their families.

The Accounts Payable Team are responsible for making direct payments to vulnerable
adults, children with disabilities, foster carers and care homes. Making the correct
payments on time ensures there is no impact on vulnerable adults or children.

The Appointee and Deputyship Team provide services to vulnerable adults who lack the
capacity to manage their finances. Prompt submission of court and DWP applications
ensures that the risk of financial abuse is removed as early as possible.

The Appointee and Deputyship Team also carries out protection of property to

prevent or mitigate the loss or damage to property belonging to adults in Bromley who are
receiving care and support from the Council or are in hospital and no suitable
arrangements have been made.

TRANSFORMATION/POLICY IMPLICATIONS
One of the “Making Bromley Even Better” ambitions is to manage our resources well, providing
value for money, efficient and effective services for Bromley's residents. To achieve this, we will

ensure robust contract management with a focus on efficiency and innovation to improve services
for Bromley residents.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

12 Page 88



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.1

8.1

8.2

8.3

The services provided through the Exchequer Services Contract referred to within this report deal
with significant financial transactions with examples illustrated below:

e Accounts Payable - £500m per annum
e Sundry debts (income) - £48m per annum
e Financial Assessments - £14m per annum

e Appointee and Deputyship - £3m per annum
The contract costs £2.24m per annum against a revenue budget of £2.24m for 2023/24.

There are no direct financial implications as a consequence of this report, however the report
requests members to take note of the performance of Liberata (the contract provider) and any
actions taken to improve performance.

This service is responsible for significant number of financial transactions (as illustrated above),
for which poor performance or management of these duties can be significantly costly to the
council and can affect our cashflow, liquidity and ability to meet our liabilities.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

This report is a contract performance report for Exchequer Services and is submitted in
compliance with rule 23 of the Contract Procedure Rules which requires an annual update report
to be submitted when the value of the contract is in excess of £1 million.

CARBON REDUCTION/SOCIAL VALUE IMPLICATIONS

Liberata exclusively uses Ark data centres which are committed to the European Green Deal,
achieving the ambitious greenhouse gas reductions of the climate law, and leveraging technology
and digitalisation to achieve the goal of making Europe climate neutral by 2050. For the last 6
years, all Ark facilities have been powered by 100% renewable energy. To improve sustainability
further Ark has developed innovative direct air evaporative cooling capability that dramatically
lowers energy consumption and cost, capable of providing compressor free cooling for 100% of
every year.

The MyBromley account software supports over 49,815 subscribers to e-billing, reducing paper
production and postal service reliance. Officers continue to work with Liberata on projects to
increase back-office automation and further reduce paper volumes.

Liberata also supports staff to volunteer for local organisations, such as Age Concern befriending
scheme.

9. CUSTOMER IMPACT

9.1

The services covered in this report affect those who owe general income to the Council, all of the
Council's suppliers and all adult social care clients. This amounts to an estimated 40,000 people.

Non-Applicable Headings: | Personnel implications, Procurement implications, Property
implications, impact on the local economy, impact on Health
and Wellbeing, Ward councillor views

13 Page 89



Background Documents:
(Access via Contact Officer)

14 Page 90




e ThinkOCO 2" Floor Fron
L' be thQ ServiceTech 60 Ch‘iiﬁﬂig
EC2V 6AX

Claudine Douglas-Brown

Assistant Director of Exchequer Services
London Borough of Bromley

Civic Centre

Stockwell Close

Bromley

BR1 3UH

Appendix 1

23" May 2024
Our Ref: BO

Dear Claudine,

As we approach the June 2024 Executive, Resources and Contracts Policy Development and Scrutiny
Committee where we consider and review the Exchequer service, we take this opportunity to write to you
with Liberata’s assessment of the performance that we have provided to London Borough of Bromley (LBB)
and its citizens.

This summary covers performance for the year to 31° March 2024.
Debtors and Income

For the 2023/24 financial year we achieved an unadjusted collection rate of 85.22% on in-year debt. Although
this equated to £35.8m of cash received, it was still below the target of 92%. However, within the outstanding
balance there remained several debts where we were unable to take any recovery action. For a true reflection
of our recovery performance, we must exclude these debts and calculate an adjusted collection rate. As such,
the adjusted rate for the year was 92.38%, which was 0.38% above the target. A summary of the main debts
that have been excluded from the adjusted rate are listed below:

e There were debts of £2.56m which remained on hold at the year end. This was due to them either being
disputed or were cases where we were awaiting further instructions from the Council.

e Debts totalling £359k related to Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) invoices. Although these had been
raised during the year, they were not actually due for payment until after the year end.

e A total of £254k of debts had been secured by charging order whilst a further £86.4k of debts were
awaiting write off at the year end.

Liberata is a trading name of Liberata UK Limited
(Registered in England and Wales - No 1238274)
Registered Office: 2nd Floor Front, 60 Cheapside, London, EC2V 6AX
Liberata UK Limited is a subsidiary of Outsourcing UK Limited (Registered in England and Wales — No 10280945)

Registered Office: Floor 9, Peninsular House, 30-36 Monument Street, London, EC3R 8LJ

Page 91



Liberata :ietech

2" Floor Front
60 Cheapside

London
EC2V 6AX

In Year Collection 31/3/2024 31/3/2023 Variance
£m £m £m
Net Collectable Debt £42.01 £63.86 -£21.85
Amount Collected £35.80 £51.98 -£16.18
Unadjusted Collection Rate 85.22% 81.40% 3.82%
Adjustments to Net Collectable
Debt:
- CIL Debts -£0.36 -£1.14 £0.78
- Disputed Debts -£2.42 -£0.76 -£1.66
- With LBB -£0.14 -£0.06 -£0.08
- Charging Orders -£0.25 -£0.08 -£0.17
- Awaiting write off -£0.09 -£0.03 -£0.06
- Invoices less than 30 days old* £0.00 -£6.09 £6.09
Adjusted Net Collectable Debt £38.75 £55.77 -£17.02
Adjusted Collection Rate 92.38% | 93.28% -0.90%

*Invoices less than 30 days old are now excluded from our Unadjusted Collection Rate calculation

We collected cash of £10.31m on out-of-year debt which gave a collection rate of 99.1%. However, like the
in-year debt, there remained cases totalling over £6.9m where we were unable to take any active recovery
action. Taking these debts into account increased the collection rate to 99.58%. These debts are summarised
below:

e A total of £3.66m of debts were either in dispute or had been placed on hold by Council departments at
the year end.

e There were £1.63m of invoices awaiting write-off.

e Debts totalling £1.16m related to organisations that were in administration. The majority of this, £1.12m,
relates to a high street retailer.

e £0.51m of debt was secured by charging orders on the debtors’ properties.

The Council’s temporary change to the Residential Care charging policy has continued to adversely impact
operations. The large increase in volume and value of invoices raised has resulted in a material increase in
queries, disputes and cancellations as is evidenced in our report.

We have also continued to see both individuals and businesses being adversely impacted by the current
economic climate. As a result, we have continued with our policy of maintaining regular contact with debtors

Liberata is a trading name of Liberata UK Limited
(Registered in England and Wales - No 1238274)
Registered Office: 2nd Floor Front, 60 Cheapside, London, EC2V 6AX
Liberata UK Limited is a subsidiary of Outsourcing UK Limited (Registered in England and Wales — No 10280945)

Registered Office: Floor 9, Peninsular House, 30-36 Monument Street, London, EC3R 8LJ

Page 92



e ThinkOCO 2" Floor Fron
L' be thQ ServiceTech 60 Ch‘iiiﬂig
EC2V 6AX

to ensure that they fully understood the amount and reason for the debt and to secure early payment. This
was particularly true for Social Care debt and Temporary Accommodation debt. For residents receiving Social
Care we have been contacting them once they have started to incur charges. This is to ensure they understand
how the charges have been calculated and to stress the importance of making regular payments. Historically,
we have found that due to confusion, some residents delay making any payments. This can quickly lead to the
creation of large outstanding debt balances. For Temporary Accommodation tenants we have continued
issuing statements on a four-weekly basis. This ensures that they are made aware of their outstanding
balances and prompts them to contact us if they have any questions or financial concerns.

We continue to work with the Client Unit and Council departments to look at further opportunities to review
and improve internal debt creation and collection processes. As such we have recently commenced a project
designed to automate the production of invoice requests which we receive from Council departments.
Although this is still at the review stage, it is believed that the automation will result in faster processing times
while eliminating keying errors.

Accounts Payable

For the financial year 2023/2024 the Liberata performance for undisputed invoices paid within 30 days was
99.59% which was above the target of 99%. The Council’s reported performance on this same metric was 97%
for the previous year, which is an increase in performance of 3%. This increase was driven by an improvement
in the receipting of goods and services which were actioned more promptly by Council officers.

As a way of speeding up the processing of supplier invoices, we have recently commenced discussions with
the Council on implementing a new automated scanning solution. This will not only reduce processing times
and eliminate manual keying errors but will also reduce the risk of incorrect payments being made when
suppliers send in duplicate invoices.

In line with previous years, we have continued to drive down the use of cheque payments. As a result, during
the year, we paid 99% of suppliers by BACS which was an improvement on the previous period’s figure which
was 98%.

Financial Assessment and Management Team

As at the end of March 2024, we had 886 Residential Care cases and 2,327 Non-Residential Care cases. Liberata
has continued to work closely with the Council to improve our current processes and performance along with
the project team and progress has been made in some areas. There has been no further update with regards
to the changes in Social Care Reform however, Liberata are in a position to implement any changes that may
occur. Skill sets and knowledge continue to increase within the team to provide increased resilience in all
areas.

Appointee & Deputyship Team

As at 31°* March 2024, the team had a portfolio of 308 clients of which 263 were for Appointees and 45 were
for Deputyship. The number of cases managed by the team has increased since 2020.

Liberata is a trading name of Liberata UK Limited
(Registered in England and Wales - No 1238274)
Registered Office: 2nd Floor Front, 60 Cheapside, London, EC2V 6AX
Liberata UK Limited is a subsidiary of Outsourcing UK Limited (Registered in England and Wales — No 10280945)

Registered Office: Floor 9, Peninsular House, 30-36 Monument Street, London, EC3R 8LJ

Page 93



e ThinkOCO 2" Floor Fron
lee thQ ServiceTech 60 Ch‘iii‘f}ig
EC2V 6AX

The team use the newly migrated Caspar Cloud system for their case management. The automated bank
reconciliations undertaken by the team are working very well. This has resulted in a reduction in the time
taken to complete these reconciliations compared to the old manual process.

There is also a recent enhancement within Caspar Cloud which allows the team to update the new DWP benefit
rates at the start of the financial year for multiple clients. The team used this facility in April 2024 which
allowed the DWP benefit to be updated more quickly, hence saving time. The team continues to work
effectively in identifying changes within Caspar Cloud to improve work tasks and processes.

| trust you find that the above has been informative and comprehensively demonstrates that Liberata remains
firmly committed to delivering an outstanding service to the London Borough of Bromley and its citizens.

Yours sincerely

Bola Odunsi
Regional Director (London & The Southeast)

Liberata is a trading name of Liberata UK Limited
(Registered in England and Wales - No 1238274)
Registered Office: 2nd Floor Front, 60 Cheapside, London, EC2V 6AX
Liberata UK Limited is a subsidiary of Outsourcing UK Limited (Registered in England and Wales — No 10280945)

Registered Office: Floor 9, Peninsular House, 30-36 Monument Street, London, EC3R 8LJ

Page 94



Appendix 2

Monthly Comparison of Total Outstanding Debt

Mar

Feb

Jan

Dec

Nov

Oct

Aug

Jul

Jun

May

Apr

©
N

<
N

T
N
N

10 A

1 1 1 1
o <o) © < N
139 - = - -

w3 - jgaq Buipuesing jo anjep

u2022/23 12023/24

12021/22

Months

Page 95




96 abed

Appendix 3

No. of Invoices Outstanding

7,000

6,000

5,000

4,000

3,000

2,000

1,000

Monthly Comparison of no. of Invoices Outstanding

Apr

May

Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan
Months

12021/22

Feb

m2022/23

Mar

112023/24




/6 abed

Overall Recovery position of Debts raised in the financial years as at 315t March 2024

Outstanding balance and Recovery position of debts raised in the years below

Fin Year in which the original debt was

raised Pre 2019 | 2019-20 | 2020-21 | 2021-22 | 2022-23 | 2023-24 |Grand Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

In reminder letter cycles (no pro-active recovery) 5571 5,571
Recovery being actively pursued 36 55 48 120 665 1,947 2,871
In Recovery, paid by instalments 49 5 7 65 79 219 425
Awaiting Cancellation 4 9 3 11 13 2 42
Appointee & Deputyship in place 7 42 32 232 222 534
Deceased Accounts 145 16 153 126 421 627 1,488
Searching for probate 5 18 1 55 1 79
Probate granted (in recovery) 1 3 22 79 128 22 254
Debt Secured by Charge 164 97 254 515
With LBB for Instructions 1 10 120 131
Pre Debt Collector checks 4 5 11 31 23 30 105
With Debt Collector 21 4 6 9 12 53
Returned from Debt Collector 2 1 4
Court Action (pre-legal action review &
application) 139 157 123 77 95 95 686
Judgement obtained - Enforcement options in
review 39 2 41
Judgement obtained - High Court Enforcement 14 1 10 25
With LBB Legal Dept for instructions 27 16 43
In Administration (Insolvency) 634 529 1 1,164
Recommended for Write Off 973 202 130 111 130 86 1,632
In dispute/under query with LBB Service
Departments 33 40 230 377 480 2,655 3,814
Covid-19 Grant Clawback 3 19 23
Premises Licences 19 19
Grand Total 1,631 503 1,421 1,569 2,477 11,917 19,518

Appendix 4



86 abed

Age Profile of outstanding Utility Debts as at 315t March 2024

Appendix 5

- TOTAL
Utility Pre 2019 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 BALANCE
Virgin Media £0 £0 £0 £475 £0 £15,527 £16,002
British Telecom £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
EDF £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
UK Power Networks Ltd £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
SGN PLC £0 £0 £0 £3,360 £0 £44,848 £48,208
Thames Water £0 £583 £5,985 £0 £2,686 £55,409 £64,663
Other Utilities £9,717 £0 £6,875 £36,563 £604 £77,252 £131,011
TOTAL £9,717 £583 £12,860 £40,398 £3,290 £193,036 £259,883
Overall Recovery Position of outstanding Utility Debts as at 31st March 2024
No. of Amount of Amount
Utility Total under | Total over TOtaI. invoices in | invoices in | marked for
30 days old | 30 days old | outstanding e e write off
Virgin Media £7,120 £8,882 £16,002 0 £0 £0
British Telecom £0 £0 £0 0 £0 £0
EDF £0 £0 £0 0 £0 £0
UK Power Networks Ltd £0 £0 £0 0 £0 £0
SGN PLC £11,730 £36,478 £48,208 4 £5,226 £0
Thames Water £55,223 £9,440 £64,663 3 £6,754 £0
Other Utilities £46,456 £84,555 £131,011 4 £3,840 £10,909
TOTAL £120,529 £139,354 £259,883 11 £15,820 £10,909



66 abed

Appendix 6

Value of Invoices Raised

£14,000,000

£12,000,000

£10,000,000

£8,000,000

£6,000,000

£4,000,000

£2,000,000

£0

Monthly Comparison of the Value of invoices Raised

s > c = (o)) - o > Q c Q ol
o ®© S =] ] g Q ) Jo) @ 0] ©
< = =) ? < 3 O] Zz a ) L =

Months =2021/22 =2022/23 1 2023/24




00T abed

Appendix 7

No. of Invoices Raised

2400

2200

2000

1800

1600

1400

1200

1000

800

600

400

200

Monthly Comparison of No. of Invoices Raised

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Months §2021/22 W2022/23 © 2023/24




Report No.
FSD24046

Agenda Item 10c

London Borough of Bromley

PART ONE - PUBLIC

Decision Maker:

Date:

Decision Type:

Title:

Contact Officer:

Chief Officer:

Ward:

EXECUTIVE,RESOURCES AND CONTRACTS POLICY
DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Monday 8 July 2024

Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key

BENEFITS SERVICE MONITORING REPORT

Jayne Carpenter, Revenue and Benefits Manager
Tel: 020 8461 7996 E-mail: Jayne.Carpenter@bromley.gov.uk

Peter Turner, Director of Finance

(Al Wards);

1. Reason for report

1.1 This report provides information regarding the performance of the Benefits Service provided by
Liberata for the period 1 December 2023 to 31 March 2024. A letter from Bola Odunsi Liberata’s
Regional Contract Director (London and Southeast) is attached as Appendix 1. This
communication provides Liberata’s perspective of performance, together with an update on
initiatives to be introduced inthe coming months.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 The PDS s requested to:

e notethe information contained with the report and the letter provided by Liberata
detailed in Appendix 1

1 Page 101



Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children
1. Summary of Impact: The Benefits Service impacts on all benefit recipients including vulnerable
adults and/or those with children.

Transformation Policy

1. Policy Status: Not applicable

2. Making Bromley Even Better Priority:
(5) to Manage our resources well, providing value for money, and efficient and effective services
for Bromley residents

Financial

Cost of proposal: Not applicable

Ongoing costs: Not applicable

Budget head/performance centre: Exchequer — Benefits and Admin

Total current budget for this head: £3.5m

Source of funding: Existing revenue budget 2023/24 including Government Grants and Subsidy

abrwnPE

Personnel
1. Number of staff (current and additional): 3 plus Liberata staff
2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: Not applicable

Legal
1. Legal Requirement: Statutory Requirement

The main pieces of legislation covering the Service are:

Housing Benefit Regulations 2006

The Council Tax Reduction\Support Schemes Regulations 2012
The Local Government Finance Act 2012

2. Call-in: Not applicable

Procurement
1. Summary of Procurement Implications: The Benefits Service is provided by Liberata as part of
the Exchequer Services contract.

Property
1. Summary of Property Implications: Not applicable

Carbon Reduction and Social Value
1. Summary of Carbon Reduction/Sustainability Implications: Not applicable

Impact on the Local Economy
1. Summary of Local implications: Not applicable

Impact on Health and Wellbeing
1. Summary of Carbon Reduction/Sustainability Implications: Not applicable

Customer Impact
1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected):15,986

Ward Councillor Views

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? No
2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments: Not applicable

2 Page 102



3. COMMENTARY

3.1 The Exchequer Services Team monitors the contract, sets targets and performance standards,
liaises with partners, progresses the development and improvement of services through
leadership on specific initiatives. The team also ensures the services comply with current
legislation, financial regulations, contractual obligations and audit requirements. Graphical
illustrations as to the level of performance being achieved are attached as appendices to this
report.

3.2 To maintain the drive for improved service performance, monthly service review meetings are
held with operational and senior Liberata management. Regular meetings take place between
senior managers in both organisations to discuss escalated items, technological advances and
further development opportunities.

3.3 The Exchequer Service specification effective from 1 April 2020 introduced key performance
indicators for the processing of new claims and change in circumstances as well reducing the
tolerance level for errors to 4% (previously 5%).

3.4 The Housing Benefit caseload is reducing monthly due to the natural and managed migration of
working age customers now receiving assistance with their Housing costs by Universal Credit.

3.5 Outstanding work

The target in the specification requires that the level of outstanding work is less than 5,700
documents of which 2,200 are in pending. Atthe 31 March 2024 there were 1463 outstanding
documents. Of the 1463 documents, 807 were in pending awaiting further information. A graph
showing the level of outstanding work since April 2021 is attached at Appendix 2.

A graph illustrating the number of Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support new claims, change

in circumstance and Universal Credit notifications (new, changes and stops) since April 2021 is
attached at Appendix 3

3.6 Claim Processing

The speed of processing indicator is a combination of the time taken to assess new claims and
change of circumstances.

The below table shows the Benefits Sections performance under the Right Time Indicator, the
annual target for which is 13 days:

Apr May | Jun Jul Aug | Sep Oct Nov | Dec Jan Feb Mar
23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 24 24 24

559 | 954 (1490 [34.01|1785| 9.28 | 581 | 1447 | 410 | 595 | 793 | 245

Average 2021/22 6.32 days
Average 2022/23 5.68 days
Average 2023/24 8.49 days

Performance under the Right Time Indicator is illustrated as Appendix 4.

3 Page 103



3.7 Tabled below are the performance figures in respect of the 2 components, new claims and change
of circumstances:

New claims —target for 2023/24 is 19 days

Apr May | Jun Jul Aug | Sep Oct Nov | Dec Jan Feb Mar
23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 24 24 24

9.68 | 14.14 | 14.96 | 25.69 | 19.93 | 21.72 | 15.02 | 14.94 | 16.50 | 10.65 | 13.17 | 15.74

Average 2021/22 13 days
Average 2022/23 11.13 days
Average 2023/24 15.95 days

3.8 Changein circumstances —target for 2023/24 is 9 days

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 24 24 24

537 | 954 [14.89)|3462 | 1764 | 874 | 537 | 1440 | 363 | 5.67 | 793 | 2.06

Average 2021/22 7 days
Average 2022/23 6.81 days
Average 2023/24 8.09 days

3.9 The average processing days covers a wide variance amongst claims. Appendix 5 and 5a show
the “spread” in respect of new claims and change of circumstances.

Forthe period 1 December 2023 to 31 March 2024, 690 new claims were processed, with 3 new
claims (0.43%) taking over 80 days to process. Of the 26,956 changes in circumstances
processed, 104 changes (0.38%) took more than 80 days to process. The reasons why are

detailed below:

New claims
Reason why the change was processed in excess Number of claims
of 80 days
Incorrect receipt dates input 0
Additional time given for the claimant to provide 3
information
Administration delay 0
Retrospective changes advised by DWP report (Atlas) 0
Total 3
Changein circumstances
Reason why the change was processed in excess Number of claims
of 80 days
Incorrect receipt dates input 36
Additional time given for the claimant to provide 44
information
Administration delay 24
Retrospective changes advised by DWP report (Atlas) 0
Total 104

4 Page 104




All the 24 changes that have beenrecorded as administration delay were caused by the Housing
Benefit Accuracy Award initiative (HBAAI) full case reviews not being dealt with upon receipt.

During 2023/24, the claim processing times have exceeded the contractual targets. The
deterioration in performance was escalated and an improvement plan agreed. Liberata’ s
explanation is contained in Appendix 1.

DWP Benchmarking - processing times for new claims and changes

The table below shows the latest benchmarking figures released by the DWP in respect of new
claims and change of circumstances processing for the 19 Outer London authorities:

Quarter 2 Quarter 3

2023/24 2023/24
Local Authority | New Claims | Changes New Claims | Changes
Barking and
Dagenham 19 10 18 11
Barnet 17 5 17 6
Bexley 13 10 16 11
Brent 19 8 21 8
Bromley 22 18 16 6
Croydon 37 8 34 8
Ealing 24 8 22 6
Enfield 26 6 22 9
Greenwich 21 11 20 11
Harrow 23 10 21 9
Havering 21 5 16 4
Hillingdon 23 6 20 7
Hounslow 8 4 8 4
Kingston upon 20 6
Thames 20 7
Merton 47 12 32 9
Redbridge 22 7 19 6
Richmond upon 21 11
Thames 20 13
Sutton 13 6 14 4
Waltham Forest 16 4 15 6

As predicted in the previous monitoring report, Bromley’'s performance in Quarter 2 of 2023/24
deteriorated (joint 12t new claims and 19" for changes).

Bromley’'s performance in Quarter 3, 2023/24 improved significantly (4" for new and 4" for
changes) but itis still higher than previous years.

Attached as Appendix 6 and 6a are graphical illustrations of Quarter 2 (2023/24) and Quarter 3,
2023/24 performance against our contractual target.

The DWP are due to publish Quarter 4 (January to March) 2023/24 benchmarking statistics in
July 2024.

3.10 Error rate
5 Page 105



3.11

3.12

3.13

From 1 April 2020 the Exchequer Services specification requires the contractor to ensure that
financial errors are found inless than 4% of the cases checked by the Authority’'s monitoring
team. The level of tolerance for errors is strict compared to many other authorities; with DWP
statistics indicating that the average error rate nationally is in excess of this figure. However, the
tolerance was set in the knowledge that errors result in poor customer service and waste of
resources through reworking.

The contractor remained within the 4% tolerance contained in the specification and the 3% “soft
target” for the 12 months covered in this reporting period as shown in the table below. A
graphical illustration is entered as Appendix 7.

Apr May | Jun Jul Aug | Sep Oct Nov | Dec | Jan | Feb | Mar
23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 24 24 24

12% | 25% | 1.9% | 1.9% | 05% | 1.2% | 1.7% | 0% | 1.4% | 1.3% | 0% | 0.5%

Complaints

Considerable changes have occurred in both Housing Benefit legislation and Council Tax
Support since April 2013, with many experiencing a reduction in entittement. In many cases this
has led to a complaint and/or an appeal as a result of the claimant not comprehending the
revised entitlement is due to changes in the scheme. There were no “Stage 2” complaints

during the period December 2023 to 31 March 2024 which is an indication that a good service is
being provided and that the customer’s areas of discontent are being resolved therefore
preventing unnecessary complaints.

Housing Benefit Overpayments

The Housing Benefit overpayment recovery rate percentage is based on the amount of debt
raised in month against amount of debt recovered in month. Using this formula, the percentage
recovered often exceeds the amount created and is referred to as the underlying trend.

Appendix 8 shows the monthly recovery rates since April 2021.

Call Centre (Help line)

The graph at Appendix 9 details the performance of the Call Centre from April 2021.

The number of calls received for the period December 2023 to March 2024 was 35,576 this is a
reduction of 4.8% when compared to the same period in 2022/23. The reduction in call volumes
has been attributed to the natural and managed migration of residents moving to Universal
Credit.

The average abandonment rate for the period December 2023 to March 2024 was 12% which is
outside of the 5% tolerance allowed for under the specification. This was caused by the
increased number of calls received during February and March 2024 as a direct result of annual
biling and the length of time it takes to deal with the calls.

To improve the customer experience, we have introduced a signposting voice bot and a call
back request service known as RPIQ (Retain Place in Queue) which is now offered to all

6 Page 106



customers when the number of callers waiting exceeds 3. This has been positively received with
895 customers opting for this option in March 2024, with a 100% receiving a call back.

3.14 Caseload
A graph showing the overall number of claims in payment and the Council Tax Support
caseload is attached as Appendix 10. The overall caseload has been consistently reducing due

to the natural migration of working age Housing Benefit claimants to Universal Credit.

At the end of March 2024, the combined caseload was 15,986 (16,402 in March 2023) and the
Council Tax Support was 13,162 (13,606 in March 2023).

3.15 Discretionary Housing Payments (DHP’s)

The DWP allocation for 2023/24 was £512,968, the same amount as allocated in 2022/23.
From 1 April 2020 the DHP fund has been administered by Liberata and monitored by Bromley.

The fund was fully utilised with 645 awards being made.

3.16 Council Tax Support (CTS)

The Council Tax Support scheme for 2023/24 increased the minimum contribution of working-
age claimants to 30% of the household’s Council Tax liability and introduced a “band D”
eligibility restriction.

At the end of March 2024 there were 13,162 households in receipt of Council Tax Support of
which 8,176 were of working age, 723 households are affected by the “band D” eligibility
restriction and 4,986 were elderly.

The working age and elderly caseload split by Council Tax band is shown below:

Council A B C D E F G H Total
Tax Band

Number of
working-
age claims 335 1740 3251 2127 543 137 43 0 8176

Number of

elderly 273 974 1728 1363 452 140 54 2 4986
claims

The working age caseload has reduced by 361 claims since March 2023 (8537).
For 2023/24, the Government provided Bromley £365,066 to help all Council Tax Support

claimants. We have assisted 11,839 households from this fund with a maximum award of £32
(E25 mandatory and £7 discretionary).

7 Page 107



3.17 Service Development

3.18

We committed to improving and enhancing the service by implementing initiatives that will
allow us to automate our “back office” processes. It is envisaged that these will eventually lead
to a significant reduction in processing times.

We have introduced on-line applications forms for Housing and Council Tax Support with the
majority of the claims received now being made electronically.

Our focus remains on increasing the percentage of Universal Credit notifications that can be
processed without any manual intervention. During 2023/24 we manged to automate the
processing of 86% of the notifications being received, although significant progress has been
made there is still more that can be done.

In addition to our internal service improvements, we continue to work on the DWP’s mandatory
Housing Benefit Award Initiative (HBAAI) which requires LA’s to conduct full case reviews on a
percentage of their high-risk cases to ensure that the amount of benefit being awarded is
accurate.

In 2023/24 Bromley were required to review 2760 high risk-cases, the risk scores for the
individual cases having been provided by the DWP.

At the end of March 2024, 2270 (98.5%) of these reviews had been completed and we
identified that 23% had a change that directly affected the amount of benefit they were
awarded. The remaining 33 (1.5%) have been reminded that review is still outstanding. Failure
to comply with the review will ultimately lead to benefit being withdrawn.

Universal Credit (UC) update

Universal Creditin Bromley moved into the ‘managed migration’ of residents on old style
benefits such as working tax and child tax creditin August 2023. We currently have very little
details on who is being contacted by the DWP and how quickly the migration will take place.
The aim is for the migration of working age residents to be completed by the end of 2025.

According to our caseload data, in August 2023 there were 1700 households in receipt of
Housing Benefit and/or Council Tax Support with entittement based on working tax and/or child
tax credit. From our own caseload monitoring it appears that 20 households per week are
currently migrating with more being directly affected over the coming months.

The impact of this will be significant and it is anticipated that from 2025 the only working age
residents in Bromley on Housing Benefit will be those in temporary or supported/exempt
accommodation.

The Department of Works and Pensions (DWP) statistics show 18,892 households in Bromley
were on Universal Credit (latest provisional figures from February 2024, increase from 17,393,
in August 2023) with 23,591 (previously 21,652) people in total on UC of which 8954 (previously
8178) are in employment.

The latest constituency data for Universal Creditis based on April 2024 statistics and can be
found in detail on the following link Constituency data: Universal Credit rollout (parliament.uk)
but for information the headline figures for Bromley are:

%
Households on Households on Legacy Caseload
Constituency uC Benefits complete

8 Page 108



https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/constituency-data-universal-credit-roll-out/

5.1

6.1

7.1

8.1

Bromley &

Chislehurst 6545 1916 77
Orpington 4774 1420 77
Beckenham 4111 1128 78
Lewisham West

& Penge 12585 3394 79

The Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB) have been contracted to deliver both assistance in claiming
UC and follow that through with budgeting support via a national help-line.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support present significant “business”. The 2023/24 budget
includes payments in excess of £75m for Housing Benefit and £14m (net) for Council Tax
Support. Any deterioration in performance could result in, for example:

¢ Increase in “Local Authority Error’ overpayments, leading to receipt of reduced subsidy
from Central Government

e Potential increase in overpayments which may not be recoverable.
TRANSFORMATION/POLICY IMPLICATIONS

One of the “Making Bromley Even Better’ ambitions is to manage our resources well, providing
value for money, efficient and effective services for Bromley's residents. To achieve this, we will
ensure robust contract management with a focus on efficiency and innovation to improve
services for Bromley residents.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

This is a contract monitoring report pursuant to CPR23. There are no specific legal implications
raising from this report.

CUSTOMER IMPACT

The Benefits Service directly impacts 15,986 customers.

CARBON REDUCTION/SOCIAL VALUE IMPLICATIONS

Liberata exclusively uses Ark data centres which are committed to the European Green Deal,
achieving the ambitious greenhouse gas reductions of the climate law, and leveraging
technology and digitalisation to achieve the goal of making Europe climate neutral by 2050. For
the last 6 years, all Ark facilities have been powered by 100% renewable energy. To improve
sustainability further Ark has developed innovative direct air evaporative cooling capability that
dramatically lowers energy consumption and cost, capable of providing compressor free cooling
for 100% of every year.

The My Bromley account software supports 49,815 subscribers to e-billing, reducing paper
production and postal service reliance. Officers continue to work with Liberata on projects to
increase back-office automation and further reduce paper volumes.

Liberata also supports staff to volunteer for local organisations, such as Age Concern
befriending scheme.

9 Page 109



Non-Applicable Sections:

Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children, Personnel,
Procurement, Property, Impact of Local Economy, Impact on
Health and Wellbeing and Ward Councillors views

10 Page 110




Appenei s |

L N b t Thlnk_OO 2" Floor Front
1 ef Q 0 ServiceTech 60 Cheapside
EC2V 6AX

Claudine Douglas-Brown

Assistant Director of Exchequer Services
London Borough of Bromley

Civic Centre

Stockweli Close

Bromley

BR1 3UH

Date: 31% May 2024
Our Ref: BO/DK

Dear Claudine,

As we approach the June 2024 Executive, Resources & Contracts PDS meeting where we consider
and review the performance of the Benefits Service, I'm taking this opportunity to write to you with
Liberata’s assessment of the performance of this critical, high profile service that we provide to
London Borough of Bromley (LBB) and its customers.

Liberata’s Business Continuity plans remain in place and now the majority of employees are
working on a hybrid basis where they work one or two days in the office with the remainder from
home.

This summary covers performance for the period: 1% April 2023 to 31t March 2024.

1. Current Status of the Benefits Service

As at the end of March 2024, the Benefits caseload was 15,986, which was down by 416 on the
same period last year. This caseload measures all households receiving Housing Benefit (HB)
and/or Council Tax Support (CTS).

The average performance for the period on New Claims was 15.95 days compared to the previous
year of 10.22 days. The average time for Changes was 8.09 days against 5.37 days for last year.
Both of these are much higher than our usual standards of service delivery. Whilst we recognise
that the outturn on both indicators remain within the range of our respective contractual targets,
please be reassured that we are keen and committed to reverting back to the higher performance
standards historically achieved on this contract.

The drop in performance was primarily caused by the loss of several staff at the beginning of the
year. Replacing and training the new team had an inevitable impact on our work outputs while the
new staff bedded in. The team are now in a good position to deliver to the historic levels of
performance expectations for the coming year.

Outstanding work items at the period end totalled 1,463 with 807 items pended i.e. cases where
we were awaiting information from the claimant and/or third-party. The totals for the previous year
were 1,247 items and 720 items respectively.

Liberata is a trading name of Liberata UK Limited
(Registered in England and Wales - No 1238274)
Registered Office: 2nd Floor Front, 60 Cheapside, London, EC2V 6AX
Liberala UK Limited 1s a subsidiary ol Qutsourcing UK Limited {Registered in Fngtand and Wales - No 10280945)

Repistered Office: Floor 9, Peninsular House, 30-36 Monument Street, London, EC3R 8LJ

Page 111



o ThinkCO 2" Floor Fron
L'bef QtQ ServiceTech 60 C“if‘,‘,:f};’;:
EC2V 6AX

1.1 Temporary Accommodation

We have continued to maintain our strong relationships with the various LBB Housing Teams,
Pinnacle (formerly Orchard & Shipman) and the Mears Group. We hold regular operational
meetings in order to quickly identify and resolve any benefit issues which arise. We are also able
to fast track cases where there is a risk of arrears accumulating which helps to sustain tenancies
and prevent homelessness.

We have in place a dedicated Temporary Accommodation benefit team who work closely with
LBB’s Housing staff and stakeholders in order to ensure that benefit claims are paid as quickly and
efficiently as possible. We will also work with the Council to understand and try and minimise
arrears where possible.

1.2 Verify Earnings and Pensions (VEP) Alerts Service

We receive and process the Verify Earnings and Pensions (VEP) alerts, from the DWP. These
provide a valuable tool for updating and ensuring the accuracy of the earnings and pension
information which is held within the Academy benefits system. These VEP alerts extract and
consolidate information held by various external organisations including HMRC and the Pension
Service in order to provide ‘real time’ information which is essential in the administration of Benefits.
Our specialised VEP Team then ensure that the VEP files, which are received daily, are processed
in a timely manner.

The effective and timely processing of these alerts helps maintain the accuracy of the Academy
database and also helps reduce the likelihood of overpayments which would typically occur where
a claimant delays or fails to advise the Council of any changes in their household income.

1.3 ATLAS

ATLAS is a process of transferring data from the DWP systems to the Local Authority systems.
This includes state benefit changes which may not have been previously notified to us by the
customer. We currently automate the transfer of the majority of the ATLAS files received directly
into the Academy database. This not only improves the processing speed but also removes the
risk of any manual re-keying errors. We have continued to see an ongoing reduction in the number
of ATLAS files received as a number of these cases now come through the Universal Credit (UC)
channels.

1.4 Quality
As always our focus has remained fixed on maintaining our quality levels for the service with a
continual review of our processes with the aim or eradicating errors. The average financial error
rate for the period April 2023 to March 2024 was 1.53% which is slightly higher than the same
reporting period last year (0.95%) but well within both the contractual target of 4% and the ‘soft’
target of 3%.

Our quality assurance checking is carried out on a continual basis throughout the year on our
Assessment Officers work. This helps ensure that we continue to deliver a high-quality service to
customers and mitigating the risk of financial error. In addition, the ongoing checking helps feed
into the training program for our new recruits and the upskilling of existing employees. This quality
checking forms part of the ongoing monitoring and mentoring of our Officers to ensure accuracy

Liberata is a trading name of Liberata UK Limited
(Regisloved in Enpland and Walos No 12382 74)

Repistered Office 20d Floo: Trong, 60 Cheapside, Tondon, £OV aAx

Page 112



o ThinkCO 2" Floor Fron
Ll befQ tq ServiceTech 60 Chiiﬁﬂﬂg
EC2V 6AX

rates remain at a high level. It also allows for any errors to be quickly identified and then
immediately addressed either by refresher training or mentoring. This then helps maintain our high
standard of quality in the assessments that are undertaken.

The DWP accept that a certain level of error will be made in the administration of Benefits. As such,
an upper and lower threshold of Local Authority error is outlined by the DWP. Liberata’s
performance continues to remain well below the lower threshold, thereby attracting maximum
subsidy for the Authority.

1.5 Overpayment Strategy

The creation of overpayments is a natural bi-product of the administration of Housing Benefit &
Council Tax Support, with recovery needing to be sought from some of the most vulnerable
members of the community.

As at the period end, our recovery rate, known as the underlying trend, was 90.69%. This
underlying trend includes the recovery of current year and previous year debts. In order to
maximise recovery we have continued to use a number of different techniques including Blameless
Tenant recovery, Direct Earnings Attachment and Debt Collection Agencies. These recovery
techniques have proven effective tools in securing the repayment of these debts.

1.6 Universal Credit (UC)

The volumes of UC notifications received continues to be high as more customers are moved over
to the new benefit. In order to deal with this, and speed up processing, we have utilised automation
which means that 86.9% of UC change notifications were automatically uploaded through the
system without the need of any manual intervention.

Increasing numbers of customers are using the online smart forms for new claims and changes,
which were implemented last year. We have also continued to provide support for vulnerable
customers who are not able to transact with the service online from our Customer Services team.

1.7 Discretionary Housing Payments (DHP)

We have continued to administer DHP on behalf of the Council, which allows for assistance to be
provided to some of the most vulnerable customers within borough. In this way residents who may
be experiencing problems with rent arrears can be supported to help avoid the risk of eviction. We
work closely with the Council to ensure that assistance from the discretionary fund is targeted at
people that are in genuine need of support.

2. Corporate Visiting Team (CVT)
The Visiting Officers continue with their face-to-face visits to verify customer information on income
and capital levels or to assist them in accessing the service.

Liberata is a trading name of Liberata UK Limited
(Registered m England and Wales - No 1238271)
Registered Office: 2nd Floot Front, 60 Cheapside, London, FC2Y GAX
Liberata UK Limited is & subsidiary ol Oulcourcing UK Linuted (Registerad m England and Wales - No 10780945)

Registered Office Floor 9, Peninsular Hlouse, 30-36 Monument Street, Landon, EC3R 8LJ

Page 113



o ThinkCO 2" Floor Fron
leefOtQ ServiceTech 60 C“‘Ef,g’,‘f};’g
EC2V 6AX

3. Call Centre & Customer Services

During the period under review the Revenues & Benefits Call Centre received 105,923 calls which
is 13% lower in comparison to the same reporting period last year where we received 121,416
calls. Our Call Centre answered 92.5% of calls with an average speed to answer of 3 minutes &
26 seconds. The average overall service level for the Revenues & Benefits telephone service
(excluding Business Rates) during the reporting period was 63.70%, with an average abandonment
rate of 7.4%. The average handling time has increased by 24% in comparison to 2022/23, our
average handling time is now 421 seconds compared to 340 seconds in the previous year.

The service has introduced a signposting voicebot to assist in directing customers to the most
appropriate online service and this has allowed customers to resolve their enquiries without the
need to talk to an operator. The voicebot has completely resolved 6% of customer interactions
since implementation in August 2023 (4,962 calls).

We continued with a predominantly appointment-only service for the Customer Services front
facing team. However, we ensured that vulnerable customers who presented without an
appointment were still seen. During this reporting period, the team saw 1,509 R&B customers
compared to 1,033 during the same period in 2023.

4. Service Developments

One of Liberata’s goals has always been to continually improve and enhance the services provided
to the Council and its citizens either through the application of new or existing technology or through
process improvements. Examples of current year new and ongoing initiatives include:

e As part of our ongoing digital transformation programme to channel shift customers to
online services, the service is currently reviewing the introduction of electronic notification
letters to be sent to working age customers.

o During the year we have switched to summary notification letters in order to simplify the
information and for the ease of understanding of most customers.

¢ Housing Benefit Award Accuracy Initiative (HBAAI); Liberata reviewed 2,760 HBAAI cases.
Cases identified by the DWP are reviewed to ensure that current awards of Benefits are
accurate, and the Benefits database is up to date with current information.

¢ Mass Recalculation Automation; Whilst this is primarily a tool to ensure that assessments
are not left uncalculated (majority with no change to entitlement) this should facilitate an
improved automation levels for both UC and ATLAS changes.

| trust you find that the above has been informative and comprehensively demonstrates that
Liberata remains firmly committed to delivering an outstanding service to the London Borough of
Bromley and its citizens.

Yours sincerely,

/ ' \._ (D 2

Bola Odunsi
Regional Director (London & The Southeast)

Liberata is a trading name of Liberata UK Limited
(Registered in Fogland and Wales No 1238274)
Registered Office 2nd Flocr Front, 60 Cheapside, londan, 102V GAX
Hberata UK Limited 15 a ubsidiary of Qulsourang UK hinited {Registeied m Fngland and Wiles No JU28094%)

Registered Ofic=: Floor 9, Pemnsular House, 30-36 Monurnent Stiest, London, FC 2R 81

Page 114



Appendix 2

Outstanding Work - April 2021 to March 2024

Target - 5700 documents

7000

4000

3000

2000

1000

Page 115

vz0Z/€0/10
vzoz/zo/10
vzoz/10/10
€z0z/2T/10
€20Z/T1/10
€20Z/01/10
£€202/60/10
£202/80/10
£20Z/L0/T0
£€202/90/10
£202/50/10
€202/v0/10
£202/€0/10
£202/20/10
€202Z/10/10
zeoz/eTi/to
zz0zZ/T1/10
ze0z/01/10
220Z/60/10
zz0z/80/10
ze0z/Lo/t0
720Z/90/10
zzoz/so/T0
zz0z/v0/10
zeoz/eo/To0
720z/20/10
zzoz/t0/10
1202/21/10
120Z/T1/10
1202Z/01/10
1Z0Z/60/T0
120Z/80/T0
120Z/L0/T0
1202/90/10
1202/50/10

1202/%0/10



Appendix 3

New claims, Changes in Circumstances and Universal Credit notifications received since April 2021

2500

2000

1500

JaquinN

1000

500

20z/T1/s0
#202/11/50
¥202/01/50
¥Z07/60/50
¥202/80/50
¥202/£0/50
¥202/90/S0
¥202/50/S0
¥202/t0/S0
¥202/€0/S0
¥202/20/S0
¥202/10/50
£202/21/50
£202/11/50
£20Z/01/50
€202/60/50
£207/80/50
£€20Z/£0/50
€202/90/50
€202/50/50
£202/v0/50
€207/€0/50
€20¢/20/50
€202/10/S0
7202/21/S0
7Z07/11/90
7z0z/01/50
7202/60/S0

Date

2202/80/50
2207/L0/50
2202/90/50
T207/50/50
2202/%0/50

7202/€0/50
720Z/70/50
7z0z/10/50
1202/21/50
120Z/11/50
1202/01/90
1202/60/50
1202/80/S0
1202/L0/S0
1202/90/40
1202/50/0
120Z/¥0/50

Page 116

New Claims

Changes

Universal Credit notifications



Appendix 4

Right Time Indicator - April 2021 to March 2024

Target - 13 days

40

35

30

25

20

y

B

= e

j

<
4

ve-1eN
¥¢-9°4
ve-uer

€2-930

€C-AON

€C-10

gz-das
€z-8ny

ec-nr

ge-unrg

cz-Aen

€g-1dy

€C-1BN

€¢-q34

gg-uer

| zz9eq

CC-NON

-0

ze-des

7z-8ny
2allly
ze-ung
tz-hen
7T-dy
Te-len
7¢-924
Te-uef
12-93@
T¢-AON

110

Tz-das

T¢-8ny

TZ-Inf

Tz-ung

Te-Aeiy

Tg-1dy

Page 117

Target - 13 days



ssaooud 0} sAep jo JaquinN

+00T 66-06 68-08 6/-0L 69-09 65-0S 6t-0t 6¢-0¢ 6¢-0¢ 61-0T

0 0 : 0 .

8T

0L </

6T 40 apisno paisjdwo) ]

=t
o

shep 6T uiynm pazsidwo) [N - B

(069) swiejy maN
¥20Z Y21 0} £Z0¢ 1aquiasag umopyealq awjy Buissaosoud - jysuag BuisnoH

¢ Xipuaddy

R
abejuadiad

0s

09

Page 118



ssa20.d 03} sAep Jo JaquinN

+00T 66-06 68-08 6/£-0L 69-09 659-09 6v-0F 6€-0¢ 6¢-0¢ 61-0T
. . I . it
99 ST €T €€ 174 8
Ll L 89¢ 615
~ shep g jospisino pais[dwo)
shep 6 ulyum pazajdwod N

(966°02) sooueyswinall) ul abueyn

¥20Z YoJe\ L€ 0} £20Z Joquiadaq - umopiealq awp Buissesoud - jijousg Buisnoy

eg xijpuaddy

ot

0¢

0¢

ov

- 09

- 09

0L

08

06

- 00T

oberjuadiod

Page 119



s1D/D swie|) maN
s211)/D 1988 wrej) maN 198ie) —— ¥2/€70C 0 8u159220.4 J0 pa3ds gH wew $2/€20T 70 8u1599301d JO paads gH s

Y1

sawey) sawey)
158404 uodn uodn
weyyepm  uonns puowydly 28puqpay uow3w  uoisSuly mojsunoH uopdulliy SuIISABH  MOMBH  YoIMUud3u9)  playul Sules uopAos)  Asjwoug 49 Lo|xog

$2/€202 - T 4auenp Buissadoud jo paadg gH - Bupjrewysuaq dma

0 xipuaddy

un (=) vy o w o
o m o~ o~ ~ —
sAeQ Jo JIaqwinN

(=}
<

0S

Page 120



$2U1D/D sule|) MaN
$1)/) 188e) wie) MaN 1e81e | — ¥2/€207 €0 8u1s32004d Jo pa2dS gH memm $7/€70T £0 8u1s92201d Jo paads gH memm
v
sowey] sawey| weyuafeq
159404 uodn uodn pue
uleylepr  uouNSg  puowudly 23pugpsy  uolIW  uoisduly mojsunoy uopSuliH SuusABH  MOLEBH  YIIMUI3IDH  p3yul Suieg uopAoi)  A3jwoug uaug As|xag Jsuleg Supjieg

$2/EZ0T - € 4o1enD Buissadold Jo peads gH - Bunjiewysuaq dma

eg xipuaddyy

o
~
sAeQ jo JaquinN

13

oy

Page 121



Appendix 7

Monthly Error Rate from April 21 to March 2024 - Percentage

_F______,_-r—-'_———#
—-_—
“-—-..__‘_\\\
‘_‘_‘-‘\"—“'\‘
sk
<
£
Q
wm
'
'EJ
#_#/
‘_:_‘_,..--
=l
==
——
— ] 4
T — e ——— —
gu— a
* X X X ® X X ® ® ®
w < < (221 o o~ o~ — i o

Page 122

vZ-1e
¥z-934
pz-uer
£2-23Q
£2-AON
£2-10
gg-das
€z-3ny
€¢-|nr
gz-unr
€z-Aey
gg-idy
€z-1elN
€2-934
gz-uer
7z-93q
TT-roN
2210
zz-das
zz-8ny
zznr
zz-unf
z-heny
7z-1dy
77N
72-994
ze-uer
1Z-22Q
TZ-AON
12-P0
17-d3s
1Z-8ny
TZ-Inf
gz-unf
Tz-Ae

1Z-4dy

Month



%G0'90) | £58UaS

%OLLLL | %OLOLL | %b966 | %9ZG0L | %9ZV6 | %GLPL | %6eGlb | %iZ63L | H80MZL | %HSL86

Page Jf 23

%BELOT | %B6'G8 | %8V | %O6VZL | %966L | %L1 | %I67T8 | %BLGE | %6806 | %6STL |
W | we9ed | peuef | ggoeq | EetON | £ | gebny | genr | geeidy £z-033 | zz-08q | zz-BO | zebny | gzunr Zz-10Y Z£-094 1Z-93g W0 | lzbny | jzunr | Lziey |
£ g 2 Z £ g g g g g 5 Z g g 2 g ¥
& & 5 3 g & g & 8 & u R § & & 2 % %
%000
%00°05
7 o~ i %0000k -4y
.I.I.’rll’l...\\l ./‘ .
a
-
=
=
(=]
o
=
%00°0G 4
%00'00Z
%00°06Z
1202 11ady @ouls pajeald jey) ysutebe pasanooas o, JuswAhediaaQ Alyjuop

8 xipuaddy



Appendix 9

Revenues and Benefits Call Centre - number of telephone calls received and abandoned from

April 2021 to March 2024

e P

/

/ '

Ve

3

L g

16000 -

14000

12000

Ss|1eo § s aqun
Fieo 1§

(=]
s
o

4000 -

ye-1eN
' vz-g04
yz-uer
€2-98Q
€2-NON
€20
gg-deg
gz-Bny
genr
gz-unp
gz-Aepy
gg-1dy
St
£z-qed
gg-uer
zz98Q
ZT-NON
22900
ge-deg
' zz-bny
zenr
zz-unp
ze-hew
zg-1dy
 ze-tew

Zz-9ed
ze-uer
Lg-08Q
- 1Z-AON
1200
lg-des
tg-6ny
Lz-nr
Jz-unp
1Z-feiy
Jz-idy

2000

Page 124

—e— Abandoned




310ddngS Xe] [IPUNO) e PEOJISE) PIUIGUIOT) semne

0} xipuaddy

¥20Z YoJey LE 03 1202 Y2Je wouy peojase)

000'C

000y

0009

000'8

000°0T

000°ZT

000vT

000'9T

000'8T

00002



This page is left intentionally blank



Report No.
FSD24045

Agenda Item 10d

London Borough of Bromley

PART ONE - PUBLIC

Decision Maker:

Date:

Decision Type:

Title:

Contact Officer:

Chief Officer:

Ward:

PORTFOLIO HOLDERFOR RESOURCES, COMMISSIONING
AND CONTRACT MANAGEMENT

Monday 8 July 2024

Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key

REVENUES SERVICE MONITORING REPORT

Jayne Carpenter, Revenues and Benefits Manager
Tel: 020 8461 7996 E-mail: Jayne.Carpenter@bromley.gov.uk

Peter Turner, Director of Finance

(Al Wards);

1. Reason for report

1.1 This report provides information regarding the performance of the Revenues Services provided
by Liberata for the period 1 December 2023 to 31 March 2024. A letter from Bola Odunsi,
Liberata’s Regional Director (London and the Southeast), provides an update on each of the
individual services and is attached at Appendix 1 with statistical data relating to the Revenues
Service attached at Appendix 2.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

The PDS is requested to:

e notethe information contained within the report and the letter provided by Liberata
detailed in Appendices 1 & 2

1 Page 127



Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children
1. Summary of Impact: The Revenues Service impacts on all residents in the Authority including
vulnerable adults/and those with children.

Corporate Policy

1. Policy Status: Existing Policy

2.  Making Bromley Even Better Priority

(5) To manage our resources well, providing value for money, and efficient and effective for
Bromley's residents

Financial

Cost of proposal: Not applicable

Ongoing costs: Not applicable

Budget head/performance centre: Exchequer - Revenues
Total current budget for this head: £3.9m

Source of funding: Existing Revenue Budget for 2023/24

agprpwNPE

Personnel
1. Number of staff (current and additional): 3 plus Liberata staff
2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: Existing Revenue budget for 2023/24

Legal
1. Legal Requirement:
Local Government Finance Act 1988
The Council Tax (Administration and Enforcement) Regulations 1992
The Local Government Finance Act 2012
Rating Law and Practice; England and Wales
LGPS Regulations 2013
2.  Call-in: Not applicable

Procurement
1. Summary of Procurement Implications: The Revenues Service forms part of the Exchequer
Services contract

Property
1. Summary of Property implications: Not applicable

Carbon Reduction and Social Value
1. Summary of Carbon Reduction/Sustainability implications: Not applicable

Impact on the Local Economy
1. Summary of Local Economy implications: Not applicable

Impact on the Health and Wellbeing
1. Summary of Health and Wellbeing implications: Not applicable

Customer Impact

1. Summary of Health and Wellbeing implications: The Services covered in this report affect all the
Council Tax payers, Business rates payer, Members and Pensioners, this could be estimated to
150,000 households.

Ward Councillor Views
1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? No
2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments: Not applicable

2 Page 128



3.1

3.2

3.3

COMMENTARY

The Exchequer Services Team monitors the contract, sets targets and performance standards.
Liaises with partners, progresses the development and improvement of services through
leadership on specificimprovement initiatives. The team also ensures the services comply with
current legislation, financial regulations, contractual obligations and audit requirements.

To maintain the drive for improved service performance, monthly service review meetings are
held with operational and senior Liberata management. The Heads of Service of Liberata and
Bromley meet regularly to deal with escalated issues, review policies and develop new ideas.

Council Tax

Collection

The in-year collection for the period ending 31 March 2024 was 96.94% which is 0.18% down on
that achieved last year.

The collection rate for the current year and arears for the period ending 31 March 2024 was
96.18% which is 0.71% lower than last year.

All previous measures to maximise collection remain in place, but we have recently added a
separate team to focus solely on trying to collect the arrears of Council Tax across previous years.

Liberata are also looking to introduce the following:

focused efforts on potentially more achievable debt cases (propensity to pay).

an automated outbound messaging service to prompt customers for payments or to make
contact to make appropriate arrangements.

a specialist Inspection team to visit all customers in receipt of a final notice to ensure they are
still resident and offer appropriate support and guidance for those struggling to make

payments.

There is currently no published benchmarking data on collection figures. However, based on our
monitoring data, Bromley came 6" out of the 26 London Boroughs who provided the information.

Recovery of Council Tax

The collection and recovery of both in year and arrears are proving more challenging this year.
This is maybe attributed to the economic pressures that many residents are experiencing , arrears
accrued during the pandemic, the change in the Council Tax Support scheme and the increase
in the Empty Home Premiums from 1 April 2023.

Whilst there is no statistical data available to support, it's evident during discussions with the
London Revenues Group, that the majority of Local Authorities are finding it more difficult to
collect Council Tax since the pandemic as many residents are now facing the challenge of
paying current years charge in addition to the accumulated arrears.

This is demonstrated by the number of summonses issued and cases referred for enforcement
when compared to previous years.

3 Page 129



The table below details how many summonses have been issued and accounts referred to
enforcement agent since 2017/18. It highlights that no Court recovery action took place in 2020/21
(pandemic restrictions applied) which delayed the recovery processes and that during 2023/24
we issued more summonses and referred more accounts to the Enforcement agents than last
year.

Financial Year 2017/18 | 2018/19 | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023/24

Number of 10,755 9,375 9,561 0 21,132 12,421 13,957
Summonses
Issued
Number of 8,647 10,074 9,129 0 10,518 9,491 11,725

accounts passed
to Enforcement
agent

The Exchequer Services Team whilst monitoring performance, are ensuring that all methods of
recovery are effectively being adopted.

Number of properties on the Council Tax register

At the 31 March 2024, the number of properties registered for Council Tax was 143,276. The table
below shows the number of properties by Council Tax “band” and the number in receipt of Single
Person Discount (SPD):

Band A B C D E F G H Total
Number of
properties 2,125 | 10,516 | 30,393 | 36,413 | 29,525 | 18,533 | 14,044 | 1,727 | 143,276

Number of
properties 1,227 6,300 | 13,911 11,474 | 6,871 | 3,515 | 2,074 | 164 | 45536
with SPD

In comparison to last year, the number of registered properties has increased by 494 and the
number receiving SPD has increased by 349.

The number of accounts receiving SPD in 2022/23 and 2023/24 varies very little, a comparison
chart is included at Appendix 3.

Single Person Discount review

The accounts in receipt of SPD are reviewed annually and is being done in partnership with a
credit reference agency using a “residency checker service” that allows us to undertake a data
matching exercise on our live SPD accounts. This year’s review has been completed and resulted
in 714 accounts having the discount removed.

4 Page 130



Direct Debit

Council Tax can be paid by direct debit on either 1stor 15" of the month and over 10 or 12 months.
Last year, 73.29 % of the accounts were being paid by direct debit compared to 71.2% at end of
22/23. The number of accounts paid by direct debit fluctuates during the year due to residents
moving in and out in of the borough. The increase is attributed to the direct debit campaign.

Empty Homes Premium (EHP)

From 1 April 2023, the EHP was increased to 100% for properties that have been empty for over
2 years, 200% for properties over 5 year and 300% after 10 years.

At the 31 March 2024 the EHP was applied to 417 properties, an increase of 27 since March
2023. The table below shows the long-term empty properties by Council Tax band and by the
number of years they have been empty for:

Band A B C D E F G H Total
Number of properties to

which an EHP is being 14 54 | 175 91 42 26 12 3 417
applied

Number of properties
Empty between 2 and 5
years (100% premium) 12 37 135 53 37 22 11 1 308

Number of properties
Empty between 5 and 10
years 2 12 31 25 3 1 1 1 76

(200% premium)

Number of properties
empty over 10 years

(300% premium)

3.4 Business Rates

Collection

The in-year Business rates collection rate for the period ending 31 March 2024 was 97.11%
which is down by 0.10% on the previous year’s figure.

The reduction is partly being attributed to Covid Additional Relief Fund (CARF) payments that
were granted last year, as a significant number of businesses wanted the award offset against
their 2022/23 liabilities and the challenges being faced by small businesses.

The collection rate for current year and arrears for the period ending 31 March 2024 was 94.16%
which is an increase of 1.06 % for the same period last year.

5 Page 131



In order to maximise recovery, the following initiatives remain in place:-

e increased frequency of reminders and final notices

e telephoning businesses that have been issued with recovery notices

e an adjustment of the recovery process to enable debts to be moved through the billing and
recovery cycle quicker

Whilst Liberata look to introduce:

e aspecialist Inspection team to visit all businesses in receipt of a final notice to ensure
they are still trading and offer appropriate support/guidance for those struggling to make

payments.
e ateam focused on arrears collection.

There is currently no published benchmarking data on collection figures. However, based on our
monitoring data, Bromley came 14% out of the 27 London Boroughs who provided the information.
Number of properties on the Business Rates register

As at the 31 March 2024 there were 7,416 properties registered for Business Rates, this is an
increase of 11 on the figure as at the 31 March 2023.

The table below shows the number of premises by their current rateable value:

Business size based on rateable value Properties at 31.3.23 Properties at 31.3.24
Less than £28k (small) 5,763 5,576

Between £28,001k and £100,000 (medium) 1,197 1,181

Over £100,001 (large) 445 449

Total 7,405 7,416

Business rate review

During 2023/24, Liberata undertook a review to identify any additional rateable value properties
previously not rated by or undervalued by the Valuation Office Agency (VOA).

The review highlighted 42 prospects, all of which were referred to the VOA for assessment.

So far, 17 prospects have been successful and equated to additional £102,403 of chargeable
business rates.

There are still 13 outstanding prospects with the VOA awaiting assessment.

Recovery of Business rates

Recovery of Business Rates has a prescribed recovery process set out in the Local Finance Act
1988 and is adopted by all Local Authorities.

Ultimately, when the account remains unpaid, after obtaining a Liability order at the Magistrates
court the debtis referred to an enforcement agent for collection.

Historically, Bromley had been able to collect the majority of the Business Rates owed without
the need to refer accounts to the enforcement agents. However, since the pandemic, the number

6 Page 132



of accounts referred has increased. The table below shows the number of accounts referred to
the enforcement agents since 2017/18:

Financial Year 2017/18 | 2018/19 | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023/24

Number of 159 203 369 0 545 1,015 995

accounts passed

to Enforcement
agent

Whilst there is currently no statistical data to support, other LA’s are experiencing an increase in
the referral to enforcement agents, this has been attributed to the financial struggle faced by
businesses caused by the pandemic and the current economic pressures being experienced e.g.
increased energy costs.

At the 31 March 2024, there were 334 current year debts with the enforcement agents which
related to the following types of property/business:

Property/Business Description Number
Shop 130
Offices 124
Restaurant 18
Workshop 13
Warehouse

Car Parking Space and premises
Store and premises

Cafe

Public House

Betting shop

Vehicle repair workshop and premises
Advertising right and premises
Automatic Teller Machine and premises
Bank & premises

Car Park and premises

Club and premises

Gymnasium

Hairdressing salon

Kiosk

Land used for Storage and premises
Launderette

School

Shop, store & premises

Surgery

Takeaway food outlet

Warehouse, workshop and premises
Total 334

RiRrRIR|IR|IR|R|RRIR|IR|R|R|R[R[NMNN| Do o |©

7 Page 133



At the 30 November 2023, 186 accounts had been passed to the enforcement agents by 31 March
2024 this had increased to 334 with shops and offices being the most affected categories.

3.5 Cashiers

The number of payments received, including amounts received via either of the payment kiosks,
or by post is shown in the table below:-

Period Number of transactions Amount
1.4.21 —31.3.22 9,396 £6,289,973
1.4.22 —30.3.23 9,446 £3,749,659
1423 -31.3.24 9,328 £3,041,503

_The value of the amounts being received via either of the payment kiosks, or by post continues to
reduce. This has been attributed to residents and businesses preferring to pay by BACS,
automated or on-line method rather than sending cheques by post or using the kiosks.

3.6 Payroll
The number of payments made in March 2024 was as follows:
LBB General/Schools 2,744
Pensions 5,689
For the period 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024 Liberata achieved 96.30% accuracy.

3.7 Pensions

Membership numbers recorded on the pension administration system at the 31 March 2024
were 6,526 actives, 8097 deferred and 6,139 pensioners.

The number of pensioners recorded on the Pension system is different to the number of
pensions paid because pensioners only have one record on the Payroll system but they may
have more than one pension record in the pension system e.g. a person may have worked for
different departments or left Bromley then returned at a later date

Liberata have provided assurance that all pension entitement and benefits are calculated and
paid in accordance with Legislation and the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations.

4.  FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 This report refers to significant income collection undertaken through the Exchequer Service
contract with Liberata. For 2023/24 the key financial elements of the Revenues Service are:

e £254.8m - annual Council Tax raised
e £90m — annual Business Rates raised

e £84.1m — gross amount paid in staff salaries (inclusive of Schools but excluding
Academies) for the period 1 April to 31 March 2024

8 Page 134



5.1

6.1

7.1

8.1

e £35.1m —gross amount paidin Pensions for the period 1 April to 31 March 2024

e £3.04m - revenue on 9,328 transactions for the period 1 April to 31 March 2024
(including kiosks)

TRANSFORMATION/POLICY IMPLICATIONS

One of the “Making Bromley Even Better” ambitions is to manage our resources well, providing
value for money, efficient and effective services for Bromley's residents. To achieve this, we will
ensure robust contract management with a focus on efficiency and innovation to improve
services for Bromley residents.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

This is a contract monitoring report pursuant to CPR23. There are no specific legal implications
raising from this report.

CUSTOMER IMPACT

The Revenues Services impacts of a wide variety of customers which include residents, staff
and pensioners.

CARBON REDUCTION/SOCIAL VALUE IMPLICATIONS

Liberata exclusively uses Ark data centres which are committed to the European Green Deal,
achieving the ambitious greenhouse gas reductions of the climate law, and leveraging
technology and digitalisation to achieve the goal of making Europe climate neutral by 2050. For
the last 6 years, all Ark facilities have been powered by 100% renewable energy. To improve
sustainability further Ark has developed innovative direct air evaporative cooling capability that
dramatically lowers energy consumption and cost, capable of providing compressor free cooling
for 100% of every year. The My Bromley account software supports 49,815 subscribers to e-
billing, reducing paper production and postal service reliance. Officers continue to work with
Liberata on projects to increase back-office automation and further reduce paper volumes.

Liberata also supports staff to volunteer for local organisations, such as Age Concern’s
befriending scheme.

Non-Applicable Sections: | Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children, Personnel,
Procurement, Property, Impact on the Economy, Impact of
Health and Wellbeing and Ward Councillors views

Background Documents:
(Access via Contact
Officer)

9 Page 135



This page is left intentionally blank



A ploenoti Y

L ThinkCO 2" Floor Fron
L 1 befa tQ ServiceTech 60 Chizﬁ-:gg
EC2V 6AX

Claudine Douglas-Brown

Assistant Director of Exchequer Services
London Borough of Bromiey

Civic Centre

Stockwell Close

Bromley

BR1 3UH

Date: 3™ June 2024
Our Ref: BO/DK

Dear Claudine,
As we approach the July 2024 Executive, Resources & Contracts PDS meeting where we consider
and review the performance of the Revenues Service, I'm taking this opportunity to write to you
with Liberata’'s assessment of the performance of this critical, high profile service that we provide
to London Borough of Bromley (LBB) and its customers.
Liberata’s Business Continuity plans remain in place and now the majority of employees are
working on a hybrid basis where they work one or two days in the office with the remainder from
home.
This summary covers performance for the period: 1% April 2023 to 315 March 2024.

Council Tax

The in-year collection for the period was 96.94% which is equivalent to £249.16m cash collected.
The collection rate was 0.18% lower than the previous year. The economic challenges faced by
many residents has made debt recovery far more difficult in the last year.

In Year collection

31/03/2024 31/03/2023 Variance
In Year £m £m £m
Net collectable debt £257.03 £241.06 £15.97
Amount collected -£249.16 -£234.12 £15.04
Debt remaining £7.87 £6.94
Collection rate 96.94% 97.12% 0.18%

Liberata is a trading name of Liberata UK Limited
(Registered in England and Wales - No 1238274)
Registered Office: 2nd Floor Front, 60 Cheapside, London, EC2V 6AX
Liberata UK Limited is a subsidiary of Qutsourcing UK timited {Registered in England and Wales — No 10280945)

Registered Office: Floor 9, Peninsular House, 30-36 Monument Street, London, EC3R 8LJ

Page 137



e ThinkCO 2" Floor Front
leethQ ServiceTech Socheapsie
EC2V 6AX

The all-years collection figure achieved was 96.18% which is 0.71% lower when compared to the
previous year.

All Years collection

31/03/2024 31/03/2023 Variance

All Years £m £m £m

Net collectable debt £262.56 £246.47 £16.10
Amount collected -£252.53 -£238.80 £13.73
Debt remaining £10.03 £7.67

Collection rate 96.18% 96.89% 0.71%

To try and maximise Council Tax recovery, we continue to utilise all recovery options available to
the team. The introduction of a dedicated high-end debt recovery team should provide increased
collection for arrears cases, which may in turn assist with improving the in-year performance.

Another measure we are taking to further aid debt recovery, is that we are introducing a team which
will focus on trying to intervene on customers who have received a final notice. This will mean that
we ensure that the customer still lives at the address and that we are billing the correct person,
and where appropriate that we can make sensible payment arrangements with those who may be
struggling and to assist with sign-posting to relevant support services.

We will also be introducing a propensity-to-pay review so that we can tailor our approach to
recovery, based on customer circumstances. An outbound dialling service will also be brought on-
line in the coming months to assist with chasing debts across all years.

We have continued to see an increase in the number of residents signing up for an online
MyBromiey Account for access online services. During the year, nearly 16,000 residents registered
for an account bringing the total number of accounts held to nearly 140,000. This growth reflects
both the increasing popularity and preference of our residents to interact with the Council in this
way as well as the increasing variety of tasks that can now be undertaken using a MyBromley
Account. There were just under 200,000 electronic interactions during the year.

There are now 44,000 customers receiving electronic bills. Whilst there were still some customers
who needed assistance during annual billing, this was down to a normal level of enquiries, and we
did not experience the issues that we faced last year.

Page 138



e ThinkCO 2" Floor Fron
Liberata s:iicirecn Bl
EC2V 6AX

Business Rates

As at the period end, the in-year collection rate was 97.11%, representing cash of £80.57m. This
was a decrease of 0.10% compared to the same period last year. This decrease was affected by
the challenges faced by small businesses, the increases in the fuel charges and other costs as
well as the absence of any form of government grants to business like we had during covid and in
the immediate post-covid years.

In Year collection

31/03/2024 31/03/2023 Variance
In Year £m £m £m
Net collectable debt £82.97 £90.27 £7.30
Amount collected -£80.57 -£87.76 £7.18
Debt remaining £2.40 £2.52
Collection rate 97.11% 97.21% 0.10%

The all-year’s collection rate for the period was 94.16%, which is an improvement by 1.06% on
the previous year.

All Years collection
31/03/2024 31/03/2023 Variance

All Years £m £fm £m

Net collectable debt £86.35 £88.57 £2.23
Amount collected -£81.30 -£82.47 £1.16
Debt remaining £5.04 £6.11

Collection rate 94.16% 93.10% 1.06%

To assist with maximising collection the Liberata Team meet regularly with the Council’'s Revenues
Client Team to review the top debtors and ensure that appropriate and timely action is taken on all
accounts.

Liberata is a trading name of Liberata UK Limited
(Registered in England and Wales - No 1238274)
Registered Office: 2nd Floor Front, 60 Cheapside, London, EC2V 6AX
Liberata UK Limited is a subsidiary of Outsourcing UK Limited (Registered in England and Wales — No 10280945)

Registered Office: Floor 9, Peninsular House, 30-36 Monument Street, London, EC3R 8U

Page 139



N ThinkCO 2" Floor Fron
Ll bethQ ServiceTech 60 C“‘if,‘,’,z‘if
EC2V 6AX

Homes for Ukraine Support Scheme

Liberata continue to work closely with the Council to deliver this support scheme and ensure
sponsors are paid promptly when taking on new guests. The original software has had to be
adapted on multiple occasions as the rules are changed and the scheme extends beyond its initial
timescales.

Cashiers

Payments totalling £3.04m were received during the year which covered 9,446 transactions. These
payments were received in the post or were taken via the kiosks. The amount received was lower
by £710k or 18.9%, when compared to the previous year. This has been an ongoing trend over
the last few years as residents have continued moving towards using online methods of payment.

Pensions and Payroll

The Pension Team achieved an average of 96.30% service level compliance over the year to 31st
March 2024.

After twelve months of data cleansing the database, the Corporate staff and Pensioners were
migrated to the new HRP solution with the first Payroll processed in April 2023. This was not only
high volume of data but also consisted of complex terms and conditions so after the first Payroll
went live there were some “snagging” issues, but the Council, their migration partner and Liberata
worked in partnership to resolve these and continue to address and implement further
improvements.

During this time BACS files were all processed on time and any adjustments to pay were arranged
by the Faster Payment process ensuring Staff or Pensioners were not ever in a position of
hardship. :

The Payroll Team also continued to provide a valued service with an average accuracy rate of
99.94% across the Council's Corporate, Schools and Pension.

| trust you find that the above has been informative and comprehensively demonstrates that
Liberata remains firmly committed to delivering an outstanding service to the London Borough of
Bromley and its citizens.

Yours sincerely,

PO i

Bola Odunsi
Regional Director (London & The Southeast)

Page 140



%¥6°96 %ZLL6 %2896 %1G'96 %986 %00°86 %¥%0°'86 %E6°'L6 %6.°16 %0.L°L6 %066 Pa1o9]10D
XVL10:6A9

veice £2/22 zzi\e 12/02 0zZ/61 61/81 8L/LL LL/9L 91/G1 GlLivL vL/EL s.d

jenjoy |[enjoy |enjoy |[enjoy |[enioy |enjoy jenjoy |enjoy [enoy jenioy [enjoy an|eA iseg

Z Xipuaddy

:MOJ3g UMOUS S| ejelaqi] Aq souewllopad U0I08||00 Jesk U|

:eje(d XeJ [Iouno9)

(202 yau1e L€ 0} Jeak ay) Buunp suoljas||oo Yseo siwoo €5y) -
YSOIY s8pnjoul siy) ‘sucloesuel} gZe‘'6 U0 anuanal 20z YoIeN L€ 03} €202 IHdY js| — uoljiw #0°€3 -
¥20T U2JEN 1sLE O} €207 IUdY 15| WOl suoisuad jo Juswhed — uoljiw L'Ge3 -
202 YoJe IsL€ 0} €202 |Hdy Is| woly poliad 8y} 1o} (sslwapedy
Buipnjoxas ‘sjooyos Bulpnioul ‘es1Ales |joiAed g9 au) ybnolyy) sauees yejs Jo JuswAed ssol) — uoljjiwl L'y83F -
Jjouag BuisnoH Jo JuswAed |enuuy - uoljjiw §°G/3 -
poddng xe] 1ounod Jo JuswAed |enuuy — uoljiw 6'SLF -
‘pesiel sajey ssauisng JO junowle [enuuy — uoljjiw 063 -
‘pasiel Xe] [1I9uno) JO Junowe [enuuy — Uoljjiw 8'¥SZ3F -

:(saunby $z/£202) sepn|oul 80IAI8S SONUBASY 8U] JO SJUBLIB|S Ay 8y |

Page 141



Buluiem

SZLLL L6V'6 81601 0 6216 %200} 198 v6.v2'8 12zl €0L0l 918Gl Jusby juswsoloug

— siap9] Aep |

oLr'zi G900l 0L00L 0 209°8 SoL‘8 SLL'6 8ce'0lL 1€2'8 S9's 6666 sleplO Aijiqer

156°CL Lev'el zelle 0 1966 Gle'6 GG.0l 2501 £vS'6 851°¢1 19261 sasuowwng

2T8'0¢ 9¢0°CS 69.°c9 L0Z'vS 96125 /8¢£°c9 169'8/ €6G°'GS S TANA Sv.vS 96205 SJapulllsy
¥2/¢0/1€ €c/e0/Le ¢c/e0/1e 12/€0/1¢€ 02/e0/1LE 6lL/c0/l¢ 8L/E0/LE LL/€0/LE 9lL/€0/1¢ gL/eo/Le 7L/€0/LE

:panss| aJom sadljou A1oA0oal Xe] [1I9uno) Buimojjo) ay |

R4V4

YOIBIN 1sL€ O3 €Z0Z IMdY 151 WO Panss| Usag aAey ¥8"0vE 06823 Bull|elo) spunjel sovd 8Lb.L pue spunjes enbayg pg

‘selpedold 06621 10 10adsal Ul WG YSZF Sem $2/€20g JeaA ay} Joj pasiel 1qap 8|qejos)|od o Junowe ay |

Z Xlpuaddy

%¥6°96 — ¥20¢C Y218\ L€ |enjdy

Page 142



"71'¥S2 GES T3 JO UoNONpal e £6°CLL STV S| ¥Z0T YdJe ;sLE SU) Je se Bulpueisino 1gep €2/2202 (10} 8y} Jo soueleq sy |

"9AOQE UMOUS S| 04°2Z0°L9€°L3 JO £20Z IUdY 15| U} e Buipuelsino 1qep £2/2Z0Z [E10) 8U) JO SISA[eUE UMOpYealq oYL

Z Xipuaddy

0L LTO'T9E LT lelol
LE'TSETITF pasuowwns-ufn
GE'0S0°€67F sjeuldy
199Q pasuowwins-un

€€'90STS.F Agen
0003 Andnnjueg
06°'0L9°€F uswydeNy
TO'9LY LVS'EF Ava vt/ Bied
9/ vy8'€8vF jJuawasueny
86'9¢T°0793F S1502 / sasuowwing
1qa@ pasuoWWNS - Xe| {19uno?)

0.°£20°L9€'L3 sem €202 I1HdV ;51 3y} Je plemio} paLiied 3qap £2/2202 9yl

Page 143



Z Xlpuaddy

%v.L'8l 86°0ZV'€LL'Y3 | LE'Z68'EPP0ZF | SE'ELE'LSL'STI | TVLIOL
%Yy ve v1'¥SZ'6ES'TI | €6'CLL'GT8V3 L0°/20'19¢23 | 2oz
%ZTL'8L 0. L6V'0883 90'LEV'6.6'C3 9.'826°658'v3 | 1202
%0571 85°698'2673 86'62.'506'C3 95°665'86€'€3 | 0202
%€L 01 SZv0S°'1.23 G'0S.°2.S2'T3 0.'¥52'625'C3 | 6102
%806 €6'€8.°¥913 GG'19E'6Y9°L3 8¥'SylL'vL8'L3 | 8102
%EL'L Gy'/GL'663 LE'G20'LBL L3 9/728.'062°L3 | L10Z
%0v°L 29'699°LL3 61'G/€'0683 18'0¥0'8963 910¢C
%0L°L 80°165°253 G€'0.5°'0693 €Y' LOL°8Y.3 SLoeC
%20 L 8¥'9€6'6€3F 82006253 9/'6£6'8953 Y102
%¥v"S Ly’ €€0' V23 €6'€58°LLV3 ve'/88°LYP3 €10
%8¢’ L 92'65€°123 L8'/YZ2'89Z3 £0°209'6823 (45114
%269 669V, VL3 €8'/GE'8613 z8voL'eLes Loz
%0¢€°9 GZYLr0L3 69'286'vS13 ¥6'96€'S9L3 oloc
%68°S 60°€€8°'L3 8Z°LG1'GZL3 LEY86°TELI 600¢C

%v9°S SL'/91°123 €L'8LZ'PSEI 8V 9V 'SLE3 Iv.iOLl
81°2.8°/3 8€°/0G°€0L3 91°08€°LLL3 800¢
GL'L16°€3 G6'617°'983 01'LE€°063 1002
GZ'L6E'E3 Lv'812°093 99'60L 793 9002
16'818°C3 €S VLy'8e3 Yy €€2°Cr3 5002
vLerL L3 0L 'v6EvZ3 ¥YZ'ZTYS'SC3 ¥00¢C
11°2€83 20CLL 123 6L 613 €002
807593 vZ'L81°CL3 ceLreZL3 2002
1€°08C3 GL'€G8'Y3 ZLYEL'G3 L00C
0e'8v.3- GE'119C3 S0'€Z6L3 0002

orenoy | UOROPSIN | oo i ey | amenny | PR

$20Z U2Je| sLE Je Se umopyealg Sieally Xe] [I2uno?)

Page 144



Page 145

Juaby/ Juswadioug
G66 SL0°L 14172% 0 69¢ €0¢ 6S1 1£°1% €8¢ 14747 059 01 passed sjuno2oy
9001 006 85 0 1215 4 0SS ¢es T4 Ly 1292 V2. sJapJO Aljiger
9.LL 020°L [ARe] 0 6cy 109 89/ A GeS €50°L L60°L panss| sssuowwing
Ge8'e 96%'C v.8°C 0 L0Z‘C ZLelL G86°L 096°L 0961 £6¢°C clv'e panssj S8J{jON [euld
285y 86L'y 0Se‘s £08°1L YA Sve'e GZs'e 832y €92y Shv'y SHG'e penss| sispulusy
¥2/€0/1LE ¢e/el/Le 2c/en/Le L2/e0/LE 0c/e0/1Le 61/€0/1€ 8L/e/Le LLIE/E 91/€/1€ S1L/e0/Le v1/€0/1LE

- panss| a1om so2130u AlaAooal Buimojjo) sy |

"SUOIJONPal SN[eA 9|gealel pue UoledeA Jo

1adsal Ul 20°e81L YT SF 01 Bununowe $20Z Yyolep 5L 9U} 0} £202 I4dY 45| 8Y}) Wol) pauonoe spunjal §§L Usaq oAeY a1ay ]

‘sslpadoid 66¢‘/ J0 10adsal ul uokjiw 063 S! $2/S20¢ JeaA sy} 10} pesiel 1qap 9|qe}d]|09 JO JUNoWe ay |

pe108||0D

%bL'l6 | %lC16 | %lt'G6 | %6816 | %E0'86 | %EG 86 | %ES 86 | %.886 | %S066 | %0886 | %0.86 | SoeH:0LAd
vzice £z/ee zz\e 12/02 0z/61 6L/81 8L/l L1/91 aL/slL SLivL vL/glL sid
|enjoy lenjoy |[enjoy |enjoy |enjoy |lenoy |enjoy jenoy lenjoy [enjoy |[enjoy anjeA 1sag

Z Xlpusddy

:MO[9q UMOUS si ejeladi] Aq aouewlouad UoID9||0D Jesk u|

‘eje sajey ssauisng



‘SJealle Ul 8Sealoul Ul pajepyorq e uj jinseJ ueo suojduiaxa pue Sjunodsip JO [eAOWWS] 8Y) pue suoljenjeasl pajepyoeg

Z Xipuaddy

TV'CeTv6eT | 60°TPS'EET'T | 0S'€96°LTSC (44114
0T’ LT6'E6Y S0°/82'G99 ST¥TL6'STT T20¢
79°8LT6TT €0°64LT0V §9°4S0°C29 0co¢
85°588°06T T9°€80°LSY 61°696'LV9 610¢
GT°CT6'STT V' T6SVET LS €TS09¢€ 810¢
vELIET'S 97'00v'69T 09°'LTLTTC L102
SEVSYTT 9y LEESL 18'T7898 910¢
0T'8TZV LS°870CT L9°9YT'9C S10C
¥9°190'TT 80°LSV'ST TL°815°9C vT0¢
9¢'TEC'L 7978701 86°€ISLT €102
S0'Z9v'S €CLIV'S 8€'6/8°0T [4{ir4
0s°6¢ T6'9€ST TV'9/4S°T TT0C
TL°69G- TL°699 000 010¢
000 €0'8¢6 €0'8€6 600¢
000 SEEPT'T SEEVTT 800¢
uonRINpay 4/J sseaniy €207°€0°1E
pEIN] 4/4 sieadly

$20Z YoIe[\ ISLE 1B Se umopyealq sleslly seley ssauisng
6€°08€'GLSC3 Slealle [[el3AQ ul Uononpsy
25°¢6198Lc3 ¥2/€0/1L€ Ye Se £2/220¢ - L00Z |ej0) sieally
16°€LS'10LG3 €2/v0/10 18 Se £€2/220¢ - LO0Z .10} sieally

— pouad Buiodal 10y siealle Ul JUSWSAO

16°€2S°10.L°63 Sem £20¢ |udY js|. 18 pJemio} palLed }qap €2/220Z UL

Page 146



192'/9 909G suoisuad
LLp'ze 10.°C buiyoeas | /buiyoes | -UON
Ajjenuuy Alyjuo
:MOJ8g UMOUYS SI Ajjenuue/jiuow yoes apew sjuswAed jo jaqunu abeisAe ay |
eje( |jolhed
8ze’6 02°€0S‘LY0‘e3
ysory Buipnoul [E101 84U JIAID
suojjoesuels

1202 UDJBIN 1sL€ 01 €202 IHdY ;s polad ay) ul suonoesues} BuImo|o) sU) Yum Jlesp soiaies Bulisiyses sy

ejeq sialysen
Z Xipuaddy

Page 147



Page 148

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SISIYSED
(pepunoun 1) (pPapunoyun ¢) (papunoyun z) (pepunojun 1) (pepunojun z) (papunojun ;)
I 0 0 0 £ £ 0 3 y 6 [[0JAed
(popunojun ¢) (papunoyun 2) (papunoyun ¢) (papunoyun ) (papunojun g) (pepunojun ) (papunoun 1) (papunoun z) (papunogun 1)
g 4} S 6 8 4 4 v z ¥ suoisusd
(papunoyun ¢) (pepunojun o1) | (pepunojun g) (papunoyun @) (papunojun |) (popunoyun ¢) (papunoyun z) (papunojun ¢) (papunoyun g) (pspunoyun z)
1] 4} L 4 3 14 £ 9 oL \z JANN
(pepunojun
(pepunojun zot) | (pspunojun ygi) | (pepunounzsy) | wLL) (pspunojun g9z} | (pepunojun g6z) | (Pepunojun 60g) | (Papunojun 2z) | (pepunojun g/¢) | (papunoun i)
oLl €22 14%4 0LL 1E€ 144> £.€ 8re Va4 obS Xe| |Iduno)
ve/eo/Le
0} €2/¥70/10
[enjoy €2/2c0ce 22/1coc 1 Z/020¢ 0z/61L02 61/810C 81/.10¢C 21/910¢ 91/510¢ SlL/vLoc 90IAI8S

Z Xipuaddy

‘ejeq syulejdwor



ads yum saiuadosd Ads Inoyum sapadosd

JedA |elDuRUL pUB pueg Xe| [1Duno)

(veoT) (€207) (¥20T) (€207) [(S24074] (€207) (y207) (€202) {vzoz) (€z02) (vz07) (€z07) (v2oz) (€z07)
H H 9 D) 4 4 3 3 a a o) ] S 8
%6 %6
- = B N o
%6T %6T
%ET %ET
%o %9t
4 %ze %IE

€ Xipuaddy

¥Z/€20T '8 £2/2202 uosiedwo) Junodsiq uosiad aj3uis

(veoz)
v

%8S

(€200)
v

%LS

000°0T

000'07

000°0€

0000t

000°0S

000°09

saiuadoid JO JagWnN

Page 149



This page is left intentionally blank



Report No.
FSD24047

Agenda Item 10e

London Borough of Bromley

PART ONE - PUBLIC

Decision Maker:

Date:

Decision Type:

Title:

Contact Officer:

Chief Officer:

Ward:

EXECUTIVE, RESOURCES AND CONTRACTS POLICY
DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

8th July 2024
Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key

EXPENDITURE ON CONSULTANTS AND CONTRACTORS
2023/24

David Bradshaw, Head of Finance
Tel: 020 8313 4807 E-mail: david.bradshaw@bromley.gov.uk

Peter Turner, Director of Finance

N/A

1. Reason for report

Members of ER&C PDS requested a report on Consultant and Contractors expenditure.
Officers have therefore looked at expenditure in 2023/24 in both Revenue and Capital Budgets.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

Members of the ER&C PDS are requested to:-

2.1 Note the overall expenditure on Consultants and Contractors/Agency as set out in this report.

1 Page 151


mailto:david.bradshaw@bromley.gov.uk

Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children

1. Summary of Impact: Any issues concerning vulnerable adults and children should be
considered within each individual project brief.

Corporate Policy

1. Policy Status: Not Applicable
2. BBB Priority: Not Applicable

Financial

1. Costof proposal: Not Applicable

2. Ongoing costs: All one-off expenditure met from allocated budgets
3. Budget head/performance centre: Consultants

4. Total current budget for this head: £N/A

5.  Source of funding: Revenue & Capital

Personnel

1. Number of staff (current and additional): N/A — one-off costs

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:

Legal

1. Legal Requirement: None

2. Call-in: Not Applicable

Procurement

1. Summary of Procurement Implications: Consultants should be appointed in accordance with
CPRs 8.2 and 8.6. IR35 Tax implications also need to be considered.

Customer Impact

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected):

Ward Councillor Views

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Not Applicable

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:

2 Page 152



3.

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

COMMENTARY

ER&C PDS members requested information on the Councils expenditure on Consultants and
Contractors/Agency be reported to the Committee.

To do this officers have for the Consultant element:-

e Looked at the total expenditure on consultants in 2023/24.
e This covers Revenue and Capital Expenditure.
e The list has been approved by the relevant Executive Director.

For the Contractors expenditure officers have:-

e Taken apointintime (15t April 2024)

e For comparison purposes converted all rates to a day rate so that costs can be
compared.

e This is a day rate only, some may only do a few hours/days in a working week, or only
have worked for a short period of time so overall total costs will vary.

e The cost includes the cost of the agency, so this is not what the worker actually
receives as a payment.

Consultants

The basic reason for the use of consultants is that at times the Council requires that
specialised work is undertaken for specific projects. This is particularly valid when consultants
are engaged to work on large scale projects. For completeness expenditure on Architects,
Engineers, Surveyors and other consultants commissioned to work on Capital Projects have
been included as these generally meet the definition of one-off projects. Proposed
expenditure on Capital Projects will have been approved by Executive before being included in
the Capital Programme.

The Councils Contract Procedure rules sets out the procurement process to be followed when
appointing a consultant and there is also guidance available to staff about what needs to be
included in the formal agreement when engaging a consultant, which as a minimum needs to
confirm the overall cost, project deliverables, clear brief and reporting arrangements.

There is an element of subjectivity as to what constitutes a “consultant” as a number of
services could fall within this definition, however it is generally defined as “a person brought
into the Council to carry out a specific job” which is not on-going. For the purposes of this
report expenditure on medical fees, counsel and legal fees have been excluded as these are
considered to be professional fees rather than consultants.

In looking at consultants, members need to be minded that officers will use them to carry out
work on the Council's behalf when:-

o There is no one internally with the relevant skills or experience
o There is no capacity/resources available to undertake this work
o Specialist skills are required

It is important when recruiting a consultant that the project brief sets out the reasons for the
use of consultant, that officers have consider any alternative options and also to evaluate the
effectiveness of the work undertaken by consultants within the authority.

3 Page 153



3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

4.1
4.2

4.3

4.4

5.1

The benefit of employing consultants is that the Council makes a saving in relation to employer
National Insurance and pension contribution. Also in employing consultants the Council is
under no obligation to pay consultants for days when they are not working for the Council e.g.
sickness and holiday and they are only engaged for a specific period of time — however
offsetting this is that these staff are often more expensive.

The risk in not using consultants is that the Council would have to recruit a more substantial
and specialised workforce at a greater expense, and thus creating an employment relation or a
“contract of service” with the associated diversity of employment rights including unfair
dismissal and redundancy payment rights, etc.

This report provides a detailed breakdown of all costs officers believe are consultants, broken
down over Portfolio’s and service areas. This is shown in Appendix 1 (revenue) and Appendix
2 (capital).

Contractors/Agency

The main reason to employ Contractors/Agency staff is to fill vacancies (long term and to
cover statutory duties) or to cover short term periods of pressures in particular areas.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The financial implications are included in the body of the report and the appendices.

A summary of the expenditure is detailed in the table below

Expenditure on consultants

2023/24
£'000
Revenue 1,052
Capital 4,335
5,387
Expenditure on Contractors/Agency
Per day
Average day rate of contractor/Agency (inclusive of fees) £289
Average day rate of top 40 most expensive (inclusive of fees) £547
£m
Spend on Contractors/Agency in 2023/24 18

Details of the Consultants expenditure is contained in Appendix 1 and 2.

The cost of Contractors/Agency staff in 2023/24 was in the region of £18m. As of June 2024
there are approximately 270 contractor/agency staff.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Legislation affords employees employment rights e.g. paid holiday, maternity leave and pay,
entittement to redundancy payments, minimum notice periods and protection from unfair

4 Page 154



5.2

5.3

6.1

7.1

dismissal. In general terms self-employed individuals and consultants are not entitled to these
enhanced statutory rights or protections, because, arguably, they are not employees in the
strict legal sense. However, the law around who is an employee/not an employee is constantly
evolving and has resulted in a number of high profile cases e.g. Uber, Pimlico Plumbers and
Deliveroo.

In addition HMRC also uses criteria e.g. IR35 when determining an individual's employment
status. This means that an individual could be considered an employee for tax purposes and
yet remains a consultant from an employment perspective. Ultimately, who is an employee or
a worker, or self- employed individual for employment law purposes is a matter for the
employment tribunal to decide.

To manage and minimise the risk to the Council, the Council procedures should be followed
which also includes IR35 together with using the Councils consultant contract documentation
or other suitable contracts. In additionthe Councils HR and legal departments can be
consulted.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS

Consultants should be appointed in line with CPR 8.6 which requires a detailed project brief to
be included with specific outcomes identified, and in line with guidance from the Corporate
Procurement Team. Chief Officers are responsible for ensuring that project briefs are in place
and that no payments are made until the specific outcomes have been achieved.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

Consultants may be used to assist officers in meeting the Council’s key priorities.

Non-Applicable Sections: | Strategic Property, IT and GDPR, Transformation, Impact
Assessments & Personnel Implications

Background Documents: Held in Finance teams
(Access via Contact
Officer)

5 Page 155



This page is left intentionally blank



/GT abed

Appendix 1

Category / Supplier Name Division /Serv. Area 2023/24|Description
£

SOCIAL CARE INSISTUTE OF EXCELLANCE Adult Social Care 80,000|In May 2023, Adult Services commissioned the Social Care Institute of Excellence (SCIE) to complete an independent review, (diagnostic /
research phase), and produce a forward plan setting out an end-to-end change programme to deliver substantial sustainable savings in Adult
Social Care.

NUMBER 10 INTERIM Adult Social Care 37,375|This resource was essential to support the Liquid Logic System used by Adult Social Care during the post implementation phase after the
Implementation Team's work had ended.

T-CUBED LTD Adult Social Care 20,000|Support, consultation work and training packages for the Assistive Technology Project which is one of the Transformation projects for Adult
Social Care

SAFEGUARDING TRAINING & CONSULTANCY SERVICES LTD Adult Social Care 11,640|Training re Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board

BAILEY PARTNERSHIP Adult Social Care 9.,750|Building Surveyor led consultancy services re the Astley Centre. Commissioned by Property Services.

APOLLO EAGLE CONSULTING LTD

Adult Social Care

5,500

Presentation on Domestic Abuse & Older People for Learning from complex safeguarding cases awareness week

LS CONSULTING

Adult Social Care

2,580

Training re Bromley Safequarding Adults Board

DRV G

Adult Social Care

400

Provision of Medico-legal report (HR advice)

ADVOCACY FOR ALL

Adult Social Care

40

Safeguarding review - this is a statutory requirement to have in place.

SOFTWARE LTD Carbon Mgmt 9,500|The CO2 Analysis work to measure the Council's Scope 3 emissions
MAYDENCROFT LTD Carbon Mgmt 3,300|Employed to develop UK Forestry Standard Compliant Woodland Creation

42 BEDFORD ROW Carbon Mgmt 1,200|Barrister taking the legal Case around the BT Telegraph Pole.
ENCOMPASS PRINT SOLUTIONS LTD Carbon Mgmt 210|The company made the maps to the Woodland Consultation accessible for the Council website.

AW Children Social Care 36,000 ISW advising on Ofsted inspection prep and completing external audits
AV OUTCOMES LTD Children Social Care 28,422|ISW advising on Ofsted inspection prep and completing external audits
BE HEARD LTD Children Social Care 26,810|Grant funded temporary role for specific Home Office initiated programme

EXPERT IN MIND

Children Social Care

26,253

Court Directed Psych Assessment

PSYCHOLOGY DIRECT LTD

Children Social Care

24,741

Court Directed Psych Assessment

THE LUCY FAITHFULL FOUNDATION

Children Social Care

15,891

Court Directed Assessment For Sexual Abuse / Harm

EXPERT IN MIND

Children Social Care

15,407

Court Directed Psych Assessment

C B THE EXPERT SERVICE LTD

Children Social Care

14,467

Assessment by ISW

CF

Children Social Care

13,418

Court Directed Assessment And Parenting Work

CHILDRENS SERVICES NETWORK

Children Social Care

9,932

Court Directed ISW

EXPERT IN MIND

Children Social Care

9,847

Court directed psych nent

DV-ACT LTD Children Social Care 8,790 Court Directed Assessment

DR N Children Social Care 7,918|Court Directed Psych Assessment

GJ Children Social Care 7,700|ISW advising on Ofsted inspection prep and completing external audits
THE LUCY FAITHFULL FOUNDATION Children Social Care 7,523 | Court Directed Assessment For Sexual Abuse / Harm

DRJS Children Social Care 7,508 Court Directed Psych Assessment

WEALDEN PSYCHOLOGY LTD Children Social Care 6,937 |Court Directed Psych Assessment

MORSON SOCIAL WORK SOLUTIONS

Children Social Care

6,200

Parenting Assessment By ISW

MW

Children Social Care

5,981

Psychologist

M F CONSULTANCY

Children Social Care

5,500

ISW advising on Ofsted inspection prep and completing external audits

CHILDREN & FAMILILES ACROSS BORDERS (CFAB) Children Social Care 5,141|Court Directed ISW

DV-ACT LTD Children Social Care 5,103|Court Directed Assessment

DRYO Children Social Care 5,015|Court Directed Psych Assessment

MRED Children Social Care 4,973|Court Directed Psych Assessment

MRSJC Children Social Care 4,400| Positive Behaviours Support (PBS) /Behaviour consultant
DRCM Children Social Care 4,217|Court Directed

AC Children Social Care 3,680|Court Directed Assessment

ISW ASSESSMENT & CONSULTANCY LTD Children Social Care 3,669|Court Directed ISW

EXPERT IN MIND

Children Social Care

3,635

Assessment whilst in legal framework

MORSON SOCIAL WORK SOLUTIONS

Children Social Care

3,550

Assessment whilst in legal framework

SD

Children Social Care

3,514

TCR Consultant

GOLDEN HEIGHTS LTD

Children Social Care

3,170

Specialist Parenting Assessment By ISW

MORSON SOCIAL WORK SOLUTIONS

Children Social Care

2,914

TCR Consultant - Parenting/Community based nents

E M PSYCHOLOGY LTD

Children Social Care

2,792

Court Directed Psych Assessment

M F CONSULTANCY

Children Social Care

2,750

ISW advising on Ofsted inspection prep and completing external audits

THINK PARENTING LTD

Children Social Care

2,749

Court Directed ISW

DR N Children Social Care 2,583 |Court Directed Psych Assessment
C B THE EXPERT SERVICE LTD Children Social Care 2,559| TCR Consultant

MEWA LLP Children Social Care 2,441 |Psychiatry report

FORENSIC HEALTHCARE SERVICES LTD Children Social Care 2,435|Court Directed Assessment

IMA Children Social Care 2,331 |Court Directed Psych Assessment
DV-ACT LTD Children Social Care 2,259|Court Directed assessment
KINGDOM FAMILY ASSESSMENT SUPPORT and EDUCATION SERVICES|Children Social Care 1,800]|Court Directed Assessment
MEWA LLP Children Social Care 1,404 | Court directed expert witness

JD Children Social Care 1,353|Court Directed Psych Assessment
EXPERT IN MIND Children Social Care 1,337|Court directed psych nent
S P PSYCHOLOGY LTD Children Social Care 1,320]|Court Directed Psych Assessment

S P PSYCHOLOGY LTD

Children Social Care

1,240

Court Directed Psych Assessment




8GT abed

Appendix 1

CHILDRENS SERVICES NETWORK

Children Social Care

987

Willis Palmer - Community Based Assessment

G T ASSOCIATES Children Social Care 918|TCR Legal

DRJS Children Social Care 850|Court Directed Psych Assessment
JHLTD Children Social Care 791 |Court Directed ISW

DRJS Children Social Care 713|Court Directed Psych Assessment
PSYCHOLOGY DIRECT LTD Children Social Care 666 |Court Directed Psych Assessment

THINK PARENTING LTD

Children Social Care

653

Court Directed ISW

ONE IN FOUR Children Social Care 575|TCR Consultant

DC Children Social Care 500|Court Directed Assessment

DRCM Children Social Care 486 | Court directed psych assessment
SR&COLTD Children Social Care 441 | Court Directed Psychiatric Assessment
DRKPW Children Social Care 405| Court Directed Psych Assessment
DRML Children Social Care 302|Court Directed Psych Assessment
EVIDENCE MATTERS LTD Children Social Care 300|Court Directed Assessment

JD Children Social Care 257 |Court Directed Psych Assessment

C B THE EXPERT SERVICE LTD

Children Social Care

EVIDENCE MATTERS LTD

247

Court directed ISW

Children Social Care

180

Court Directed Assessment

JD Children Social Care 171|Court directed
MRED Children Social Care 149|Court Directed ISW
MONTAGU EVANS LLP Culture Projects 6,000|Development consultancy advice for sites at Crystal Palace Park.

STIRLING MAYNARD & PARTNERS LTD

Culture Projects

90

Crystal palace Park - Presentation of HE Hydrology Works

RHJD CONSULTANCY LTD Democratic Services 4,900 Constitution review

EDUSOLVE LTD Education 4,950 School improvement consultant

FRANKHAM CONSULTANCY GROUP LTD Education 500 Consultant re Capital Works part of Tender

THE QUALITY IMPROVEMENT GROUP LIMITED Health 45,100 |Employment of a Consultant to oversee the Vaccine Hesitancy Project. The project was agreed with, and funded by the ICB and designed to
improve the relationships and engagement between the local authority and NHS for certain areas of the population that were not participating in
the vaccination and other health interventions and subject to worse health outcomes. There was a capacity issue and urgency during and post
the Covid pandemic requiring the use of additional resource to increase/improve the vaccination rate

JB RINEY & CO LTD (MAJOR WORKS) Highways 31,650|Waterman professional services for Highways

KAINOS SOFTWARE Highways 15,000|DfT Street Manager services

R C ASSOCIATES Highways 3,450 Specialist consultancy services for a Public Right of Way (PROW) report on the Landway Definitive Map Modification Order (DMMO) in Downe

CTLIMITED Housing 27,584 |Review and develop the Council's Housing Allocations Policy.

CTLIMITED Housing 11,278|Housing Revenue Account Policy work

BAILEY PARTNERSHIP Housing 5,375|Repair work redesign at Bellegrove

DEVONSHIRES SOLICITORS Housing 1,750|Allocations Policy work

PERSONNEL HEALTH and SAFETY CONSULTANTS LIMITED Housing 1,750|External Risk Assessment for Star Lane Traveller Site

MONTAGU EVANS LLP

Investment and Non-Operational Property

4,250

104 - 106 High Street Bromley - To act in respect of Investment portfolio review for the lease renewal at the above property

BLACK STANNILand LTD

Investment and Non-Operational Property

2,500

Specialist Negotiator - 63 The Walnuts Orpington - As instructed to negotiate the lease renewal with the sub tenant and occupier

AVISON YOUNG (UK) LTD

Parks

19,387

Feasibility Study into 5 Council owned Open Spaces including a shortlist of interventions

FRANKHAM CONSULTANCY GROUP LTD Parks 19,303| Topographical Survey for St John's Church, survey and costing report for Exelsior Bowls Club, Poverest Park, Queensmead Pavilion
PURCELL ARCHITECTURE LTD Parks 225|Management of the Construction works at Scadbury Moated Manor
Land USE CONSULTANTS LTD Planning Services-Planning 1,288 Specialist advice on planning application

BPS DORKING LTD

Planning Services-Planning

260

Specialist advice on planning application

AVISON YOUNG (UK) LTD

Planning Strategy & Projects

64,351

Employment Land and Space Study - contract reference number 7394

Land USE CONSULTANTS LTD

Planning Strategy & Projects

20,033

Sites of Importance for Nature Conservation update - contract reference number 6341

M C ASSOCIATES LTD

Public Protection

10,167

Cranfield's Local Air Pollution Prevention and Control (LAPPC) Environmental Permitting and inspection and regulation of industrial processes

MAKE ASSOCIATES

Public Protection

9,975

Cumulative Impact Assessments (CIA) and Licensing policy consultant

PARTICIPATION PEOPLE

Regeneration Team - Town Centre Development|

11,940

Project High Street - Youth Engagement (Participation People)

FLOCK CREATIVE LTD

Regeneration Team - Town Centre Development|

9,642

Event social media and marketing support including design and photography

GARDINER & THEOBALD LLP

Regeneration Team - Town Centre Development|

7,750

Poverest, Cotmandene and Sundridge Cost Plans, Programmes and Risk Reviews

EB7LTD

Regeneration Team - Town Centre Development|

5,450

Glare Assessment and Internal Daylight Sunlight for Beckenham Housing Site

31TEN CONSULTING LTD

Regeneration Team - Town Centre Development|

1,400

Housing Feasibility - Social rent calculation for Bromley North and Belle Grove

LAMBERT SMITH HAMPTON GROUP LTD

Regeneration Team - Town Centre Development|

1,200

Social Rent Calculations

BAS BOOKS LTD Strategy 2,133 | Customer complaints investigations
JF Strategy 1,380|Customer complaints investigations
MONTAGU EVANS LLP TEM Client Monitoring Team 75,588 Fee in relation to the provision of valuations for financial reporting purposes (2022/23).

MICHAEL PAGE INTERNATIONAL RECRUITMENT LTD TEM Client Monitoring Team 46,020 For agency fees re employment of Interim Head of Estates
FRANKHAM CONSULTANCY GROUP LTD Transport Op and Depot 600] This should have been coded in Property. Undertook a structural survey to metal profiled sheeting to waste transfer station at Churchfields Depo

MONTAGU EVANS LLP

Waste

17,071

Work commissioned by Property to challenge Business Rates charges for Cornwall Drive NNDR refund

Total

1,051,955




6GT abed

Sum of Total
Supplier name

AB STANS HEATING
AB STANS HEATING

AECOM INFRASTRUCTURE & ENVIRONMENT UK LTD

ALIX SLATER CONSULTANCY & TRAINING LTD
ALLIANCE LEISURE SERVICES LTD
ARTSCROLL LTD

B & M MCHUGH LIMITED

BAILEY PARTNERSHIP

BAILEY PARTNERSHIP

BAILY GARNER LLP

BAILY GARNER LLP

BAILY GARNER LLP

BANNER GROUP LTD

BEVAN BRITTAN

BRIMELOW MCSWEENEY ARCHITECTS LIMITED
BROMLEY BID LTD

BRONTIDE CONSULTING LTD

BURO HAPPOLD LTD

CENTRAL ILLUSTRATION AGENCY LTD
CLARKEBOND (UK) LTD

COLIN TOMS & PARTNERS LLP
COUNTERCULTURE PARTNERSHIP LLP
CURL LA TOURELLE & HEAD LTD
DAYDON GRIFFITHS & SURRY

DRRBH

Eb7 PARTY WALL LIMITED

EDWARD PAYNE & VENESS LTD
ENERGY MATTERS NATIONWIDE LTD
ENERGY MATTERS NATIONWIDE LTD
EQUALS CONSULTING LTD

ETEC ASSOCIATES LTD

ETEC CONTRACT SERVICES LTD
FORESHAW BUILDING SERVICES LIMITED
FRANKHAM CONSULTANCY GROUP LTD
FULKERS LLP

FULKERS LLP

GARDNER STEWART AND STEWART LTD
GE

GE

GE

GREENWICH LEISURE LTD

HTA DESIGN LLP

HTA DESIGN LLP

IDVERDE LTD

IDVERDE LTD

INDEPENDENT BUILDING CONSULTANCY LTD

Resources,
Commissio
Environment ning &
Adult  Children & Contract Renewal,
Care & Education Community Manageme Recreation
Health & Families Services nt & Housing
Portfolio
ACH CEF ECS RCCM RRH
2,640
252
1,848
2,400
1,196,984
27,680
796
103,456
13,210
47,855
5,250
21,022

1,781
711
37,000
781
9,950
29,905
93,347
2,185
525
43,151
5,699
600
8,169
3,000
150
700
2,828
35,811
1,950
2,339
8,059
9,000
15,000
197,500
6,588
9,000
6,000
27,904
524,500
62,639
33,138
229
2,100

Grand Total Scheme

2,640 Empty Homes Programme
252 London Private Sector Renewal Schemes
1,848 Beckenham Housing
2,400 Crystal Palace Park - Regeneration
1,196,984 OPR leisure centres (group 2)
27,680 Modular Build York Rise
796 Provision of Housing and Library Improvement Works in West Wickham
103,456 Basic Needs
13,210 Capital Maintenance in Schools
47,855 Basic Needs
5,250 Capital Maintenance in Schools
21,022 Replacement of District Heating System Boilers & Works to Walnut Leisure Centre
93 Crystal Palace Park - Regeneration
1,781 Replacement of District Heating System Boilers & Works to Walnut Leisure Centre
711 Provision of Housing and Library Improvement Works in West Wickham
37,000 Bromley High Street Improvements
781 OPR leisure centres (group 2)
9,950 HWBC co-location
29,905 OPR Libraries
93,347 HWBC co-location
2,185 Replacement of District Heating System Boilers & Works to Walnut Leisure Centre
525 Crystal Palace Park - Regeneration
43,151 OPR leisure centres (group 2)
5,699 OPR Libraries
600 Crystal Palace subway
8,169 Provision of Housing and Library Improvement Works in West Wickham
3,000 Investment Fund - Property Acquisition
150 Investment Fund - Property Acquisition
700 OPR Libraries
2,828 Provision of Housing and Library Improvement Works in West Wickham
35,811 Provision of Housing and Library Improvement Works in West Wickham
1,950 Provision of Housing and Library Improvement Works in West Wickham
2,339 Bushell Site Development
8,059 Replacement of District Heating System Boilers & Works to Walnut Leisure Centre
9,000 Crystal Palace Park - Regeneration
15,000 Crystal Palace Park Improvements
197,500 HWBC co-location
6,588 Adventure Kingdom HWBC — next steps
9,000 HWBC co-location
6,000 OPR leisure centres (group 2)
27,904 Provision of Housing and Library Improvement Works in West Wickham
524,500 Crystal Palace Park - Regeneration
62,639 Crystal Palace Park Improvements
33,138 Basic Needs
229 Crystal Palace Park - Regeneration
2,100 Dilapidations and charges on properties

Appendix 2



09T abed

INGLETON WOOD LLP

INOAPPS LTD

JACKSON COLES LLP

K2 CONSULTANCY

K2 CONSULTANCY

LAMBERT SMITH HAMPTON GROUP LTD
LIBRA CONSTRUCTION SERVICES LTD
MARSH LTD

MONTAGU EVANS LLP

MONTAGU EVANS LLP

MONTAGU EVANS LLP

MONTAGU EVANS LLP

MORGAN LOVELL PLC

NAMOS SOLUTIONS LTD

NAMOS SOLUTIONS LTD

NHBC

OB

OXFORD ARCHAEOLOGY LTD

OXFORD ARCHAEOLOGY LTD

PKPLTD

PELLINGS LLP

PELLINGS LLP

PFB CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD
PICK EVERARD

PINNACLE ESP LTD

PINNACLE ESP LTD

PLAYLE & PARTNERS LLP

PRIME START MEDIA LTD

PURCELL ARCHITECTURE LTD
RJCLTD

RIVERSIDE ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES LTD
RN DESIGN LTD

ROCK TOWNSEND ARCHITECTS LLP
SHARPE PRITCHARD LLP

SHARPE PRITCHARD LLP

SHARPE PRITCHARD LLP

SOMERHILL CONSULTING SERVICES LTD
STILES HAROLD WILLIAMS PARTNERSHIP LLP
STILES HAROLD WILLIAMS PARTNERSHIP LLP
STRUCTURAL SOILS LTD

T&C PRINTERS

TETRATECHLTD

THE PARTY WALL COLLECTIVE LTD

T F & PARTNERS

TOPBOND PLC

V T CONSULTING

WATERMAN BUILDING SERVICES LTD
WOMBLE BOND DICKINSON UK LLP
WOMBLE BOND DICKINSON UK LLP
MEH

K N BUILDING DESIGN

WATERSIDE & ASSOCIATES LTD
LHBLTD

ELWYNS WINDOWS LTD

56,287

1,253
10,451

4,004

340,699

10,896

19,392

11,631

4,400

7,000
203,288

22,871
3,488
30,200

11,813
228,692

344,957

750

292
7,914

3,800
22,352

15,690

91,250

17,250

1,540

16,852
9,815
30,240
5,000

13,000

1,234
5,200
19,612
70
1,509

1,075

2,343
395

1,140
1,400
39,325

980

130

3,000
37,772

12,825

25,330
15,507
180
300
440
756
12,137

17,250 OPR Libraries
4,400 Oracle HR Payroll Software
1,540 Bushell Site Development
7,000 Adventure Kingdom HWBC — next steps
203,288 HWBC co-location
16,852 Bromley North Housing
9,815 Empty Homes Programme
30,240 Provision of Housing and Library Improvement Works in West Wickham
5,000 Bromley North Housing
22,871 Civic Centre Development Strategy
13,000 Crystal Palace Park - Regeneration
3,488 Investment Fund - Property Acquisition
30,200 Civic Centre Development Strategy
11,813 Financial Systems Replacement
228,692 Oracle HR Payroll Software
1,234 Provision of Housing and Library Improvement Works in West Wickham
5,200 Bromley High Street Improvements
19,612 Crystal Palace Park - Regeneration
70 Crystal Palace Park Improvements
1,509 Crystal Palace Park - Regeneration
56,287 Basic Needs
344,957 Civic Centre Development Strategy
1,075 Bromley North Housing
340,699 Depot Improvement Works
1,253 Basic Needs
10,451 Security Works - Standards Fund
2,343 Anerley Site Development
395 Crystal Palace Park - Regeneration
10,896 Croydon Road Recreation Ground Bandstand Restoration
750 Investment Fund - Property Acquisition
1,140 OPR Libraries
1,400 Bromley High Street Improvements
39,325 OPR leisure centres (group 2)
292 Adventure Kingdom HWBC — next steps
4,004 OPR Adult Day Centres
7,914 OPR holding Account
980 Bushell Site Development
3,800 Dilapidations and charges on properties
22,352 Investment Fund - Property Acquisition
19,392 Kelsey Park Replacement Bridges
130 Crystal Palace Park - Regeneration
15,690 HWBC co-location
3,000 Provision of Housing and Library Improvement Works in West Wickham
37,772 Crystal Palace subway
11,631 Kelsey Park Replacement Bridges
12,825 Crystal Palace Park - Regeneration
91,250 HWBC co-location
25,330 Bushell Site Development
15,507 Crystal Palace Park - Regeneration
180 London Private Sector Renewal Schemes
300 London Private Sector Renewal Schemes
440 London Private Sector Renewal Schemes
756 London Private Sector Renewal Schemes
12,137 London Private Sector Renewal Schemes

Appendix 2



TOT abed

Grand Total

4,004

270,901

382,619

1,320,392 2,357,536

4,335,451

Appendix 2



This page is left intentionally blank



	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE, RESOURCES AND CONTRACTS PDS COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 20 MAY 2024 (EXCLUDING EXEMPT ITEMS)
	5 MATTERS OUTSTANDING AND WORK PROGRAMME
	6 FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS
	8a TREASURY MANAGEMENT ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT
	Q4 APPENDICES

	8b EXTENSIONS: VARIOUS CLEANING, CARETAKING AND WASHROOM SERVICES CONTRACTS
	Appendix 1. Cleaning Contract. Extension beyond term for various contracts 04.24

	8c EXTENSION OF ROYAL MAIL CONTRACT
	APPENDIX 1. Royal Mail Prices for London Boroughs 2024

	10a CUSTOMER SERVICES CONTRACT MONITORING REPORT
	Appendix 1 – Letter from Liberata - Corporate Customer Services - 7 May 2024
	Yours sincerely,


	10b EXCHEQUER SERVICE CONTRACT PERFORMANCE REPORT
	Enc. 1 for Exchequer Service Contract Performance Report
	Claudine Douglas-Brown
	Assistant Director of Exchequer Services

	Enc. 2 for Exchequer Service Contract Performance Report

	10c BENEFITS SERVICE MONITORING REPORT
	Enc. 2 for Benefits Service Monitoring report

	10d REVENUES SERVICE MONITORING REPORT
	Enc. 3 for Revenues Service Monitoring report

	10e EXPENDITURE ON CONSULTANTS AND CONTRACTORS  2023/24
	Appx for EXPENDITURE ON CONSULTANTS AND CONTRACTORS  2023/24


